RAJYA SABHA [29 November, 2005]

REPORT OF THE DEPARTMENT RELATED PARLIAMENTARY
STANDING COMMITTEE ON PERSONNEL, PUBLIC GRIEVANCES,
LAW AND JUSTICE

SHRI E.M. SUDARSANA NATCHIAPPAN (Tamil Nadu): Sir, | present
the Thirteenth Report (in English and Hindi) of the Department-related
Parliamentary Standing Committee on Personnel, Public Grievances, Law
and Justice on the Prevention of Child Marriage Bill, 2004.

MR. CHAIRMAN: ShriArun Jaitley to move the motion.

MOTION
Con¥lemnation of alleged involvement of Indian entities and
individuals as non-contractual beneficiaries of United Nations'
Oil-for-Food-Programme in lraq as reported by Volcker Committee

SHRIARUN JAITLEY (Gujarat): Mr. Chairman, Sir, let me first express
my gratitude to you for permitting me to move this Motion under rule 167.
The Motion | move reads:

"That this House strongly condemns the alleged involvement of some In-
dian entities and individuals as non-contractual beneficiaries of the
United Nations’ Qil-for-Food-Programme in Iraq, as reported in the
Report of the United Nations' Independent Inquiry Committee (Voicker
Committee).”

Sir, in the past few weeks, we have had from the Government at the
highest level and from the political parties whose alliance and coalition is
in power certain responses to what has been stated in the independent
Inquiry Committee's Report. Let us remember, and this needs to be
underlined, that this Report is no ordinary document. This Report has not
only domestic significance, as far as India is concerned, this Report is a
document of high international credibility. And amongst others, this Report
has mentioned, at least, two prominent Indian entities along with a third
one, then, there are several other companies, and what has disturbed the
country the most is a reference to a political party which has been in power
in India for the longest duration of time as also a very hon. Member of this
House, who at the time when this Report was prepared was India's Foreign
Minister and our country's principal spokesman on Foreign Policy issues.

Sir, let me remind this House that when this UPA Government was
voted to power, it had promised a corruption-free administration. The
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Prime Minister, as we take him for his words, had repeatedly said that
there would be a zero-tolerance |evél, as far as corruption is concerned.
Unfortunately, this Government opened its innings, and its very first stroke
was the induction of tainted in the Union Cabinet. We were all enthused
when our present Prime Minister and Ipdia's Finance Minister years ago
had shed apart all technicalities and said in his own party's conference
that Caesar's wife must be above suspicion. So, those who sit in high
places must not be those against whom accusing fingers can be pointed
out. While we were very enthused with the statement of his given inthe
mind-nineties at the Congress Party's Conference, we were certainly
disappointed, as the entire nation was, when he somersaulted his stand
and said, 'merely because you have a serious case against you is no
ground to presume anything against you. There is a presumption of
innocence till you are proved guilty’. Sir, in the last eighteen months of
this Government, you not only had tainted Ministers occupying high
offices, you had absconding Ministers, you had jailed Ministers...
(Interruptions)

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY (Pondicherry): NDA too had tainted
Ministers... (Interruptions)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do not disturb, Mr. Narayanasamy, please sit down.
(Interruptions)

Please sit down. (Interruptions)

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, | repeat that in the last eighteen months, you
had a Government of tainted Ministers with serious criminal cases against
them inducted into the Union Cabinet, you had Ministers who are
absconding; you had Ministers who had to go to jail. And now you have
the case of a Minister who is India's principal spokesman on its foreign
policy, indicted before the whole world as having been a recipient of
commercial benefits allegedly in consideration for a political stand he was
taking prior to becoming a Minister in that office.

Sir, | am not referring to subversion of various institutions which has
taken place, which probably in this Session we will get a separate
opportunity to do that, but the common thread which is a serious matter of
concern on various issues which has been arising, which is really the core
of this debate, is that in consideration of political stances we take in
domestic polity or stances that we take as far as international issues are
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concerned, what is the influence of foreign entities on India's political entities.
Unfortunately, this is not the first occasion that a charge has been made.
This charge has been made almost contemporaneously in publications
which have recently come out.

Even earlier, and let me, Sir, through you, remind this House that when
Mr. Moyhnian wrote his book with regard to the influence of CIA on Indian
politics, shedding apart all technicalities, this House took up the issue
and discussed seriously what was contained in the book, 'A dangerous
place.' When Mr. Seymor Harsh made allegations against one of India's
principal politicians and a former Prime Minister, an allegation which
everybody disbelieved... (/nterruptions)

A TS TR (T : 319 Foretiar T o1 3 18 & o g0 o & ot siiferg, 3o
s St & AR # 7 o v .. (Saau)

st wrafa: a1y =% Se i .. (Sraur) 98 Tt giae .., (s aee
TG UF 91 G oifog ... (Sqa9r) 319 A3 dt 98, ISR ... (HIU) T®
&l =@ ... (SFaur) 78R G frae s e e, ag wd@ ... (SHau) &
fore, 33 wRe ... (qAuA) 36 feaa & wef & su aew d <=l 9 gt 1 rd oft
R ANfGITF Ad &, W AUFHT WE G S A, § T™HE 9R T Y L.
(zq99r)

SHRI JANARDHANA POOJARY (Karnataka): Sir, | am on a point of
order. (Interruptions)

ot wurfa: 3rw A genea B ¥R @ o 1d am ... (uaue) e e
ferarsll =1 tRta €, @ #1¢ 3 d & 119 e s Iwte 3, fREt context # 2,
@ 47 A permission AFT T | FH &1 Y %,W*MWW%WW
T eResEw IR F@ E, A da Rt I IR TcEIa R €
i 3udl ¢ aafaers aa 7d & e frae B W i R T st g, 9
e veet fowra @ 991 €, s erem # & 1 }, s SRR s wa e &, sy
o 7 fered w1 @ & ... (54a9T) Please take your seat. Nothing will go on
record ... (Interruptions) T 1 T R, 990 @ ¥ ok o aie e ¥ et
R 3 T @ ... (Haur) GE feafa § § s awa § fw o 6@ L
(=1349T1) Please take your seat ... (Interruptions) F&fere & s =war § 6

224



{29 November, 2005] RAJYA SABHA

3R &8 ANfasEE ad A HE 3R oY 3§ W e 39, @ F 3w @
W ... (HaurA)

SHRI VAYALAR RAVI (Kerala): Sir, | am on a point of order. Under
Rule 167 Sir, as you rightly said, it is a specific public matter. | don't
want to read out all that. But here the hon. Member is referring to a
discussion which took place in 1976. | am prepared to discuss on that.
This book will reveal everything. | am prepared to discuss. But my point
is this: what is the relevance of a 1976 discussion on this point? Sir, this
is only on the Volcker Committee's report. Let the hon. Member confine
te that. it will go against Rule 167. That is the point | am
making...(Interruptions)

sit gvrafa: 3 3 off A € L. (FEaum)...
SHRIVAYALAR RAV1: | obey your ruling. (Interruptions)
st wwefa: 9 }, 91 @ o .. (sHEam)...

SHRI VAYALAR RAVI: The very principle of discussing Rule 167 on a
matter ...(Interruptions)... is going to be ...(Interruptions)...

st |wrafa: 167 ® g1 Tafaem fEan ) 39 g% Fe A &% it is a very
substantive issue, pertinent issue. & F&1 I1Eh 7 | AfF feae &1+ fafie
TR AN TR AR E, T d@ i d o frf was amw®
&, R T ®eU oM W @, a9 ] Y S W awd €1 el
... (zrauF) +1¢ tfaivm 98 & ... (s7=9uM).... This will not go on record. 39
ufefty wa amd ... (sgeuaA)..., 3 et @amd at s w8
...(=@aA)... gfag, aifaw ... (=@uA)... Please take your seat. Please
take your seat. ¥ & ¥@ &m, (Interruptions) Let him speak. 319 Siferq |

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: My friends in the Treasury Benches need not get
s0 excited about facts which | have still not referred to.

SHRI JANARDHANAPOOJARY: You mentioned about the former Prime
Minister.

st GuH @O (IWES) : R wgH fafrer daa i iyt o aeia
T et &, & A SO wtaa wR R I gAdd, 3w At At
2o =1 9| W@ T g L (Haum)... 3T aug ¥ T wib wen At
TS Tt & L (Sraur). .. W, A wE € e uen fafret fae JeE-ild ufan
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& W & 1w g fafret siv ot gu & 1 oo Siech <t wrdR yy ey SRR
TR BT W EIGINA

it Iurafa: sifew)

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, my learned friends need not assume that
any cap fits them. So | have still not referred to the facts in detail. | have,
yesterday, given to the hon. Chairman a notice with regard to a fact that |
would be referring to one of the publications. When | come to that they will
be free to take their objection, | will respond to it. All that | am saying is
that this House under Rule 167 is discussing substantially one definite
issue and that substantially one definite issue is the Volcker Committee
Report where Indian political entites are alleged to have received economic
benefits on account of the alleged stand which they took. The common
threat to all these publications which have come, and this is not the first
time that this House is discussing it, | have the proceedings that this
House on 10th May 1979 discussed through a substantive motion
disclosures made by Mr. Daniel Patrick Moynihan, former US Ambassador
to India regarding alieged payment of US money for Indian election purposes
in India. The other House on 26th August, 1983 on a motion raised by the
Congress Party discussed the other publication "The Price of Power” by
Seymone Hersh. Therefore, this is not the first time in India’s Parliamentary
history that publications which made a disclosure with regard to payments
made to influence India's politics have been discussed in both Houses of
Parliament. They have been discussed in both the Houses of Parliament.
When | come to my substantive request to you with regard to the Mitrokhin
Archives, | will deal with this issue. But all that | am saying at this moment
now is, that you have the disclosures made with regard to CIA funding of
India’'s politicians funding in Mr. Moynihan's book. You have now in the
Mitrokhin Archives serious disclosures which are made. You have had

- allegations with regard to funding of various terrorist and insurgent
organisations...

SHRINILOTPAL BASU (West Bengal): Sir, | am on a point of order.

When we decided in the Business Advisory Committee méeting about
this subject and when the question of Mitrokhin Archives came up, we had
shown authentic documents to say that Mitrokhin Archives is a figment of
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imagination of a gentleman and the reproduction, as has been established
in the publication of the book itself, is not authenticated. So, to refer
Mitrokhin Archives as something authentic publication in itself—today it is
under the jurisdiction of Indian courts where certain facts by certain
individuals have been challenged—is not correct. Therefore, a reference to
Mitrokhin Archives, as authenticated document, on which the House can
deliberate, is, | think, against the principles on which rules of business of
this House have been constructed.

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Sir, when | come to the Mitrokhin Archives, |
certainly, place what my contention before you has been. And, | have
submitted that in writing also. But, for the moment, | am merely making a
reference with the object that disclosures are now coming and the latest
one being in a Report prepared with the UN really to investigate its own
functioning and management of the Qil-for-Food Programme. And, this is
a disclosure which cannot be taken lightly in this country. When we have
to investigate the truth of this disclosure and take the follow up action, the
entire country is concerned about the fact that we ask the right questions
by proceeding in the right manner. It is our regret that this Government has
deliberately chosen to proceed in the wrong manner so that it eventug)ly
draws blank as an answer and eventually comes out with a response that
we found nothing to substantiate what Mr. Volcker has said. What is it
exactly that Mr. Volker has said about India? You had a situation where
sanctions were imposed against lraq. But, obviously, the Iragi people had
to survive. | am not, for a moment, in this debate, going into the desirability
of the sanctions or otherwisg. But, it was a historical fact that they were
imposed. Therefore, you had the Oil-for-Food Programme where Iraq is
able to trade its oil on the UN pre-fixed price and in return what is
humanitarianly required for Iraq in terms of food, medicines and other things
it is able to purchase. The crux of the allegation is that there has been a
misdemeanour in the management of the Oil-for-Food Programme. And,
this mismanagement, amongst other facts, included the then Iraq regime
dishing out favours to individuals and political entities which have been
‘named in the Report. The methodology was very simple. Oil coupons
were issued in favour of certain beneficiaries. The Iraqi oil had a premium
in the global market. And, therefore, allotment of a coupon to purchase a
premium product had an element of profit in-built into it. Profit was therefore
being distributed to the beneficiaries. It has been now stated, and there is
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substantial evidence to back it up, that most of the beneficiaries who
received the coupons, received it depending upon the degree of their support
for the Iraqi cause and the degree of their opposition to the sanctions.
Therefore, the crux of the allegation is that you were the beneficiaries
named in the oil coupons and the beneficiaries who received coupons,
depending on the political and the diplomatic stand that you took on the
then issues which were confronting Iraq and which were of utmost concern
to Iraq, its Government and its people. Now, we suddenly find, when the
disclosures are made about Indian political entities amongst others who
have been named in this, that these coupons were virtually tradable in the
global market. Somebody had to go and pick up oil. You lift the oil and any
commercial entity, which is involved in the oil trading business, lifted oil
against such coupons. Whatever was the profit, it had to be shared between
various people. The commercial entity, which would trade in oil, would
certainly receive a part of the oil profit. it would have to share it with the
beneficiaries who were the coupon-holders. And, through certain banking
processes, the third shareholders in this profit had to be the persons by
virtue of payment into certain banking systems in Jordan or elsewhere
where the then Iraq administration would get the benefits back. So, the
coupon-holders were the beneficiaries. The oil trading company which
was used for lifting the oil was the beneficiay. And, then, a third part of the
profit has gone back to Iraq via Jordan by depositing it in the accounts
itseif. Now, what do the Volcker docuntents indicate? | am only going to
refer to three important pages with which we are concerned in this debate.
And my question, after referring to this is: Is this not a matter which makes
out a very, very srong prima facie case against people who are named
and, therefoe, a corect and a proper investigation in law must be carried
out? And, | am very sure, —I have also gone through the hon. Finance
Minister's statement in the Lok Sabha yesterday, —as to what kind of
inquiry and investigation the Government has embarked upon.

Table 1l deals with oil sales summary of contracting companies. So,
which are the companies that have traded in this oil? Table lll deals with
the non-contractual beneficiaries, and Table V deals with the surcharge
payments.

Let us first deal with Table I, which is a summary of oil sales by non-
contractual beneficiaries. A non-contractual beneficiary is a person who
was not a party to the contract. He was not in the business of buying or
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selling oil but, certainly, he was involved in some greasy transactions.
Why should a person who is neither buying oil not selling oil; who merely
takes a political or diplomatic stand become a non-contractual beneficiary
in an oil transaction, and who are the entities which are named? | am
_presently concentrating on two pages. At page 25, of Table I, it shows:
Beneficiary India, Congress Party, Country: India. The Party which has
lifted the oil against the Congress Party's coupon is Masefield A.G. the
quantum of oil is given, the phase in which this oil was lifted is given, the
mission country which lifted the oil is given as Switzerland. And for my
present purpose it is enough, Sir, the number of the contract of Congress
Party is also given, M/10/57. Let us briefly remember it as contract num-
ber 57, that is, the Congress Party contract.

The second contract with which | am concerned is at page 50. Benefi-
ciary: Mr. K. Natwar Singh, Country: India, Lifting Agency: Masefield A.G,,
Phase No. 9, Mission country: Switzerland. And, then, the contract num-
bers are given: M/9/120, and the second one which is more important is,
M/9/54. Let us remember this as contract number 54. So, thereis a con-
tract number 57 for Congress Party and a contract number 54 for Mr. K.
Natwar Singh. Notes of the public sector oil company SOMO allocation
records name the beneficiary and give his description as member of the
Indian Congress Party. This is the first disclosure that against contract
number 57 it is the Congress Party, against contract number 54, it is
Mr. K. Natwar Singh who are the beneficiaries.

Now, what does Table || show? Table Il at page 29 shows contracting
party who has lifted oil against these contracts. Contracting company
Masefield, Mission Country: Switzerland. Which are the two contracts
against which the Swiss Oil Trading Company has lifted oil? It is Contract
number M/9/54 and Contract number M/10/57. So, the Masfields is the
company which lifts the oil against the Congress Party's contract, where
allegedly the Congress Party is named, rightly or wrongly, Somebody
else may have misused the name, that's what their leader says. That
could be a possibility, which requires investigation. And, contract No. §7
is the other contract where the Masfields has lifted the oil. Now, there is
a second important disclosure, Sir, that this document makes; and, that
really clinches the entire issue. One need not be a criminal law investigator
or a criminal lawyer of Mr. Jethmalani's eminence. Against these two
contracts, Nos. 54 and 57, the Masfields decided to levy an illegal
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surcharge. That is the quantum of illegal surcharge which has to be
passed back to Iraq as a kickback. Now, what is the quantum of surcharge
which gives the entire game away, which the Masfields charged? For
contract No. 54, Mr. Natwar Singh's contract, it was 4,98,973 dollars.
That's an illegal surcharge. Right to the nearest dollar, | repeat, 4,98,973
dollars. For the Congress Party's contract No. §7, the Masfield made an
illegal surcharge of 2,50,224 dollars. So, the exact surcharge that the
Masfield charged against both the contracts is mentioned in this document.
This has to be paid back. Obvious. The Masfield says, "l have not dealit
with Iraq, the beneficiary of the coupons, as traded in coupons, and
given it to me, | give the surcharge back to you or your nominee | give the
surcharge back and pay it back to Iraq." Now, what is the third document?
It is Table V. The third document, which is Table V. at page 82, deals
with the two oil transactions of the masfield. Now, what are the oil
transactions of the Masfield? The oil transactions of the Masfield are
that the Masfield lifted the oil. And, against those two, what is the important
disclosure made? Let us first deal with contract No. 54, that is,
Mr. Natwar Singh's contract. Now, against Mr. Natwar Singh's contract,
who deposits the amount back for the Iraqi bnefit in the Bank of Jordan?
The names of two persons, who deposit this amount, are Mr. Andaleeb
Sehegal and Mr. Hamdan. Now, so far, they are notinvolved in the contract.
Why should an unconcerned third Party be depositing the money back?
How much is the money that they deposit? This is 4,98,518 dollars. This
is the amount that both of them disclose. | am just correcting the figure,
Sir. Why did they deposit iess? The surchage levy was 4,98,973. But
Andaleep Sehegal and Hamdan deposited only 4,98,518 dollars because
Table Il says that even though they levied a higher amount, the surcharge
which the Masfield paid for payment en route to Iraq is 4,98,518 dollars.

4,98,518 erad %1 aiarst 3911 3 fan dawiee d, foad et fig & 3aw 2

e 4% fag, and the identical amount Andaleeb Sehegal and Hamdan
pays back into the Bank of Jordan. Now, what happens to the congress
Party's contract? Amount of surcharge levied was 2,58,224 dollars. For
some reasons the Masfield kept a few dollars in its pocket; and, surcharge
paid is 2,560,022 dollars. Now, against the contract No. 57, m/10 of 57,
which is the Congress Party's contract, who pays in two instalments in
" the Bank of Jordan? How much is the amount paid? It is $ 2,50,022.
Does it required, as | said, a criminal law expert of Shri Ram Jethmalani's
calibre to realise what the nature of these transactions was. The first
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limb of this transaction is that Iraq is violating the sanctions and
distributing the coupons to alleged friends depending on the degree of
support they give to an Iraqi cause. The second limb is that you had
coupons issued in favour of the Congress Party and
Mr. Natwar Singh. You have the contract numbers against these coupons
which are also given, that is, 54 & 57. You have Masefield which agains
these coupons lifted the oil. Masefield makes an illegal surcharge. A
substantial part of the surcharge is paid and the route of payment is
through Mr. Sehgal. Sir, who is this Mr. Sehgal? Mr. Sehgal, from the
disclosures which have been made, is a very close family friend of Mr.
Natwar Singh. And, this is almost an admission in reality made on
television before the whole country. When more disclosures came out,
we were told that Mr. Sehgal is also a relative of Mr. Natwar Singh. We
have no objection against the friendship or the relationship, we do hope
that this relationship prospers even further, but that is not the real issue.
The real issue is, is the whole country, and the Parliament, going to put
blinkers on its eyes and say, 'well, it is a possibility somebody merely
added the name in the Annexure, this is not a case of any evidence? if
you see the statement given by the hon. Prime Minister on day one
saying that 'l give a clean chit to Mr. Natwar Singh’; the statement given
by the Prime Minister in Patna, | can assure you, Sir, that it looks like a
statement of defence lawyer and a very weak defence at that. 'That in
some annexure somebody could have only interpolated and added an
entry.’ If statements of this kind are going to be made at the very top,
then the question which this country is entitled to ask is, are you standing
by your stand which you took in the Congress Party in the mid 90's, that
Caesar's wife must be above suspicion, or, has the Prime Ministerial
office weakened your resolve and your commitment now is, 'l will presume
everybody to be innocent irrespective of the strong prima facie evidence
which is apparent against him?' Let us, Sir, just analyse all that is known.
At the cost of repetition, | may just repeat two or three sentences. The
first fact is that coupons have been issued allegedly in the name of
Congress Party with or without its knowledge, and Mr. Natwar Singh.
The second fact is, against those coupons which have a contract number,
masefield has lifted the oil. The third fact is that Masefield has levied and
paid an illegal surcharge back for Iraq. The fourth fact is the exact amount
of the surcharge paid by masefield is what Mr. Sehgal and Hamdan
Exports is depositing in the Bank of Jordan for the Iraqgi benefits. This is
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what is apparent from the Volcker Report. The Volcker Report says nothing
more. But, then, the strong point of our own liberal democracy is that not
many things remain secret. Truth also has a very inconvenient habit of
pushing itself out, even when it is concealed. And, now, you suddenly
have more and more disclosures coming by the day, and | am only gcing
to refer to a few other facts which have come to notice, and which are not
mentioned in the Volcker Report. The first fact is and it is really for my
friends from the Congress Party to seriously introspect this: Mr. Natwar
Singh led a delegation of the Congress Party in 2001 to Irag. On the
surface, there is nothing wrong if he ieads a delegation. The delegation
comprises of certain very eminent people. But, then, when he went to
Iraq, we were told that some other people just came along, somebody
came for a youth conference, somebody just accompanied as a good
son to a good father. But then | find the Congressmen with whom | speak
are embarrassed over the fact that the main delegation was a political
delegation. The Congress Party, probably, was entitied to send a political
deilegation. They claim, they have fraternal links with Mr. Saddam’s Party;
I have no quarrel with them on that. But then a group of young politico-
entrepreneurs accompanied the delegation as a business delegation.
And, all these innocent leaders who went as a part of the political
delegation did not realise what some spoiled brats were doing along with
them. You have now the statement made to Indian media by the then
ambassador, Mr. Tyagi, that 'who were the people’, and now it is admitted,
Mr. Jagat Singh, Mr. Natwar Singh's son, was one of them, Mr. Andaleeb
Sehgal was one of the, who was in Bughdad at that time. You have now
a new name cropping up, one Mr. jamir Saidi, who was cne of them. And,
this entire delegation of politico-entrepreneurs, which accmpanies them,
starts haveing meetings with oil officials, and what was told to
subsequently visiting Indian journalists who have gone on record and
written this that even in the premises of the Indian Embassy, some
meetings were held.' And, thereafter, what happens is, 'Mr. Sehgal’, a
'very mobile person' takes—I have with me the list—twenty-five visits to
that region. The first fifteen visits, Dubai-Baghdad via Oman, Irag-Dubai-
Baghdad viga Oman, Dubai-Baghdad-UK, Dubai-Baghdad, Dubai-Baghdad-
Oman, Dubai-Baghdad, each one of them. He certainly earned a lot of
frequent flying points travelling to Baghdad. But, then, as | said, are we
so naive to put blinkers on that this is the man who is paying the
kickbacks back to Iraq on the coupons for Mr. Natwar Singh? He is the

232



[29 November, 2005] RAJYA SABHA

mar: who is paying the kickbacks back to lrag on the coupons of the
Congress Party. He accompanied, as a young entrepreneur, the political
delegation of the Congress Party. He continued to make visits to Iraq
thereafter, and then we are told ‘what is wrong; he has business, therefore,
he goes'. What is wrong if my son accompanies me and comes with
me? You accompany as an authorised participant, a delegation of a
political party, you meet the oil officials in the premises of the Embassy;
you visil Baghdad on numerous occasions. The first fifteen of these twenty-
five visits are ali to Baghdad; and, then you are the gentlemen who against
the counons 1s making the kickbacks back to Iraq. There is only a very
littie journey now that the investigators have to go and undertake. The
rest is evident as far as these documents are concerned. Sir, telling lies
under thesa circumstances, taking liberties with the truth, is an important
circumstance against them. When the television went and Masefield
was asked or Masefield voluntarily made a disclosure and that disclosure
by Mr. Natwar Singh and his friends was played up in the media, masefield
told, 'we never dealt with Mr. Natwar Singh or Jagat Singh, we dealt with
Hamdan and Sehgal.’ the next day | saw Sehgal on television saying 'l
don't know, | have not heard of Masefield.' Obviously, you are trying to
hide behind the veil of the banking secrecy. Mr. Natwar Singh went on
record and said, "I have never seen"— and he spelt 'never' as though the
country did not know the spelling for the word never, NEVER—" a barrel
of oil.” You don't have to see oil in order to trade in it! Nobody accuses
you of being a loader; but you are certainly being accused of being a
nen-contracting beneiciary. You dabbled and transacted in documents.
Nobody accused you of going and picking up barrels of oil for yourself.
And then, you say—my family has no business links with Mr. Sehegal.
oMl vyou say you have no business links with Mr. Sehegal, but
«i ‘ortunately, these young politico-entrepreneurs were quite reckless.
They were travelling together, and thereafter travelling frequently, and
making payments into the Bank of Jodan. Also, after the 27th of October,
when the disclosures of the Voicker Report became public, from the
morning of 28th, the footprints had to be wiped off, wherever you had left
your trail and evidence behind!

Media organisations have now reported that all these gentlemen are
+: @ huddie. They are into dozens of telephone calls by the hour to each
yhet. Cals are made past midnight; they speak to each other. They
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speak to the third gentleman named and after speaking to him, the third
gentleman, in turn gets, in touch with Jordan, he gets in touch with the
UK. Now, this is one of the great advantages of an independent media in
this country. Even though they are privileged documents in terms of their
call sheets from the telephone companies, media got access to it. The
media came and made this disclosure on television. They made a star-
tling revelation. S0, you are in touch with each other. Who is this third
gentleman? | am told that he is a former lesser activist of the Congress
Party, active on the commercial front, associated with one Galala Trad-
ing of Baghdad and that is the nucleus where your investigation has to
really reach.

Having said so far that this is what is apparent from the Volcker
documents, this is what is apparent otherwise from disclosures that are
coming—what else needs to be investigated now: what else needs to be
investigated; what do you have so far and what is the rest that you have to
admit?

Sir, on the 3rd of November, after we were all disappointed with the
response of the hon. Prime Minister giving a clean chit to Mr. Natwar
Singh, 1 took the liberty of writing to the hon. Prime Minister. All this cannot
be a coincidence, as has been made out in television. What are the
coincidences, if you want to use the word 'coincidence' in all this? | set out
these coincidences in my letter to the hon. Prime Minister and we want a
reply from the Government on these specifically.

The first coincidence is, that an exact sum of Rs.7,48,540/-, which is
collected and paid by Masefield, is deposited by Hamadan. That is a very
great coincidence. The second coincidence is that the beneficiary is the
Congress and Mr. Natwar Singh, but the payment is made by Sehegal
and Hamadan. The third coincidence is, there has to be a link, as Masefieid
has said, between Hamadan and Mr. Sehegal and Masefield. The fourth
coincidence is that the families of Mr. Sehegal and Mr. Jagat Singh and
Mr. Natwar Singh are on the most intimate terms. The fifth coincidence is
that Mr. Jagat Singh and Mr. Sehegal travelled with Mr. Natwar Singh, who
happened to be in Baghdad at the same time. The sixth coincidence is
that the son accompanies the father and then, he is, of course, his father's
son! These are all coincidences. There is nothing wrong in each one of
them being there. But they are far too many!
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Then, you have the entire evidence, which has listed out their
subsequent communications with each other, their earlier travels and so
on. So, the first factor is, what is it that the Government or its investigating
agencies will have to investigate. The first is, who actually received the
coupons. On whose behalf were these coupons received? And where are
these coupons at present today? This will really answer the question,
rather than saying let us not discuss books. That is a secondary issue.
But it is a hard fact. We can ignore the report, we can ignore anything,
but who got the coupons who passed on these coupons to a trading
company? That is the second issue. Now, Sir, it is most important, and
that is my allegation against this Government, that this investigation
route, which they have taken, is completely faulty. It is now almost clear
as daylight that Masefield did the commercial transactions. Masefield
picked up the oil; it sold the oil; it made a profit. The profit could have
been shared in many ways. One part Madefield, obviously on commercial
principles having done the job, would have kept it with itself. One part
has gone back via Jordan to Iraq; and then the others have benefited
from the rest. Now, what ddes this involve? From the Masefield's accounts
in Switzerland what you require to investigate is the entire money trail-
from which account the money came in and what was the trail of that
money; who were the friends, who were receiving it for the party or the
individual to produce its balance sheet and say this entry is not there, it
is meaningless. Nobody is going to put in his balance sheet that | received
the money through illegal transactions. So, that money trail really has to
be investigated. And then, once you investigate the money trail, the rest
falls into places. It falls in its place. What do you do to the contrary?
Now, as against this, if you are to investigate this, what in law is the only
route which is permissible? Prima facie these documents make out a
very serious criminal case.

THE MINISTER OF STATE OF THE MINISTRY OF SCIENCE AND
TECHNOLOGY AND MINISTER OF STATE OF THE DEPARTMENT OF
OCEAN DEVELOPMENT (SHRI KAPIL SIBAL): Under what law?

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Sir, it is a matter of regret and | say this. My
friend Mr. Sibal says, "Under what law”.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Please tell me under which law.

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: We expect the response from the Government
...(Interruptions)...
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SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Please tell me under which law so that | can answer.
...(Interruptions)..

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: | am coming to this. | am coming to this. The
attitude of the Government has been as though the people of India or we,
in the Opposition, are to produce the documents and then they will
pronounce a judgementon it. Itis your job under the law, under the mandate
which we have ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: What is the offence? Please tell us the offence.
...(Interruptions)... Please tell the law.

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Yes, yes, | will tell you the law ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Then only | will answer you. | want to- answer you.
...{Interruptions)...

3t ARy ifvr (3T : [ KB EhR! T aret e R 1. (AIUH) ...

st gurafa: dw € Siw T A9 A2 I 4 (TAUR)... 3 ¥3 SE
.. (HEYA)... :

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: | am really keen to answer you. But, { would like to
know what is the offence ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: If the intentions of your Government are honest
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: What is the offence? ...(Interruptions)...

St Fuefy: AT T, §3-338 9 E St . (Fam)... Fige fasa
e A o 1. (HAYF).... IR ff o 3 e L (FEmE)...

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, if moneys have been transacted outside
India, kept outside India, traded outside India, it is elementary that the
Foreign Exchange Management Act comes into. Two, if the recipient of
foreign funding allegedly is a political party, then the Foreign Contribution
Regulation Act comes into this. The Government has moved in the first
matter, but it has failed to move in the second matter; obviously, it is
embarrassing for them. Thirdly and | am not going into the tax violations
and so on if the recipients, on behalf of either of the contracts, either
for the individual or the political party, at that time, were public servants,
as defined in the Prevention of Corruption Act, which includes the

236



[28 November, 2005] RAJYA SABHA

definition from the court, then, the Prevention of Corruption Act, on the
Amendmentin 1988 which Mr. Chidambaram brought about, is squarely
applicable. So, the three laws which Mr. Sibal, your Government wants
to know that it should move | am not referring to the law of morality
which is alient to this Government ...(Interruptions).. The three laws
...(Interruptions).. the three laws ...(/nterruptions).. and let me now teli
you ...(Interruptions).. let me now tell you why you have deliberately
chosen the wrong way. For layment, at times, it may appear to be
innocent. You have handed over the document to the Enforcement
Directorate under the Foreign Exchange Management Act knowing fully
well that the Foreing Exchange Management Act does not empower
the Enforcement Directorate with effective powers in terms of issuance
of letter rogatories to investigate the money trade. The crux of the issue
is when moneys came into the account of Masfield, how did they travel
and reach Hamdan? Who were the other beneficiaries in between?
That is the real crux of the issue. Your investigation must take the
correct course. It must take the right route; it must take the right answers;
only then, you will get the right answers. The only methodology known
to law by which the Swiss accounts of Masfield and the veil of the
further recipients can be broken is that you must fall within the
parameters of the Indo-Swiss treaty for joint cooperation. You must
make out a case where there has been a corruption with regard to
political individuals and political parties and it's only then that you will
get the right answers. If you go to them and say that FEMA has been
violated, therefore, lift it. You tried it once till November, 1989. That was
the only reason why in Bofors, FIR was not launched. Because without
the registration of a case, the Swiss won't entertain a request. The FIR
was not registered. it's only after the FIR was registered that they
accepted the letter rogatories and started giving documents. It's an
Indian Court under section 166 A of the Code of Criminal Procedure
which on the request of the investigating agency will issue a letter
rogatory to the investigative judge in Switzerland who will interrogate
witnesses, who will get details of the bank accounts and the money
trade and send it back to India. Now, for that to take place, you need
an FIR to be registered. You have a document with contract number
saying "Congress Party is the beneficiary”". Moneys have been paid to
a member of the Congreass Party; the other beneficiary, his close
family friend, has returned back the kickbacks and you don't register -
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an FCRA case and you don't register a case under the Prevention of
Corruption Act; you merely start enquiring into either revenue violations
or currence law violations. Let me just warn this Government, Sir, that
you continue to investigate only revenue and currency violations, you
will have a dead wall standing in front; and the Swiss are not going to
cooperate. You have to come within the parameters of the treaty. It
provides for dual criminality. The offence must be an offence of corruption
available in both jurisdictions. It must not be a revenue or currency
offence. There must be an FIR under registration. These are three pre-
conditions. Then, you get the Indian court to send letter rogatories,
you will unveil the mask of Swiss secrecy, but if you set on the right
course. it's a case where we don't lift the veil in case of Government
because in parliamentary democracy, parties form the Government;
the party in Government is investigating itself. That's almost like suicide.
Therefore, let us now embark upon the wrong route and get 'no’ as an
answer from Switzerland and once we get 'no' as an answer from
Switzerland, say, well, this is the end as far as the banking secrecy of
Switzerland is concerned. Now, what do you? You go to two very
honourable people. You go to Mr. Virendra Dayal-no quarrel with his
personality or his background. At a diplomatic level, start finding
documents. If he goes to the United Nations and asks Mr. Volcker,
either to him or the Enforcement Director who went with him, the
documents which are with Mr. Volcker will be handed over. But
Mr. Volcker has only got those documents which are the basis of this finding.
Mr. Volcker has not unveiled the secrecy of the Swiss banking laws.
Mr. Volcker can tell you who got the oil coupons, how are the kickbacks
paid, how much was the amount, but then who received it from Masfield?
People didn't take coupons to give them as complimentaries to certain
friends. People took coupons who were intelligent people. And these
intelligent people took coupons with a particular method; otherwise
why should somebody run the risk of souring his own name? So,
Mr. Voicker will give you the documents which are the basis of this
report. Volcker won't tell you what the further route is, which is, how to
crack the secrecy of the Swiss banking system, and then get all the
details how moneys have reached, whom and which company has
received them. You don't get into that entire trail, and those documents
come to India, and yesterday, when my colleague, the Leader of the
Opposition, Shri Jaswant Singhiji, raised this question, his very serious
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1.00 P.m.

query, was responded by the Government saying that the Enforcement
Director has it. What will the Director of Enfcrcement do with the limited
exercise, limited to his case? Then Enforcement Director does not
have the sufficient powers. But my question, supplementing what Shri
Jaswant Singhji had said yesterday, is this: Is the Prime Minister of
India, who sent Mr. Virendera Dayal there, entitled to see those
documents or not? If he is not going to see those documents, he made
a statement, this may be an intrigue, these are not corroborated by
evidence, and therefore, | shift him from a portfolio to a non-existing
portfolio. We are concerned in this House not only with the Enforcement
Directorate investigations, we are concerned with a serious question:
Is this FDI in politics coming? And | am amazed that my friends in the
Left, who should be in the forefront of opposing this, are going as strong
pleaders of the Congress Party in this regard. Sir, the Prime Minister,
the whole country has acknowledged him, as | said, when he said,
Caesar's wife must be above suspicion, has been a very clean politician.
Why should he give clean chit even without seeing these documents?
And when the documents have come, why should he sustain Mr. Natwar
Singh even for a minute as a Member of his Council of Ministers if the
documents give supportive evidence? Why should that evidence not be
shared with the people of India where there is a big question mark as to
what are the details? Sir, as all great leaders and Prime Ministers have
to prove their authority when they are in Government, the magazine
"Economist” has posed a question to each one of us, the Indians. "Is
the Prime Minister merely in office or is he also in power? If you are
merely in office and sustaining your continuation in office, then where
your moral authority has to be exercised, that itself is a question mark:"
(Interruptions)

Sir, let me come to the second limb of investigation. The second limb
of investigation is that Justice Pathak Committee has been appointed.
Justice Pathak is a very honourable man. | have no grievances on that
score. What did the Prime Minister say and what did my friend, Mr. Kapil
Sibal, say, when in relation to Tehelka, after consulting the Supreme Court
a Commission of Inquiry was set up?

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: What did you do?
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SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Let us now discuss what you have done
Mr. Sibal, fet us now expose your double standards; iet us expose the
double standards of the Prime Minister in this respect _(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: We saw those criminal offences. We saw the
cash ...{Interruptions)... Why did you not lodge an FIR against Jaya Jaitley?
(Interruptions) If you see it on Indian TV, itis not okay. If you see on foreign
TV, you believe it. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, we were told by the Prime Minister and the
country was told repeatedly by my friend, Shri Kapil Siba!, "Whny sihculd
you have a Commission of Inquiry? The day we are voted to powser, w2 wit
scrap it off. What is required is an FIR. Upon an FIR, the C2! must stz an
investigation. "What we are now told that in the face of all these dis.clesures,
we won't have an FIR; we won't even have a Commission of Inquiry, wa will
only have a Committee. ...(/nterruptions)... | have great regard for my friend,
Mr. Chidambaram.

" THE MINISTER OF FINANCE (SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM): You had
briefed Mr. Advani ...(Interruptions)... | hope that you have corrected yourself
since last evening.

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Let me tell this House what was not, probably,
mentioned by you in the other House and the reasons why you appointed
a Committee of Inquiry. Instead of appointing Commission of Inquiry, the
country was told yesterday that Justice Pathak wanted it to be a
Committee. Fair enough. We reject the idea of both the Commission
and the Committee. The reasons are very clear. The first reason is, to
crack the secrecy of the Swiss banking system, the honour and the
stature of Justice Pathak is not going to come handy. What is going to
be required is section 166A of the Code of Criminal Procedure. The Swiss
will dismiss any request from a Committee of Inguiry and would not lift
the veil of their secrecy, if you say there is no case under investigation
and there is no case of corruption, and it is the Committee which is
asking you. You chose to go back on what you have been proclaiming to
the whole country that there must be no Commission; there must be an
FIR. What did you do to Justice Pathak? When you ask me if | briefed
my leader or not, the question which you must ask yourself is: Does
Justice Pathak have the power to send a letter rogatory to Switzerland?
Is Switzerland, in the absence of preconditions, the conditions precedent,
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being satisfied, going to entertain his request? Or, is Justice Pathak,
after a couple of months or years, going to reach a dead-end and say,
"Well, we followed the wrong course; we asked the wrong questions;
and we did not get the right answers"? That is the destination which you
have ghosen to walk upon. That is the path which you have chosen to
walk upon. Now, what do you do? You say, "All right, it is not a
Commission, but it is a Committee". Now, under section 11, | straightaway
concede ...(Interruptions)...

SHR! JANARDHANA POOJARY: Sir, it is repetition. How many times |
is he going to tell us this? ...(Interruptions)...

it awafa: 3mg Sfeq)
& WA G938 : 954 A (SAFHF) ...
st gyrafa: sga osg 78, 430, S FRES |

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA (Jharkhand): He will repeat it till you understand.
...{Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please conclude. ...(Inferruptions)... Please conclude.
...(Interruptions}...

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, | will take a few minutes more. Why did you
make ita Committee of Inquiry, not a Commission of Inquiry? You made it
a Committee and said, "Justice Pathak, we will give you all the powers of
the Commission. It amounts to the same". You gave him substantial powers
of the Commission. But Mr. Cidambaram, whoever drafted this, knew that
you were investigating your own self, you own party. So, there is one
power which you did not give to Justice Pathak and that power is the heart
and soul of the Commission of Inquiry Act, the power under section 8(b) of
the Commission if Inquiry Act. The power uncier section 8(b) is that if any
person or entity is to be investigated, you state the charges against him
and give him notice. Any Commission of Inquiry, in the face of these
documents, on the first day itself, would have framed questions under
section 8(b) and issued to the Congress Party and Mr. Natwar Singh. But
that is not something that you want. You don't give Justice Pathak the
power under section 8(b) to issue notice to your own party. Then you want
to tell the whole country and you want me to brief Mr. Advani that all that
you have done is prefectly with a very honourable desire! Obviously, Sir, it
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is not merely an attempt but a crude attempt at a cover-up.
...{Interruptions)...

it gymafa: 3§

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, | have just two more question. When we refer
to this document, | have given you notice yesterday and in the notice |
have mentioned that since the issue involved is foreign funding to influence
India's politics, | can't understand why anybody should not be concerned
about it. | thought my friends from the Left would be in the forefront of
opposing it. But, then, we are told today by my friend, Mr. Nilotpal Basu,
that the Mitrokhin Archives should not be debated. Moynihan can be
debated. (Interruptions)... The Volcker Committee's Report can be debated.
(Interruptions)... Sir, if you say that it can be debated separately, | have no
difficulty. (Interruptions)...

SHRINILOTPAL BASU : Sir, will he yield for a moment? (Interruptions)...

Sir, will he yield for a moment? (Interruptions)... Mr. Jaitely, would you
yield for a minute?(/nterruptions)...

ot wyrafa: & G@n wwea g . (FFaym) oy, Sfeq @ @€ L (mEyr) g3
s ST ... (sgagm) " 956, 3 Mitrokhin 3R Moynihan &t # tens
& He | 39 519 subject B U AT S §, 39 Wy fede i @l ¥ ¥,
that is enough.

SHHIARUN JAITELY: Sir my only request to you is this. | have given a
notice yesterday requesting that | may be permitted to refer to it today. Let

me just say this for your consideration whether it is to be allowed today or
it is to be allowed separately.

SHRI VAYALAR RAVI: He has already given his ruling. He has not
allowed it. (Interruptions).

SHRI ARUN JAITELY: He has not said that it cannot be discussed
separately.

it gyrufa: §3 wenss = fpan & .. (=ayrE)

SHRI NILOTPAL BASU: Sir, | would request him to yield for a moment
because he has referred to me. My question is about the authenticity of
the Mitrokhin archives. Mitrokhin archives is not any official document.
Neither is it an account of Mitrokhin himself.
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MR. CHAIRMAN : MR. Basu...
SHRI NILOTPAL BASU: ltis a collection of articles written by people.

#it wymqfa: firex 579, Please hear me, @ &4t Wt 39 9T =i &rft, @1 5@
FYEA W I W .. (HEauH) A Ifge W, ¥ A W w W g
..(FEA) 39 S ... (AqGr)

it elicae 97 : W O TR W A S L (SaaET)
i wrafa: swe Sfsw) ... (saEu™)

it ~freieaet 9g;: TR o o IR T € 6 fRa-faa ol 1 wia we fren
¥...(3uM)

ot gyt 319 3E SR & Gfs 1§ faEe st subject # TETS: T/ FUWTE,
Taama St wHiTE & ... (s999M)

SHRI ARUN JAITELY: | will take just one minute on the subject and
then | will bow to your ruling. Let me just correct the record. My learned
friend says that this is a collection of articles. My case in the notice that
| have given to you, Sir, is not merely based on the fact that Mitrokhin
archives Il are a book. ...{Interruptions). '

SHRI VAYALAR RAVI: Sir, what is this?

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE (West Bengal): Sir, we are discussing
only Volicker report.

st gwafa: Wy g =l R .. (A 9 We, S wifeq 5o ot e
B, sifs S femrym &, Ut s L ... (H99m)

st SEoT Sewt : wuTafa s, 3 ¥4 | A |, ﬁmm@wgm
g A S T T, 98 TR F-WY W ¥ 1 Sir, Mitrokhin archives |1, in the
notice | have mentioned, is not articles of individuals. | have annexed a

copy of the Kings Committee, a Committee of the House of Commons
which clearly establishes that this is ...(Inferruptions).

SHRI VAYALAR RAVI: Sir, what is this?

it guTafa: oy AfsT L (sgaur) § T W TS T8 SEm ) S9E
ferEdE ... (Haam)
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SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, | have to conclue. | will take just two minutes.
At qwrafa: o & 772 F complete =X Afswi
gt Ireo Set: g3 D fire o =fee w1

sit awrefa; A €, 3 D e 1 19 99 @ T feg 1 = Mitrokhin
3 Moynihan &1 {6 TEl 3@ | 319 T FH e |

it Sraie it : ey, Fewt @ fagan

"SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Sir,our charge very clearly is that this entire
exercise is in the direction of a whitewash, a cover up. Without a proper
criminal law investigation, without a letter rogatory, all these matters are
going to become meaningless. You still have the concerned individual,
Shri Natwzr Singh, in the face of all this, as a member of the Union Cabinet.
In doing so, Sir, itis not only the image of this country, this Government or
the Prime Minister, but all of us which is in question. You have the Prime
Minsiter and his party and his Government taking a stand by revoking the
Justice Phukan inquiry notification and saying, "No Commission; the
correct course is FIR in criminal case." Now he changes the stance. You
have the Prime Minister and his party saying, "Why are Mr. Advani and Mr.
Joshi in the Government?" Even though it is a case of different category.
Now he says that they are entitied to be in the Government, if not with
portfolio, without portfolio. You then have the Prime Minister undertaking a
long journey from his valued principle of Caesar's wife must be above
suspicion, to now coming up and saying, "Well, there is a presumption of
innocence". What kind of flixible principles are these? Are these principles
only intended to remain in power and then not exercise that power where
you require the moral authority really to redeem yourself? The hon. Prime
Minister is not here, but some of his senior and very distinguished colleagues
are here. Just one quotation, and | wili be done with. Have you flipped your
principles to suit that side of the House you are sitting on? This is a very
interesting quotation which describes this. it is from 'The Man of Destiny'
by Mr. Bernard Shaw. He says, "There is nothing so good or so bad that
you will not find an Englishman doing it. But you will never find an
Englishman in the wrong; he does everything on principles. He fights you
on a patriotic principle. He robs you on a business principle. He enslaves
you on a moral principle. He bullies you on a manly principle. He supports
the king on a loyal principle, and he chops the king's head off on the
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republican principle. But whatever he does, whether it is 'presumption of
innocence' or that 'Ceasar's wife must be above suspicion’, it is all on a
principle. Whether it is a commission of inquiry or a FIR, it is based on a
principle. Whether it is having tainted Ministers or not, it is on a principle.
Sir, the least that the Prime Minister must do is to put this investigation on
a correct course and get rid of tained colleagues who are an embarrassment:
to the country ali over the world.

The question was proposed.
St gWTafa: 9T HY A Qo 7% @ fa wfiE w) e

The House then adjourned for lunch at twelve minutes past on of the
clock.
The House reassembled after lunch at two minutes past two of the
clock, [MR. CHAIRMAN in the Chair.]

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr. Chairman, Sir, | rise to oppose the motion
moved by my learned friend under Rule 167. Sir, | have great admiration for
my learned friend for his flights of imagination. And it is a very Kubrik flight.
And, unfortunately, he has fallen into his own trap. He is right. If you ask
the wrong question, you will get the wrong answer. And all the questions
that he asked today were the wrong questions. And, naturally, he could
not come up with the right answers.

If you remember, Mr. Chairman, Sir, he started off by saying that this is
a Congress coupon. The Report says, "Congress is a nhon contractual
beneficiary"; "Natwar Singh is a non-contractual beneficiary". So, this is a
case of Congress coupon anid Natwar coupon. And then, towards the end
of the debate, he said there was a very limited investigation that was
required to be done. And what is that investigation? He said three things.
Number one, who received the coupons? But, if it was a Congress coupon,
why do you ask that question? Then, he asked, "On whose behalf?". So,
if you assume itis a Congress coupon, or, a Natwar Coupon, then why are
you asking these questions—who received the coupons; on whose behalf
were these coupons received; where are they today? So, you concede,
and rightly so because somewhere there is a sense of balance, that you
do not know what these coupons are all about; on whose behalf they were
issued; who took them; who encashed them; where is the money; into
which bank account the money has gone; who has got the kickback; what
is the extent of the kickback. That is why, in the course of my learned
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friend's erudite opening, | asked the question if | could know what was the
offence that had been committed.

Mr. Chairman, Sir, obviously, offences have been committed. Number
one under FEMA. No. 2-under the Prevention of Corruption Act and No. 3 -
under FCRA. Now, as my learned friend should know there is no criminal
liability under FEMA. So, no criminal offence.....

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: That is why you have chosen only FEMA.
(Interruptions)

_SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Don't interrupt me. (Interruptions) | would have
thought that you would have studied all these. That is why | asked the
question. It is very unfortunate. You said FEMA, knowing full well that
FEMA does not attach any criminal liability. For criminal liability to be
attached under FERA, the offence should have been prosecuted prior to
June 1, 2002.

it s o *

sft wvofy: 38 Bfeq) ... (sFaumA)... 29 &8 W H e Td FEm L.
(=gaeM)... 38 R&TE @ 7a &ifag) ... (=2au).. It will not go on record.
...(Interruptions)... {B TE L. (W), 78 I W& sTwm L. (FHaum)....
A FEE, 48 S L. (AAYM).... 319 S TFYL...(FTA9H).... 319 33 A9 |
...(ABYIA).. .39 A3 B ... (FUR ). 7 wWiawE & famr 218 semm @) g
W e S L (EEuE).L

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: So, Mr. Chairman, Sir, clearly there is no criminal
liability under FEMA. As far as the Prevention of Corruption Act is concerned,
you have to be a public servant on that day when the offence is alleged to
be committed. Now, everybody knows and it is a matter of record that the
Congress Party, as a political party, cannot be a public servant. And, as
far as Mr. Natwar Singh is concerned, he became a public servantand a
Member of this House in April, 2002. All the alleged transactions that my
leamed friend has invited our attention to are all transactions in 2001. One
in March, 2001; one in May, 2001; one in June, 2001 and one in November,
2001. So, the Prevention of Corruption Act is not attracted because he
was not a public servant. Then, he says, "No, no; but, then, FCRA is
attracted.' But to establish an offence under FCRA, you have to shaw that
a political party took money, accepted money, or, that a member of a

*Not recorded.
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political party who is an office-bearer accepted money. There is nothing in
the Volcker Report to show that. My learned friend made much of those
documents. He said, look at the entries. Entry in Table 3 shows. Then, we
look at Table 3, right away. It shows beneficiary-Shri K. Natwar; country-
India. 1t does not show. This is only a conclusion. This beneficiary,
K. Natwar is not a document. | don't understand it. It is not a document. It
is a conclusion. Now, on what basis did Mr. Volcker come to the conclusion
that K. Natwar Singh was the beneficiary? Those documents are not
disclosed in the Volcker Report. Not disclosed in the Volcker Report. If
those documents were disclosed in the Volcker Report, then, | need not
argue the case any further. Then, of course, the law must take its course.
So, the primary evidence is not disclosed in the Voicker Report. The primary
evidence is the document on the basis of which you say that Natwar
Singh took money, or, on the basis of which you say the Congress Party
took money. That is not there. You can prove that by secondary evidence,
under the Evidence Act. This is not even secondary evidence because
secondary evidence means certifled copies of the primary evidence because.
the primary evidence is not available. So, the documents on the basis of
which Volcker could have come to a conclusion are neither disclosed by
Volcker in his Report nor given to anybody, and Mr. Jaitley says that an
offence has been committed.

Mr. Chairman, Sir, this is the problem. When political parties take an
about-turn and apply doubie standards, and when there is an over-
enthusiastic argument, you always fall into an error. Mr. Chairman will
remember, there was a time when we saw some primary evidence on tape
which was in the possession of Government. Primary evidence and not
conclusions! What happened to that? What happened to the law of morality
that my learned friend was talking about?

Imagine, here is a Government which has set up the Commission to
get the primary evidence; then there was a Government which had the
primary evidence and sent it outside India to get an expert opinion to say
it is not primary evidence! When you had the primary evidence in your
possession, you questioned the authenticity of that evidence. We are
trying to determine the authenticity of the canclusions of the Violcker Report,
because we did not have the evidence. We are trying to arrive at the truth.
And when it came to you, you tried your very best to hide the truth! You
had the primary evidence and you chose not to lodge an FIR. We do not
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have the primary evidence. Till we get it, we cannot lodge an FIR. The then
Enforcement authorities were helping the accused. The Enforcement
authorities are now questioning people.

I am just trying to talk about the morality that you talked about. The
then Government in power relied upon that very primary evidence to
prosecute or to deal with the members of the Defence services while
members of political parties and office bearers of political parties were not
dealt with. What happened? My learned friend was at the helm of affairs
then! You chose not to inquire into the conduct of those people who took
money on camera. Not to inquire.

Mr. Chairman, Sir, you remember, when the scandal broke out on 14th
March, 2001, what happened? When the scandal broke out, from 2001 to
2004, nothing happened. No inquiry against the political beneficiaries. No
inquiry. Either by Venkataswami Commission or by Phukan Commission,
no inquiry. And not a single person was inquired into. In fact, the Government
was helping the accused. You see the affidavits before the Tehelka
Commission and you will find this. Let us not talk about political morality.
Itis not going to gel. The people of India are not going to buy that argument.

‘Remember what happened in the petrol pump scam. of the 3,850
allotments made about 3000 went to RSS and BJP workers. The primary
evidence was in your possession. What did they do? No FIR was lodged.
(Interruptions) Let us not talk about the law of morality. | would never have
touched it. (Interruptions)

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have made your case.

o Q5 1S (ITI) : |, T TIord SO0 S 11 @ 4, (SHAHH)....

ot gwrafa: 3 2, 39 A3 TR ... (FHFEM)... SfSw, 1. (HIUH)...
ot TR IS: |, FE TSN A L L (). L

it wyrafa: afee S .. (s@aum)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Because he talked about the law of morality, 1 am
touching it. (Interruptions)

SHRI JASWANT SINGH(Rajasthan): Sir, are you going to keep within
the ambit of the subject or are we allowed to go outside? Then, we will

start discussing the Mittrokhin also. This is not permissible, Sir. Sl fawa g,
I W AEHL .. (HAYM)....
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#t guafa: ¥ ¥ wefem ... (saaam)...

ft gz one: W, Wfafe w1, dacw F1 9 B R, BE e @
(Haur)...

st gvgla; 3mg ARfaie =1 99 |ifen | g, (aguT)...

o qeET fa=1(FRES) : T, 7R TH 45 TS T F61 AN FeA YEF 4, Al
amzﬁwrﬁqzﬁﬁ?i..(mm)...

it vEArEEYT wifor; 1947 @ fAmdd, SEs o 4 ot fimndd L. (saau)...
#it g ore: a9 | A SR sardd s == fean € L. (saauH) ..

St THeUWe Jreearferdn: WY, 3193 goae U ST ol ff, 01 5% o« AR [/
A St & a1 el ?

2t e : P Sl ¥ (9 9 A S 9d et €, 399 A fiedw w5 9
e 4 e W@ W@, St S A A )L (). 3T 3 91 g, S8 R
Y3 9w | F o § =rem § 5 s Mifafe f f@va W aga e e £ o,
S ATY oo W 3 IR .. (SHIYH)...

2 THeTge ATTANAAT: 30 W I= YE T8 O I TEied A IS e | (SAaHH)...

i e fasae : diceh &) 8 9@, (qaeH).. W, a5 g3 4t ifdfera
wfafe #t, & g @ wifsa s gFa § 5 afafera Dfafe w1 am s 38
T |

it wyrafa: 3 ¥, @ gon T .. (=aaum). .
3 FTae faeaet : 9 & &8 Whal §, 3971 6 8 GHar g .. (AI9H)....
it = @re: F ARfafe i am .. (sHaur)...
st gyafa: A 999, 9 SR L. (FTYH)....
it g oe: A e F I F R (FHEuH)...

+ 3t G ; JAEE 959, MY S WET . (FFUH). .,

3 VIR, S G Ao FE 9 319 T § 9 9 . (SAaET). .

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr. Chairman, Sir,.....(/nterruptions)...

Sl TPuge STedaleran: T9 YR A 996! e 39 S, T L. (SAaHF). ..
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st gvafa: 83 99 9= ... (s@ay[)... f@e, o9 de-de § §e...
(HAQYU)... 9= 39 et 9Id ® & (3qa4)...

A9 A @ 8 stg-drg 9 .. (aau ). A7 379 %% feqn... (saaum™)...

St TQeTHe Aeqaferar: 3 ARfAS 9T o1 2 . (SAFUF).... 100 @ WH
faeeht &5 =) =l ..(qaYr)....

st gurafa: T e 99, AR @ S Se 42, (SHa). ..

#it THTHe QAN : 371 WRIGTE &1 90T .. (SqaYH)....

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please take your seat. (Interruptions) Please take
your seat. (Interruptions) )

THE MINISTER OF PARLIAMENTARY AFFAIRSAND MINISTER OF
INFORMATION AND BROADCASTING (SHRI PRIYARANJAN
DASMUNSI): Sir, we have heard with rapt attention to Arun Jaitley's speech.
Let the House listen to him aiso.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr, Chairman, Sir, perhaps many people...
SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Sir, | will....
SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: No, i am not yielding.

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: No, | know you are not yielding, | am appealing
to the Chairman. (Interruptions) Sir, please tell him to talk on the subject
and not to preach morality to us. What right does he have to preach
morality to us?

A wvrafa; 93 S g ) A7y S, it S L. (S|EuH)..

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr. Chairman, Sir, | do believe
that....(/nterruptions)...

A elraeray: *

At T eqarfen: *

A TRARage i *

ft T srgafar:

st gviryfa: oy s L. (Fagm).. 5% 9o ffae L. (aum).. ag fEEw

*Not recorded.
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& L. (V). A R R TE R (aeR). A w61, 98 S
o (STRAUF).... A9 A W W AFY L. (TGH),..

it TETEe SEaTiaan: wvafa Si, WS WA U@ 918 #1 A $3-43 faed
| an iR gEd 9 L (saaem)...

#t vl g e wad &) ... (avm)....

st quenwe Agefaan: T, W, foe w9, v 2 sl
(). AEEE

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: You might strike what is being said in this
House from the record of the House but the whole world is watching the
proceedings of the House live. Therefore, Sir, for anyone to say that this

will be struck off makes no sense. Times have changed. Technology has
changed. ...(/nterruptions)...

it wvirafa: ¥ v Frag wE o fow o Sieelt wea e @ 4, 39 wwa of
W HHR 9 371 G SR waH A forw fefid & g A o g d, A amsan §
f = 3w fau Wi...(=aum)...

s qEerEe Fgganfean: fefad #ew .. (=qaum)...

sit gwrafy: w& e, 3efte) F 39 fraga e sean g e ome vi| o 3wt
¥ T 1 o 99t o1 it el ¥ iR TH v =i A waNg I @ wEa &, AfFA Ay
e w I, S A @ R Y e #1 v § s O, gR

w7 W oft #f e off fede o w e € e 9" g 9 & o Saw g
& o +ff wrfes gt & dar @ =rfen) .. (Eum)...

it T Fegten: e # aret o # oit g 6 g am 3 )

sft wyrafar: afe, sfag, & T T @ T T L (FEeF).. @S AT
AT ...(HAAE)... €9 O T W L. (HEYA)... 3" e, SifE .
(HAUF)... 39 IS T ... (FEAYA)... 9 A3 ABC ... (HquM)... Afag, sy,
sy ...(=aur)... & wra g w2 FEa g fF 33 9 .. (EUH)..

SHR! KAPIL SIBAL: This is completely wrong ...(Interruptions)... This

*Not recorded.
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is not fair that they are not allowing me to speak ...(Interruptions)...- Ten
minutes have been wasted like this.

Mr. Chairman, Sir, | would like to inform the House and perhaps, many
do not know some of these facts, Mr. Voicker was not operating like a
Grand Jury. He had no powers of a Grant Jury. He could not summon
evidence. He could not summon witnesses. He could not ask for this, that
or the other. He had no coercive powers. So, whatever Mr. Volcker got was
on the basis of voluntary disclosures made from time to time.

SHRI N.JOTHI (Tamil Nadu): What power does Mr. Pathak have?
...(Interruptions)...

=it gvrafa: 39 =9 9 1q Sifee | Let him speak ... (Interruptions)... He is
speaking about Volcker ... (Interruptions). ..

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Sir, ! cannot continue my speech like this
...(Interruptions)... | will not speak like this ... (Interruptions)... If this is the
way they behave, | cannot speak ...(Interruptions)... If they don't want me
to speak, | will not speak ...({Interruptions)...

THE MINISTER OF DEFENCE (SHRI PRANAB MUKHERJEE): Sir,
this is not fair. We have listened to Mr. Arun Jaitley with rapt attention and
now everybody is getting up and interrupting him! What is
this?...(Interruptions)...

SHRI SHAHID SiDDIQUI (Uttar Pradesh): Let there be a civilized debate.
Let the people think that we are civilized ...(Interruptions)...

st wfuer fasaer: 3o7n 993 a1 Q€ foar fean ... (sgawe)... .. Thisis not fair.
#it gvafa: 3% §, 9 €, 39 Sifeg |

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr.Chairman, Sir, the point that | was making was
Mr. Volcker was not operating like a Grand Jury. He was receiving
documents and | tried to figure out how is it and in what manner did the
name of the Congress Party and Shri Natwar Singh, come into these
records. And, | wish that my learned friend on the other side had also
made those investigations because when | tell him how it all happened he
himself will be surprised.

Mr. Chairman, Sir, Mr.Volcker set out to do the inquiry sometime in
April, 2004, and the final Report came in October,2005. The first interim
Report that Mr. Volcker submitted was on February 3, 2005. And thereafter,
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there were three more Interim Reports--one was on March 29, 2005, one
was on August 8, 2005, and one was on September 7, 2005--till the final
Report. And, the final Report was submitted on October 7, 2005. Now, the
first Interim Report that Mr. Volcker gave on February 3, 2005, did not
contain either the name of the Congress Party or the name of Mr. Natwar
Singh. But, on February 9, 2005, Certain proceedings took place. Those
proceedings were before the hearing of the Sub-Committee on Oversight
and Investigations of the Committee on International Relations of US. Before
that, in that Committee, some testimony was given by a gentleman called
Mr. Nimrod Raphaeli. He is a Ph.D. and he runs a company called MEMRI-
-Middle East Media Research Institute.

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA: It is not a company.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Itis an institute. It is in Washington. In the course
of that hearing-- and | will refer you to page 29 of that -- he submitted a
prepared statement before the sub-Committee. And, he said that it is,
perhaps, a tribute to the freedom of Press introduced in Iraq in the wake of
operation 'lraqi Freedom' that Iragi newspapers should have ben able to
expose a scandal that has international reverberations. The Oil-for-Food
scandal was made public by a liberal Iraqgi daily Alimada's publication.
Cver 270 individuals and entities had received vouchers, providing for the
purchase of oil below market price. The Middle-East Media Research
Institute translated the article and brought it to public attention in the
United States and everywhere, cuiminating in an investigation by various
committees of the US Congress and other Governments. So, what the
gentleman Nimrod Raphaeli gave, was a translation of a newspaper report,
appearing in Iraq, under the title A/Mada, in which a list of 270 entities was
given, as having received money. So, he submitted the statement. And,
there is testimony which goes on. Ultimately, at page 39, Mr. Raphaeli
talks about vouchers received by various people. | don't want to go into the
number. At page 39, Mr. Raphaeli said, the list was confirmed by the
Doulfer Report. "There is absolutely no question about the authenticity
and accuracy of the list". | am reading from the proceedings which say,
"There is absolutely no question about the authenticity and accuracy of
the list." So, it is accurate as it was published by the newspaper. So, the
accuracy of this list is based on a publication by a newspaper. This is
Mr. Jaitley's case ...(Interruptions)... This is Mr. Jaitley's case.
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SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, | have a point of order. The reason for our
motion was that this Government is not honestly trying to investigate the
matter, but want to reach a dead-end. Mr. Sibal has just started. We will
have the benefit of listening to him. But if opening is clear, that instead of
speaking as a Minister...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: What is his point of order?
SHRIARUN JAITLEY: | am coming to the point of order ... (Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Which rule has been violated? You can't give a
speech. | did not interrupt you. Please. Let me complete. This can'tbe a
point or order. How | proceed in my debate is my business.
...(Interruptions)... what point of order is this? You cannot ... (Interruptions)...
There is no question of ... (/nterruptions)...

SHRI PRANAB MUKHERJEE: Sir, he has the right to reply. He can
reply to that point ...(Interruptions)...

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: If my learned friend, Shri Pranab Mukherjee, will
let me say, is this a Minister of the Government who honestly wants to
investigate this ...(Interruptions)... is my point of order ...(Interruptions)...

SHR! KAPIL SIBAL: How can you raise it as a point of order? This is
not a point of order ...(Interruptions)...

sit gvrafa: i 8, 3= 8, ... (Interruptions)... This is not a point of order.

SHRI! KAPIL SIBAL: | am trying to show that as a lawyer you have not
done your homework ...(Interruptions)... You should have done your
homework because you make allegations against the Government of the
day; you are making allegations against a national party ... (Interruptions)...
You have made allegations against a national party, which has stood the
test of time. And, you make serious allegations without looking into the
...(Interruptions)... | am sorry to say. ...(Interruptions)... '

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA: Sir, | want to submit. ... (Interruptions)... He is
misleading the House. ...(Interruptions)... He is misleading the House.
...(Interruptions)...

St WA : = AT ST 39 &1 Wi R aw S SR a1sdt T8 ¥ e
...(HaYgE)...
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St THURe Agaferar: q3 a8 3 ¥ 1 ¥ ww w { e Ff de frid
s @ g f5 wal % 9% ...(=w@4M)... Sir, He is misleading the House.
...(Interruptions)...

3} gwTafd : 9 391 Bifgn, I slie ) ... (Saa9m) ...
ot Sraiwt TEsll : T, W 99 $ft Ao AR § L (SEaum)...

it urafa: | uens 7€ FU@E, A9 A3 AR | ITH! e A | 3 ST
1, # e T S W L ().

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Why are you getting frustrated?

it gyafa: g g /LR, T e AL L. (HauF). .. 3T R SR
gfee 1...(=auF) ...

# THoTHe AeAfean: W, I 987 ) frase s ® ¥ ... (3q9ur). ..

gt aymafa: g fraede R o 78 &1 ... (HaYr) ... # 3T 3TeTss T8
W E, & 3161 76 FLWIE | 9 43 32, A9 9S4 |....(zqaqur)... § o/
=€t &1 Wi €1 Nothing will go on record. ...(Interruptions)... 39 §3 SgA |
...(ATEM)... STEqATan i, § STATS: T HT W E 1 ST I Ser S |
...(AAHM)... 39 A3 WY | 379 S S 1|

it TR Asqarerdn:*

st gugfa: & o | AHA, @ F S A€ wEm | F s JE€ wEm
. A(FHaYur)... ¥ aers T8 X W €| Nothing will go on record.
...(Interruptions)... Nothing will go on record. ... (/nterruptions)... 39§

Srer NI | 3779 93 WEY .. (SaEYr). .

ot T See@fean:*

sit wyrafa: w57 TruE T8 €, 9 9T | 9 A A1 928, o 95 S TR
B (... (Y )... 39 TFh! dier SifSTT ) ... (SAAYF).... & -7, 39 $h!
ClIGERIEIERE uGed '

*Not recorded.
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SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr. Chairman, Sir, so in the course of this
...(Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: # 31@Ts & #X @ g1 Nothing will go on record.
...(Interruptions)... Nothing will go on record. '

# TueTRe Fecgafer:*
st gurafa: sny sSifew . (sEEum)... g S dfaw)

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: It shows your frustration. ... (Interruptions)... It only
shows your frustration. ... (Interruptions)... When | am telling you the facts.
...(Interruptions}...

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA:*

st wyrufa: sy e ST L (FHauE)... 9 # st ol & el
;NAN, @ wEd 2 AfSw) L. (HAEH)... JAW T ¥ FaE 2 gfeu
...(AAYA)... AT |rer 1 Hiewt e ) ... (S9auid)... JFH1G 955, S W
T IR 7d KA | ... (AYF)... 0T W&, | A9H 3 Ay 1 @ g fF a9
w9 H§ wa Sfad, a8 e T8 @m § sens 78 wem A 98 S Ed |
e (HEYE) ..

G ¥ B 1 AT R | T e |

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr. Chairman, Sir, so, at the end of that deposition,
he asked Dr. Raphael if he could provide than the list. He replied that he
would insert that list as a record of the Committee and would be pleased
to forward it the next morning. So, the list was given and in that list there
is a reference to two entities. One is Shri Bhim Singh, 5.5 million, and
- Congress Party India, 4 million. This is what happened on February 9,
2005. Then, he talks about one Mr. Doulfer who seems to have verified
this. Then comes the report of Charies Doulfer of CIA Iraq Study Group.
Director of CIA, September 2004. And, what does he say? In the Annexure
list there are several references to Indian oil having been allocated and
lifted. And, the says the report is based on information obtained from Iragi
sources interrogated by U.S. occupation forces and not independently
verfified. ...(/nterruptions)... It is very sad. ...(Interruptions)... Therefore,
the source says it is not independently verfied. Volcker does not disclose

*Not recorded.
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us the material and Mr. Jaitley says an FIR should be lodged. They do not
understand. | could have understood if Mr. Jaitley had shown to me
documents from the Volicker report which suggested any linkage between
the Congress Party as being a non-contractual beneficiary or Mr. Natwar
Singh being a non-contractual beneficiary. | could have understood that.
We would not have had this debate because an FIR would have been
lodged unlike Tehelka because we are a Government who would certainly
lodge a complaint. We will still lodge a complaint if we get the information.
The point that | am making, Mr. Chairman, Sir, is that this is the state of
affairs. The findings of the Volcker Committee report are, apparently,— we
don't know, because that is something that we have to find out yet,—
based on information which the sources themselves say are not
independently verified. Now, what is the task of a Governmentin this context?
What should a responsible Government do? An irresponsible Government
like the one that we had in the past would say, forget it, what we see we do
not believe. That is the act of an irresponsible Government. But a responsible
Government would say, 'yes', there are some names, including the name
of the Congress Party which has come in the records of a report headed
by Volcker who was the ex-Chief of the Federal Reserve. Even though we
do not know the reasons why those names have come into that report, a
responsible Government would say, "still we would like to clear eur name.
We would like to find put as to why this has happened.” And, therefore, we
decided to have a Commission of inquiry. ... (Interruptions)... One second,
Mr. Jaitley, don't get worried now. ...{Interruptions)... Don't get worried.
...(Interruptions)... The pointis this. What hapens is that when there is an
over enthusiastic prosecutor and he is dealing with oil, he always slips.
That is what happened to you today. He has slipped and fallen on his face
because he has not verified anything. Now, a responsible Government
said, we want to get at the root of this and that is what the Prime Minister
said. On the first day, the Prime Minister on 30th of October made that
statement, ‘that the documents don't suggest that there is any prima facie
proof of any culpability, but we must get at the root of this.' And the same
thing was repeated on the 3rd of the following month. In other words, we
reacted as a Government should react. When there was a demand of the
Opposition, we set up a Commission of Inquiry. My good friends said, no,
no, you can't have a Commission of Inquiry, you must have a prosecution,
Why? Because a prosecution must be lodged to get at documents. He
says that the reason is under the Commission of Inquiry you can't send a
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letter rogatory, and he is absolutely right. We are not going to send a letter
rogatory till we are prima facie convinced that the Congress Party or Mr.
Natwar Singh is involved, or anyone else is involded. He is absolutely right.
We are not going to lodge an FIR till we are prima facie convinced that out
Party or Mr. Natwar Singh is involved. There is no question. We are here
not to please you. We are here to find out what the truth is. So, look at
section 166(A) of the Code of Criminal Procedure. | remember when Mr,
Jaitley was making his submission, he was looking at Shri Ram Jethmalani
for some approval. Mr. Jethmalani being an outstanding defence lawyer
will teil him what the state of evidence of this case is ....(Interruptions)...
Now, what 166(A) says is this. This is for the purposes of a letters rogatory.
'‘Notwithstanding anything contained in this Code, if in the course of an
investigation into an offence...' That is why | asked the question from my
learned friend, what offence has been committed. So, this letter rogatory
can-only be issued if we are prima facie convinced that an offence has
been committed under any law in India, which attaches criminal liability.
There is no offence under IPC, there is no offence under the Prevention of
Corruption Act, there is no offence under FEMA and there is nothing to
show that any offence under FCRA has been committed. So, what is the
efficacy of the demand of our having to lodge an FIR merely because Mr.
Jaitley thinks so? ...(Interruptions)... | would like to know. Because you
can't make out a case on the basis of assumptions. That is why | said that
he, actually, presumed that an offence has been committed. And, on the
basis of that presumption, he made his arguments, without first establishing
that there is a prima facie-case of an offence under any of these statues.
Therefore, | said that when Mr. Volcker talks about the Congress Party
being a non-contractual beneficiary, at best, it is an opinion. At best, itis
an opinion, based on an inference, on facts not disclosed, and unverified
also. So, which criminal justice system allows any Government to lodge
an FIR if that is the state of affairs? So, Mr. Chairman, Sir, this demand of
my learned friend is completely unwarranted. Obviously, what is happening
is that they are getting embarrassed. They have, recently, been
embarrassed in Madhya Pradesh ...(Interruptions)...

it Forea Taer: foR o 7e FY ol | HY T gu2 S gl v o 2 |
..(TAYM).... W, R Sk § o 7 0§ 79 9 &1 98 e FE g E
Fee T <t ) argd fadw Wi 511 A | qehTel S fadw Wt s s .
(==aym)...
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SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Don't get worried, Mr. Yashwant Sinha
...(Interruptions)...| will be coming to you also ...(Interruptions)...

= gyafa; 9fay, 9feaw )1 A embarassment & FAvEH Ha 3I3gY | 3 Tfew

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: No, Sir, the point is that celebration has turned
sour, even in Bihar ...(Interruptions)... See, what is happening is they have
no issue. Therefore, you want to raise any issue just to get the attention of
the people. Don't worry, we are attentive to you. We will, still, listen to you.
We don't have any problem. You don't have to make a tamasha about all
this ...(Interruptions)...

Now, Mr. Chairman, Sir, there is another important issue. What was
the oil-for-food programme? In just about five minutes | would like to
explain. On August 2, 1990 Iraq invaded Kuwait and on August 6, 1990,
the UN Security Council passed a Resolution 661 and set up a
Committee called the '661 Committee' and imposed sanctions. Those
Resolutions in 1990-91 were not accepted by the State of Iraq. We are
members of the United Nations. We, of course, were bound to accept
them and we accepted them. This continued for a period of time. Under
thRe original Resolution, Iraq could only sell oil every ninety days worth
one billion dollars in return for medicines and other essential services.
That was not enough. This amount in 1999 or rather in 1995 was
increased-to 5.4 billion dollars, and in 1999, there was no limit. Now,
what was happening was that iraq was not accepting these Resolutions,
and there was a Resolution '986' of 1995 on the 14" of April, which was
passed by the Security Council, pursuant to which a MoU was entered
into between the United Nations Administration and the State of Iraq,
and it is important to look at the MoU. Just to mention, the MoU had
two annexures, one for getting money for humanitarian aid and the
other for procedures to sell the oil, and the procedures were set out in
Annexure |l of the MoU. And, what it said was that 'the State concerned
or if the 661 Committee so decides, the National Petroleum Purchaser,
authorised by the 661 Committee, shall submit to the committee for
handling and approval of the application, including relevant contractual
documents covering the sales of such petroleum or petroleum products
for the purposed purchase of Iraq petroleum and petroleum products
endorsed by the Government of Iraq or the Irag State Oil Marketing
Organisation, SOMO. The method was that if Iraq has to sell oil, there
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is a 661 Committee. The clearances have to be taken through that
Committee. A contract has to be entered into and unless SOMO or the
State authorises that contract, no oil can be sold. The MoU was on the
20th of May. MoU between the Secretariat of United Nations and the
Government ‘of Iraq, pursuant to Resolution 986. So, this was the
methodology. What was happening was, in effect, that pursuant to the
earlier Resolutions, up to 30 per cent of the sale proceeds of Iraq oil
could be given as compensation to Governments, individuals and entities
in Kuwait for the damages of War. So thirty per cent of this never came
back to Iraq and so between 1990-1995, about 1.5 million people died
in Iraq, out of which 500,000 were children. Saddam Hussain accepted
Resolution 986 because subsequently the Memorandum of
Understanding was signed on 20" May, 1995, and this process continued
from 1995 till September, 2000 when the voucher system started. The
reason for the voucher system was-- and | am not taking sides here. |
am saying this because the House should know what really happened
- - that since a large part of the money which were proceeds of the sale
of oil were going towards reparations, not enough money was coming
into Iraq to take care of their own people. So, Saddam Hussaip who
was a contracting party decided to set up this voucher system, so that
some money could come back to Iraq. What he used it for, we are not
concerned. That is how the voucher system started, and this voucher
system in September, 2000 and ended in September, 2002, for the
simple reason that by September, 2002, the United Nations Security
Council Committe decided to set up a retroactive price mechanism. It
did not allow the purchasers to know at what price they will ultimately
be purchasing the oil. So, all of them lost interest. Thus, the voucher
system came to an end. These are the facts.

Now, we all know, Mr. Chairman, Sir, that United Nations Resolutions
are binding on States; they are not binding on individuals. If |, as an
individuals, or a businessman in India, violate a Resolution of the
Security Council - 986, there is no liability. The liability will only occur
if, pursuant to a UN Resolution, a law is passed in India, making it a
criminal liability to violate a Resolution - - like it was done for terrorism
under POTA; a UN Resoiution was passed, a law was passed in India;
it made it a criminal act and there was liability, So, no liability was
attached to the violation of this Resolution, to an individual, to a political
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party, to a businessman or to anybody. So, if |, as an individual, went
to Iraq and knowingly violated the Resolution, there ws no criminal
liability attached to it. That is the state of the law. However, Governments
could not violate, because Governments are State parties and they are
parties to the Resolutions.

Now, what worries me here, and this is what really surprises me, is that
the previous Government violated this law. They violated this law because
a Minister of the previous Government, during the relevant days - - and he
has given a statement on the 19" of November - - went to Iraq and said that
he was aware of the voucher system and he allowed the Indian businessman
to profit from it, showing complicity of the Government...(/nterruption)...

SHRI S.S. AHULWALIA: He never said this.
SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Yes, | have got a copy of the statement.

SHRI 8.S. AHLUWALIA: A person who is not present in the
House...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: What do you mean, 'not present in the House'
...{Interruptions)...

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA: Sir, this report says...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Why are you worried? You always get up when
you are worried...(Interruptions)...

SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA: ...that the Minister was not responsible to the
Oil Corporation...(Interruptions)...

they know Indian Oil Corporation refused to take oil ...(Interruptions)...
when they came to know that surcharge has been...(Interruptions)... you
may please, read it ...(/nterruptions)...

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: What point of order is he
making?...(Interruptions)...

sit Ayrafy: A Rz fam &, o Ee M Ae @ &1 ... (M),
it FvEq faan: FE A PR FLRWE? . (wEum)...
st gwafa: S H ST R L (oayA)... T L (EEeA).. s L ).,
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SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: | am entitled to quote from a
newpaper...(Interruptions)...

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Let him authenticate the former Minister's
statement ...(/Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: | will come to you too, Mr. Sinha...(/nterruptions)...
I will come to you also.

#it gvgfa: sSifee, Sifae ... (gaaF)...

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Mr. Chairman, will you allow him to quote
from a newspaper?...(Inferruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: why not ...(Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: This has been quoted so many times
...(Interruptions)... This has been quoted so many times by both the sides.

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: But can he quote from a
newspaper?...(Interruptions)...

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: You could quote the Prime Minister
from a newspaper and you say that 'you cannot quote Ram Naik'
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: He was not part of the Government, but in
this case he was part of the Government _.._.(Interruptions)... He was not
part of the Government... (Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: He may be part of the Government. But | have heard
it so many times in the House; there have been so many times when
Press reports have been quoted in the House. Nobody objected to that
...(Interruptions)...

sit SaieT el : T=ar A 3o b IR 2L (FE).

st gwefa: 29 AR T .. (FAYF)... o & A€ ... (FEeA)... 39 §R
FAvET dl Y ... (HqYA)... A IS Y .. (FEYF)... 43 5 ... (HANH)....

eleaer 9 STacaiern Sit, 301 T 81 @ 9 < # ... (=rawm)...
oft wvafir: TEEn SO F1 f&ar.L (=aY)...
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s Aeae a9 | R AfgE L (EaE)... L (FEEeE).. & T
..(qaURA)... TFas <@ 91 ... (HI9F)... 98 99 A= s 7 ... (aeH)...

#it Tty sfeae s =afea)

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr. Chairman Sir, this Report of 19" November
says— Mr. Naik, however, admitted that the businessman, who were part
of the delegation, would have done business with Iraq. When a reporter
said deals worth more than a billion dollars were done, Mr. Naik did not
deny or contradict the claim. He said he did not have the figures. Asked
whether he facilitated deals for the Indian companies, Mr. Naik said that -
as leader of the delegation, it was his business to do so.’

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: What is wrong with that?.. (Interruptions)... He
never took oit coupons from anybody...(Interruptions)...

SHRIi KAP SIBAL: Just a second. So, a Minister of the Governmeni
found it his ‘business’ to facilitate the deals of private indian companies
who bought oil on the basis of payment of surcharge! So, who violated the
law? Not us, because we were in the Opposition. At that time the
Government was not assisting us...{(Interruptions)...You are the one who
vioiated the Security Council Resolution. So, you should have lodged an
FIR at that time ...(Interruptions)...You shouid have lodged the FIR at that
time. Why did you not lodge the FIR? And, Mr. Chairman, Sir, this is not
the only thing...(/nterruptions)...

it WuTYfar: AT HaT 9% € T A 39 WHY UE.TE. TR, TN FEn?
st sy forsmet: faowd, ovan faers ... (=€),
st wwmfa: 70 g .. (sEam)... a9 g ot wen dfee L. (FEeE)..

st whe fosrer: w1 s Famdh W, 98 S, ot o wga e .
(=a9)... ¢ This is not the end of the story...(Interruptions)... This is not
the end of the story, Mr. Chairman, Sir. Infact, a letter was written. After
that statement, after that publication, in the Al Maida, a letter was written
by the then Ambassador in Iraq to the then Foreign Secretary, to the then
Foreign Secretary, stating,"This newspaper report has come. What d¢
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you say about it?" ...(Interruptions)... No actions was taken by the
Government. Who was in power at that point of time? So, in 2001 when all
this was happening and delegations were taken by them, by their Minister,
knowing fully well that all this was happening, they chose not to raise the
issue. Mr. Jaitley was then a Minister in that Government. He chose not to
say anything about it. Please ask my learned friend, why he chose to
make this issue in 2005; why he kept quiet in 2001; why did he not say
this in 20017

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: My learned friend has named me. Let me just
say in one sentence...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: You cannot interrupt ...(/nterruptions)...

SHR! ARUN JAITLEY: Here is a Gavernment which says you did not
act...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: You cannot interrupt me. | am not
yielding...(Interruptions)... So, you cannot interrupt me. ...(Interruptions)...
We are acting. You choose not to act. We have set up an Inquiry
Committee. You should have lodged an FIR. ...(Inferruptions)...

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Itis an eyewash. ...(Inferruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Now, | will expiain cn the eyewash issue. Now, my
learned friend says that look this is an Inquiry Committee. He should
know better, and Mr. Chidambaram, the Minister, will explain that this is
not an Inquiry Committee. Under the provisions of the Commission of
Inquiries Act, it is a Commission of Inquiry. It is deemed to be a Commission .
of Inquiry. My learned friends knows about it. So, it is not an inquiry
Committee. But still, you keep on saying "Inquiry Committee, Inquiry
Committee". It is a Commission of Inquiry, under the Commission of
inquiries Act, without powers under 8(b) and 8(c). Those powers will be
given under 8(b) and 8(c) when we get prima facie evidence either against
Mr. Natwar Singh or the Congress Party. But, we are not going to presume
..(Interruptions)... We are not going to presume that an offence has been
committed because Mr. Jaitley says so. ...(Interruptions}... We cannot
presume that unless Mr. Jaitley produces the primary and the secondary
evidence himself which he has chosen not to do. ...(/nterruptions)...
Obviously, nobody else has it. Even Mr. Voicker did not have it. He did not
produce. | have shown you what the evidence was. Mr. Volcker does not
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disclose what the primary evidence is; Mr. Volcker does not disclose what
the secondary evidence is; Mr. Jaitley does not disclose what that evidence
is. Mr. Jaitley reads an opinion of Mr. Volcker and says an offence is
committed. | mean, my learned friend is a distinguished lawyer and he
should know, he should know. That is why Mr. Advani said yesterday,
"Had we known this before, we would not have come for a debate".

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Can he quote the Leader of the Opposition
in the other House? ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: | am not referring to the proceedings of the House.
...{Interruptions)...

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Sir, we do not refer to the proceedings of
the other House. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: | am not referring to the proceedings of the other
House. ...(Interruptions)... '

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: He being a Parliamentarian and not an
amateur...(/nterruptions)... Sir, you should at least expunge this.
...(Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: | am not going to expunge this. ...(/nterruptions)... |
am not going to expunge. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: He is quoting the Leader of the Opposition.
...{Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: | am not quoting from the other House.
...(Interruptions)...

it i : EUS 33 w1 FIE T8 @I ... (FEHF) It may be quoted.
Everything is going on everyday. ...(/nterruptions)...

SHR1 KAPIL SIBAL: | just heard it and that is why | am saying it.
...{Interruptions)... So, Mr. Chairman, Sir, | am really not going to take too
much time. All that | want to say is that Mr. Jaitley started by making two
points. Number one, political parties should not, on the basis of
compensation received, decide on policies that are going to be
implemented in india. He is absolutely right. No political party shouid do
that. And, | do believe that those political parties who have done that in the
past, on the basis of some Defence deals, should have been investigated.
He is right. ...(Interruptions)... '
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SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Are you referring to Bofors? ...(interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: So, as soon as we get any evidence against any
political party, we will investigate and we will lodge an FIR and give all the
powers under 166(A). No problem. That is my first answer. The second
thing he said was that this is really a whitewash, it is a cover-up, we don't
wantto find out the facts. In fact, it's just the opposite. We want to find out
the facts so that if the facts are available we can do what Mr. Jaitley
wants. Now, he doesn't want us to do what he wants? What can | do? This
is the problem. Therefore, | would request that these are very serious
matters, to make allegations against the Prime Minister and against high
dignitaries of the State, saying that they are weak or they had not followed
the highest principles of integrity, is not something that should be said
without the kind of seriousness that such a remark deserves.

Mr. Chairman, Sir, | remember when Judev tapes were brought tc light.
what the then Prime Minister said. | will just guote that and then, end my
intervention. | wili tell you, Sir. Anyway, | remember what he said. He said
o 9 T a1, S g areferas wa A g e, g At 9ar werm 1 4 | fuas o @

T ot | 3EfET B v fAfafmTd s=arad 7 €, g9 UhaEaR afs 7€+t and
that preliminary inquiry went on. Mr. Vajpayee believed in the principle that
no man can be held guilty without due process. "Every man is innocent till
he is proven guilty" is what their Prime Minister used to say and now he
doesn't want to accept that very principle which is espoused by his own
Prime Minister. So, | would suggest that serious allegations of this nature
...(Interruptions)...

#t gvrafa: 98 WE W & s @} 1 A 9e, 39 48 SR

st wiga fasaer: @y, | 591 s 2 1 5@ qe) W 50 ¢ 4, as an
individual, he was without portfolio 3R 3151 & f< +ff, he is without portfolio

...(Interruptions)... So, there is no change that has taken place. Thank
you very much.

SHRI SITARAM YECHURI (West Bengal): Thank you, Sir. Mr. Chairman,
Sir, | think Mr. Kapil Sibal has put up a very spirited defence of the
Government's case. But | would like to begin, Sir, by actually welcoming
this discussion because | think it's after a long time that we have a
discussion in the House on matters of graft and corruption that are actually
taking place after the last six years. Somehow, | mean, unfortunately, we
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3.00p.m.

did not manage to get a proper discussion organised and since this is
taking place, | would like to compliment the Government also for having
announced an inquiry. We, as CPI (M), were one of the eariiest among the
political parties to have asked for a full-fledged inquiry despite the fact that
many of the issues, which Mr. Kapil Sibal has now referred to, there are
question marks that have arisen which | would also want to clarify. Butwe
are very happy that the Commission of Inquiry has been established and if
there are any lapses which our learned colleagues from the Opposition
have raised, | am sure they will take them into account and, | am sure, this
inquiry will proceed and come up with its conclusions and investigations
as soon as possible.

But, Sir, | would like to begin also with a certain shift in stand that has
occurred. What was served yesterday, in the List of Business, with your
permission, | would just like to read it out. That has obviously been changed
today. | welcome that change. It is a good change. But it also says that
there is shiftin sense. | mean the positions have been shifted. | hope they
will actually shift for better because yesterday...(Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is not the case...(Interruptions)...
SHRI S.S. AHLUWALIA: It is done without my permission.

Y wrafir: & = w2, 319 ¥ w1 9w 3E WA A gen ¥ 17 Y e

11 will explain.

ot Tars Agh: s R €, d S ¥ (sHaa=)... |/, § 39w gerens T8
M T ) g s 1t wE?

st gymafa: 3o Wve @ @ | AfwT a8 1 fFa €

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY: | can continue, Sir. Since you have made
the change, | am sure you will explain it. Then, | am not going to make that
an issue. But | would like to discuss some of these issues in the larger
context because, on the question of corruption, if there are people involved
in corruption, if there is a prima facie case that can be proved, action
should be taken. We are happy to note that the Minister has given an
assurance to the House that it will be proceeded upon to the full, and
action would be taken, and that is the assurance, which we believe, the
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Government is giving to the House, which is welcome. But | think, it should
also be seen in the larger context because, what we are discussing now,
is the final report of the independent Inquiry Committee. Mr. Kapil Sibal
has quoted, and | have also got a copy of the interim report that was
submitted very strangely to the International Relations Committee of the
House of Representatives of the United States of America, where which is
quoted, these names come in. But, what Mr. Sibal has not really said was
that the newspaper from where this information has been taken, that is,
the ALMADA. ALMADA actually belongs to Mr. Ahmad Chalabi, who was
the then Head of the Iragi National Council, and till mid 2004, was the
Pentagon's Chief Advisor on Iraq, and Washington's candidate for the
Presidency. It is his newspaper, and that is where the list first appeared in
which these names are written. In the first list, Mr. Natwar Singh's name
does not appear at ali. There are two entities that have been mentioned,
that is, Mr. Bhim Singh, which is called Biham Singh or Bhima Singh,
whatever it is, and the indian National Congress, and later, subsequently,
these names are added in the final report. We see in table 3, which was
quoted a number of times, on oil sales by non-contractual beneficiaries,
there are 4 individual entities listed in that list. They are, the Congress
Party, Shri Bhim Singh, Shri Natwar Singh and the Reliance Petroleum
Limited. Now, these are the 4 entities that are listed in table 3. in the other
section, there are 129 Indian companies that are listed, in which there is
the State Trading Corporation, there is Balmer and Lawrie, which is also a
State-run corporation, and we would like the Government also to give this
assurance that all these companies will aiso be looked into, and it is not
only confined to this...(/nterruptions)...

SOME HON. MEMBER: What about Reliance?

SHRISITARAM YECHURY: No, ne. | will leave it to the Finance Minister,
and | am sure that he will take this into accout when he replies. But in the
larger context, | wanted to draw thé attention of the House to the fact that
Mr. Kapil Sibal made a passing reference to Mr. Paul Volcker, who was
the Chairman of the United States Federal Reserves, and therefore, he
was intimately associated with the pursuit of international finance capital,
which the Government of United States pursues. The other leading member,
Mr. Richard Gladstone, a former White Judge from South Africa, he was
the prosecutor of the International Criminal Tribunal for Former Yugoslavia,
a body set up to prosecute mainly the Serbian adversaries of NATO in the
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Balkans. That is the background of Mr. Gladstone. The third one resigned.
He resigned because of the alleged manipulation of the records in order to
protect the United Nations Secretary-General. Such were the reports in
the international media and therefore, the third person resigned. But the
text of report should not blind us to the context which is equally important.
It would be recalled that the Secretary-General, Kofi Annan had, at one
point of time, told the BBC that the US action in Iraq was illegal. The
sanctions imposed by the United States and the U K. and the pliable U.N.
Security Council on Iraq were clearly illegal in terms of International Law.
In International Law, there is a concept called "Jus Cogens”, which is a
pre-emptory and the customary international law, which no treaty, and no
+Security Council decision can supersede, and in the case of Iraq, the
principle of “Jus Cogens" was violated, and all of us know what was the
result of that. A million children died, and in fact, at that point of time,
Madeleine Albright, the Secretary of State of the United States of America
has gone on record to say that, this is "worth the price". Amillion children
lost their lives. This is called collateral damage. So many people were
being put to immense hardships by what we consider, an illegal sanctions
regime imposed on Iraq, and in fact, my party has been part of the
international solidarity. We collected medicines for Iragi students. Yes,
we violated, as Mr. Kapil Sibal said, not as a Government, but as individuals.
We violated the Resolution of the Security Council and we were feeling
that we had a right to do that and we had done that. But, at that point of
time, because of the international ocutcry, this Oil-for-Food Programme
began. This is part of the international pressure by which the United States
and the UN were forced to start this programme in order to provide some
avenues for humanitarian assistance for the Iraqi people, which were actually
being suppressed by these sanctions. Therefore, what we in this context
think is that we in India, in this debate, have to concentrate on whether
political influence was exterted, any impropriety was committed and any
domestic Indian law was broken. These are the three objectives that we
will have to actually pursue. in this context, we welcome the Commission
of Inquiry and we also welcome the fact, which the Finance Minister had
informed the other House yesterday, that the Special Envoy and the Director
of Enforcement had, in fact, returned with a lot of material, with a ot of
data. They have done good work in a short time, which should not have
been possible without the groundwork done by our permanent Mission in
New York. However, we are little concerned about some media comments
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attributed to this team. In fact, why | say this is that Mr. Volcker has
himself said that he has not carried out any forensic examination of the
documents, neither has he vouched that these documents are authentic.
That is what you have said just now. But when the Special Envoy was
asked, he said that these documents were authentic. Now, the reason
why. .. .(Interruptions)...

THE MINISTER OF FINANCE (SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM). What he
said was that this document had to be authenticated by our permanent
Mission from the documents available with...(Interruptions)...

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY: Sir, we are not presuming that they
are...(Interruptions)...

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: This, | think, Yashwant Sinhaji knows. Our
Embassy, our Mission has to authenticate any document. That is what he
said. This is an authenticated document. This is not an authentic document.

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY: | stand corrected and satisfied. | don't want
a certificate of authenticity to be given to this document. But why | am
trying to draw the attention to this particular statement is that we should
see what has happened to many of these people from other countries who
were referred to in the Voilcker Committee Report. If | can say, there are
special sections in the Volcker Committee Report on Russia and France.
| just want to quote, with your permission, Sir, the Press release of the
Ministry of Foreign Affairs of the Russian Federation because it is quite
revealing. In fact, the Russian Foreign Minister, Mr. Lavrov, said and |
quote:

"The need for a thorough examination of all the circumstances citied in
the Report regarding Russian participation in the Oil-for-Food Programme
is prompted, in particular, by the fact that in a number of earlier cases the
Commission gave us some rather questionable or downright fake
documents. The Russian side has repeatedly queried the Commission
about the sources from which such documents were obtained but has
never received any answer."

The Russian Foreign Affairs Minister is on record.

Then, we know the famous Galloway case and all of us have gone
through it, it is very informative. He was accused of having received a huge
amount of money from Saddam Hussein because he opposed the
sanctions. Last year, The Daily Telegraph which published those
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accusations had not only to apologise but also to pay a hefty compensation
fo Mr. Galloway for making wrong accusations. The point that | want to
make, Mr. Chairman, Sir, is that we want the Government to inquire into
these aspects as well, not merely to stop by saying that there is no
evidence of any graft, but actually go into the larger context in which this
Report has come and also cover all other entities and Indian companies.
We spoke of the FEMA. If they have avoided any tax, you please go into
all that and do it.

The next point which 1 want to talk about is that the oil-for-Food
Programme has been a programme which is under a ot of cloud and the
Report itself has created a lot of controversy in many countries. In fact, it
is understood that a Member of the Volcker Committee, as | mentioned
earlier, has resigned because of the manipulation of evidence to exonerate
Mr. Kofi Annan. Apart from that, now the US Congress is hearing this
evidence and the Henry Hyde Report—the Committee which you have
referred to—is expected time. In this background, all those who had
criticised the US sanctions are also being targeted is a fact which we
can'tignore.

There is also the political context in which this report has come. An the
role of the United States of America in bypassing that Special Committee
661. Mr. Kapil Sibal referred to it, and in creating the avenues for such
opportunities for graft and corruption to take place, to begin with. If that
bypassing was not done primarily by the USA, these opportunities for
graft and corruption might not have existed. But these are also the issues
that require attention and probe. We may not be competent ourselves to
probe into this aspect. But India, as a country, will definitely have to raise
these issues at the international body and insist that this also must be
properly inquired into.

Finally, | want to raise a point which is of great concern to us here in
India which is that we need to probe objectively and thoroughly any exercise
of undue political influence, any commission of impropriety, any violation
of domestic Indian law. All this is needed to be done. There is no dispute
on that. But at the same time, we have to be vigilant that we do not let this
be used to facilitate the dominace of US imperialism in India. | am saying
that very clearly and candidly because it would be a great pity if those who
want to serve these interests in India try to use this probe—I don't mean
the Indian probe that we have ordered, but the Volcker probe as a whole -
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use this Volcker probe strengthen the US interests in our country. These
sections would do well to look at recent reports in the international press
from which it is clear that even such a loyal junior partner of the USA like
the UK is finding it difficult to obtain even routine military equipment from
the USA except through a complicated process because the US Congress
is refusing to give blanket waivers. @hly Canada gets it today. The reason
why | am raising this is—i. may sound Exe a digression—that we are in
the midst of another big and important issue that is concerning our country
and that is on the question of atomic cooperation with the USA. Therefore,
| want to draw your attention that this should not be used to cloud the
other problems that we will face from US pressures like we have the
asseftion of the US Congress that it wants to make India first divide its
civilian and military programmes and also, then try and scuttle the thorium
programme, etc. All these are issues in the background of which we must,
in today's context, see this entire Volcker controversy. | would only want
to submit before the House and before all of you that please proceed with
this inquiry as soon as possible. Please come out with the facts so that
the nation is put at rest and also keep the larger political implications of
this in mind and understand the implications of this and not be swayed by
the questions of authenticity of the findings of this report, conclusions of
this report, as has been explained.

At the same time, the final issue that | want to refer to, as Mr. Jaitley
said this morning, is the larger question of Indian politicians being funded
from abroad. Various other books were named and various other things
have been brought out here. Sir, | have with me a document and a
publication which is called the ‘Foreign Exchange of Hate'. | would like to
give it to you.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: That is another FDI!
MR. CHAIRMAN: Don't bring all these things here.

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY: The point | want to submit is that if you
want to discuss it, | am prepared and we are prepared to discuss this
entire question of foreign funding of politicians and political processes.
But that should be comprehensive. Here is that entire thing. | would like to
submit it to you for your perusal, if you so permit, the entire documentation
of how foreign money has come in for the spread of hate and communal
campaign in India. All that is here. Sir, | will give it to you for your perusal
and later on we can discuss it.

-7
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MR. CHAIRMAN: { wilt certainly like to reaa it.

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY: Thank you. Sir.

*sit wnfe< fadi=t: Savi v, ¥ oy 9ga YHEOR €, S o9 g3 |sies
=1 Wi 5 | 9aQ e 31 & UsA & 39 9 & forg wga wurg & amea € el
9 7 o T At §, 5 o aur A = e € fF g W W aw
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R [ATA 33141, N TR 1 Sa ot T e fee it 6t weran s fady saea /7

The speech originally delivered in Urdu.
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MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Shri P.G. Narayanan, your party has got 11
minutes. Try to finish within that because there are many Members who
want to speak on this. (/nterruptions)

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN (Tamil Nadu): Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, today
we are discussing a very important issue which is facing our country.
Mr. Natwar Singh, the former External Affairs Minister and the Congress
Party are facing serious charges that they had imported Iragi oil, paid
kickbacks to the Saddam Hussein Government. The charges are very
serious that they are non-contractual beneficiaries of the Oil-for-Food-
Programme. | am happy that the Government has ¢constituted a judicial
inquiry into the episode. But, it took nearly one week for the Government
to act in the matter. Another serious issue is that the Congress Party has
also been named as a non-contractual beneficiary of the deal. Sir,
Mr. Natwar Singh resigned as the External Affairs Minister soon after the
controversy broke out. | want to know who in the Congress Party has
resigned owning moral responsibility. Moral responsibility applies to both,

Sir, the fact that both the-Prime Minister and the Congress President

« gave a clean certificate to Mr. Natwar Singh and buckled under pressure
later reveal the fact that there is much more than what meets the eye. Sir,

! suspect that senior Congress leaders are involved in this scam. The
Government owes an explanation to this House as to what action has
been aken in regard to the Volcker Committee's charge that the Congress
is a non-contractual beneficiary. Sir, there are also reports that the Congress
Party and its President were taken for a ride by Mr. Natwar Singh. Sir,
even then the Congress President owes a responsibility to the nation. Itis
not without reason that the Oppostion, BJP is demanding the resignation...

SHRI R.P. GOENKA (Rajasthan): Sir, are we discussing the Volcker
Committee Report or the Congress Party? (/nterruptions)

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: The Congress Party is involved in this.
SHRIN. JOTHI: The Congress Party is also named init. (/nterruptions)
SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: Yes, it is named in the Report.

SHRI R.P. GOENKA: It is the Congress Party, not the Congress
President.

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: Sir, it is not without reason that the BJP and
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the Oppostion parties are demanding resignation of the Congress President.
Another fundamental issue is how the Prime Minister ... (Interruptions)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: People are just sitting and talking and it
should not go on record. Please confine to the Volcker Report only. That is
all.

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: Sir, another fundamental issue is, how the
Prime Minister has allowed the former Foreign Minister to continue in the
Government as a Minister without portfolio even after it was indicated that
he was facing an inquiry now. Is he blackmailing the Government? | want
to know. The way the Government reacted to the Volcker Committee
charges and the brazen manner Mr. Natwar Singh gave his reaction to the
media gives sufficient indication that oil was imported by both Mr. Natwar
Singh and the Congress Party.

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: Where is the evidence? (Interruptions)

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: Evidence is there. Itis indicated in the Volcker
Committee Report. Please read it. (/nterruptions). Without reading why is
he shouting, Sir? Let him read it first. (/nterruptions)

SHRI N. JOTHI: Evidence is there. What more do you want? You are in
power and you prove it. (/nterruptions)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: M. Narayanasamy, allow him to speak. Mr.
Jothi, why are you getting up? | have not called any of you. Except Mr.
P.G. Narayanan's speech, nothing will go on record.

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: While Mr. Natwar Singh has been divested of
his portfolio, what action has been taken against the person who is holding
the high office in the Congress Party? (/nterruptions) Sir, | demand that
senior office bearers of the Congress Party should also step down.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Sitting and talking is very bad. | request the
hon. Members to realise that is serious discussion. By sitting you are
answering from here and from there. How would the people view us? ltis
ridiculous. Whoever is doing it, it is wrong. Whether X is doing it or Y is
doing it, it wrong. Please do not lower the dignity of the House. By sitting,
you point out something and they point out something else. In the eyes of
the public it is very bad. You should understand it and you should maintain
the dignity of the House. It is our responsibility. (/nterruptions)
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Mr. Narayanasamy, | request you to allow the debates. Members will not
speak what you want, Members would speak what they want to. If it is
unparliamentary, or, if it is not according to the rules, | am here to guide
the House.

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Sir, | am on a point of order. (Interruptions)
He is making a demand that all the senior leaders of the Congress Party
should resign. That is an allegation. ...(/nterruptions)... Can we tolerate
what the hon. Member is saying? ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHARIMAN: Do not tolerate ...(/nterruptions)... Butyou
refute when your turn comes ...(Interruptions)... You know the rules.
...{Interruptions)... You are a senior Member of the House.
...(Interruptions)... You know where | have to intervene and where | have to
expunge. ...(Interruptions)... You know where | have to apply my discretion
...{Interruptions)...

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: He is talking my time. ...(Interruptions)...
Please do not deduct my time. .. (Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You also confine to the subject.
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN : | am not going away from the subject.
...(Interruptions)}...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Why are you bringing all the leaders and all
other things? ...(/nterruptions)... You just say what exactly is there.
...{Interruptions)...

SHRI! P.G. NARAYANAN: Mr. Natwar Singh should be removed from
the Congress Working Committee. Sir, | would like to know when the
Congress Party ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN : It is very difficult to control Tamil Nadu
Memebers. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI C. RAMACHANDRAIAH (Andhra Pradesh): He is from
Pondicherry. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: He is unnecessarily interfering.
...(Interruptions)...
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MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN : If they are not adhering to it and if you are
adhering to it, then you will be appreciated. ...(Interruptions)... Why do
you stand up? ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: | would like to know when the Congress Party
has become a trading house trading in precious oil. ...(Interruptions)... |
was also surprised when the Prime Minister gave a clean chit to Mr. Natwar
Singh. The Left parties have also been rallying behind Mr. Natwar Singh in
the name of solidarity with Saddam Hussain. Sir, there is nothing wrong
with expressing solidarity with a cause like Iraq and Saddam Hussain
when the US forces have not been able to recover any Weapons of Mass
Destruction even after years since they deposed Saddam Hussain. Sir,
expressing solidarity with a cause like Iraq is a good thing, but getting
money in return, if proved, is an obnoxious deed.

SHRI VAYALAR RAVI : Sir, | am on a point of order. ...(Interruptions)...
Itis only a notion. ...(Interruptions)... It is not correct. ...(Interruptions)... It
is only an allegation made in a report. ...(Interruptions)... Itis a very serious
matter. ... (Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN : You should follow the rules.
...{Interruptions)... If there is any allegation in the discussion, on the basis
of that you cannot come to a conclusion. ...{/nterruptions)...

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN : They are purposely interfering.
...{Interruptions)... What can | do? ...{interruptions)...

SHRIVAYALAR RAVI : He is misleading the House. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN : | am not misleading. ...(Interruptions)... Let
them answer. ...(Interruptions)... The AIADMK also has expressed solidarity
with Iraq against the acts of President Bush. We hold the view that no
superpower could invade a sovereign country and change its leader by
force. But AIADMK was n2t a non-contractua!l beneficiary. We are proud
that we expressed solidarity with the cause without expecting any benefit
in return. Sir, | would urge the Left parties not to mix up lraq with Iran.
Since the charges are serious, | demand that Mr. Natwar Singh should as
removed from the Cabinet. | am told Mr. Singh has already been removed
from various Cabinet Committees of the Govetnment. If he is not removed
from the Government till the judicial committee clears him, it would mean
that the Government is succumbling to his blackmail. Mr. Singh thinks no
end of himself. ...(Interruptions)...
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SHRI VAYALAR RAVI : He cannot say like this. ...(/nterruptions)...
SHRI KAPIL SIBAL : No, no, that is not fair. ...(/nterruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN : What did he say? ...(Interruptions)... Okay,
I will look into the record. .. (Interruptions)...

'SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN ' it is time that Mr. Natwar Singh is grounded
till he is cleared by the Committee. Sir, the Congress President shouid
also step down while owning moral responsibility ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY : Your Chief Minister has all the criminal
cases pending against her. She should have resigned. Your people are
making allegations without any basis. How many cases is your Chief
Minister facing? Your Chief Minister is facing more than 17 cases in Tamil
Nadu.(Interruptions)

PROF. P.J. KURIAN (Kerala) : Miss Jayalalitha was arrested.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN : Mr. Narayanasamy, please sit down.
Mr. Kurian, please sit down.

- SHRIN. JOTHI : Sir, Mr. Narayanasamy is ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN : Mr. Narayanasamy, please sit down.
...{Interruptions)...

it TSRO qifor: ITEYTYfd TRy ... (SaEF)...
ot Iymvmafa: €. W, . A= H E o =it T A 2 L (HaeE).. I
g Afaq ... (5a39T)... Please conclude.

SHRI P.G. NARAYANAN: Sir, | am concluding. Legally they may escape
but morally they may not escape. With these words, | support this motion.

SHR1 RAM JETHMALANI (Maharashtra): Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir...

SHRIN. JOTHI: | want to know from the Chair whether Mr. Narayanasamy
has got a privilege in this House to accuse anybody.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Neither you have nor he has the privilege.
No Member has the privilege. That is why Mr. Jothi ...(/nterruptions)... No
member has the privilege to ...(Interruptions)... Please ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI N. JOTHI: We will control him. We know how to do that. We will
sit here on adharna. (Interruptions)
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SHRI JANARDHANA POOJARY: Don't do that. Please sit down.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Poojary, please sit down. Mr. Jothi,
neither Narayanasamy...

SHRI J. JOTHI: We are not cowards.

MR. DEPUTY GHAIRMAN: No, please, listen to me. When you don't
listen to the Chair you are also getting the privilege. | am requesting again
and again that we can do better business, we can discuss the problem in
a better way if we control ourselves and then allow the democratic process
to go. You will not say wnat Mr. Marayanasamy wants to say and
Mr. Narayanasamy will not say what you want to say. Let us understand
each other.

SHR! RAM JETHMALANI: Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, we are discussing
a very important subject. There is no doubt. Sir, the zeal and the ability
with which the two very distinguished lawyers on both sides have presented
their cases show the importance of what is being argued. Both of them
somehow are one at least on cone issue. They said that Mr. Jethmalani
knows some law.

SHRI! KAPIL SIBAL: | have to put it on record that | have the privilege of
learning a lot of law from him.

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: | must only say this for the benefit of the
whole House that | am no more practising criminal law. | have put up a
notice board outside my House that you are welcome to see me for anything
except for a case civil or criminal. But, Sir, | must say only this that | have
the unpleasant task of disagreeing with both on a vital issue of iaw. Sir, let
me start with a couple of introductory remarks. They make an accusation
and on this side comes a reply, 'You are no better. You are worse.' | don't
subscribe to this line of argument. It is only bad for democracy. If the
Opposition is worse than the Ruling Party, it is a sad day for the indian
democracy. And, Sir, two wrongs never make a right. | have no doubt that
ultimately they paid the price which in a democracy has to be paid for
having done an extremely wrong thing in the matter of Tehelka. Mr. Kapit
was right that they did not live up to the standards which are required of a
Government and |, who had been their life-long friend, had to part with their
company because my conscience could not, possibly, reconcile with the
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sad state of affairs. However, Sir, we have to deal with this case on its
merits. '

The second thing | wish to say is, that unfortunately, loyalty to the party
and the immediate benefit to the party make you somewhat impervious tc
the cause of truth. There is a tendency to indulge in irresponsible
adventurism, hasty and premature conclusions and judgments often based
upon no legal evidence or even any moral evidence. | regret that the same
thing has happened, to a large extent, in this case. Sir, however
distinguished my friend, Mr. Arun Jaitley, as a lawyer, may be, | don't think
his presentation does very great credit to the mover of this Resolution. |
would not call it a waste of time because matters like this must be debated
here. They add to the fund of knowledge of the elector. He has a right to
know how his elected representatives are behaving in Parliament and
elsewhere. And, | think, it adds to his fund of knowledge which is good for
democracy and which is good for our Parliamentary system of governance.
Sir, 1 am prepared to take the case of Mr. Arun Jaitley and put it on a higher
footing than Mr. Kapil Sibal did. | am not suggesting that Mr. Sibal is
wrong. His arguments have to be evaluated by this House. But, let me
take it that what we have been hearing is not merely an opinion of
Mr. Volicker or the author of that Report. Let us assume that the 1,000-
page document which now has been handed over actually mentions that
two coupons were issued—oné in the name of the Congress Party and
one in the name of Mr. Natwar Singh. Let us assume that the documents
record that these coupons were cashed and a sur-charge was paid and
both, the Saddam Government and the beneficiaries of this contract made
a proift out of it. Does even this documentary evidence amount to any kind
of evidence, both in law and in commonsense? | am surprised that this
argument came from Mr. Arun Jaitley, who has been the lawyer of
Shri L.K. Advani in the Hawala case. What was that case all about? That
case was related to the finding of entries in the account books of jains
saying that some payments have been made to Mr. L.K. Advani. After long
arguments by Mr. Arun Jaitley, the trial court framed charges but the High
Court quashed them on the ground that entries made in the account books
of Mr. Jain cannot possibly be treated as evidence against Mr. L.K. Advani.

SHRIN. JOTHI: Sir, | am on a point of order. (Interruptions) Thereis a
legal issue. ...(Interruptions)... Please, please. (Interruptions)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Let us hear him also. (/nterruptions)
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SHRIN. JOTHI: Sir, Shri Ram Jethamalani said that the court had said
that document book was not evidence. That is not correct. What the court
had said was, loose sheets were not account books. (/nterruptions)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: There is no point of order. (Interruptions)
There is no point of order. (Inferruptions) You proceed, Mr. Jethmalani.
(Interruptions)

SHRI RAM JETHMALANI: Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, my friend has not
read the judgement. It was held in the judgement that loose sheets could
not constitute a bock at all. But the Supreme Court had alsc held that
entries in the books of accounts were not legally admissible evidence.
But, that apart, this is law and this is technicality. What is the common
sense behind this law which we tend to forget? The common sense behind
this law is that, ultimately, who the persons are who make these documents
and bring them into existence. They are admittedly the perpetrators of the
crime; they are accomplices in the crime. They are the documents made
by the accomplices. And, the first criticism that we have learnt in every
court Mr. Jothi can't be ignorant of it—for two hundred years the courts
have said that you cannot rely upon the evidence of an accomplice for the
simple reason that he knows his true accomplice. He has a tendency and
has a loyalty to his accomplice. He must do his best to conceal the
identity of that accomplice and substitute somebody else in his place.
This is the common sense behind this.

Now, Sir, | want to deal with the facts of this case. Imag'ine fora moment
Sir, that the Congress Party and Mr. Natwar Singh decided in that fateful
year 2001 that they were both going toc make some money out of this
coupon system. And, having so decided, do you think, Sir, that the whole
Congress Party consists of such fools that they would say that please
issue the coupons in their name, please make the entries in your books of
account in their name, and piease create the best documentary evidence
against them. Sir, nobody will do so. As a criminal lawyer of some
experience | tell you that when my clients name appears under these
circumstances, | start with the assumption that the case against them
must be false. And, Sir, if Mr. Natwar Singh came and said to the Congress
leaders that they were about to make a huge profit out of that, do you think
that the Congress Party would tell him that you have a bigger contract of
five lakh dolfars and they would have a smaller share of 200,000 doliars.
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Sir, no fool does it. To imagine that contracts were created by the consent
of the Congress Party in their name, when they were supposed to share
only 20,00 dollars, whereas the other fellow got 5,00,000 thousand dollars
is absurd. This is altruism, which does not exist and cannot be accepted
as true. Assume, that this must be totally false. Bear in mind that it is not
suggested that a single penny has gone into the coffers of the Congress
Party, not a single penny has been earned by any recognized representative
of the Congress Party. Nothing has gone into the account of any party. It
is said that Mesfield was the person who ultimately cashed the coupons.
And, suppose if Mesfield has to really piead with the iraqis that he is a fit
person to whom they must give the coupons, what do you think he will
say? He will say, "l am a person who has some influence in India. | will be
able to get those people on your side. | will see to it that they support you
in the international struggles to which you are a party, we will protect your
rights, and so on and so forth". All that will be done, and the name that
would appear, therefore, would be the name of the person whose influence
he had tried to use and sell. The fact remains that the allegation is that a
large number of Indians...Mr. Kapil Sibal read the statement of the ex-
Minister, Naik. What does it show? It shows that it was known to the
Minister of the NDA Government that a large number of Indian businessmen
were making profits out of these coupons. And, yet, he did not wink for a
minute, he took no action. On the contrary, he said that it is very likely
that he helped them to get business. If he helped them to get business,
Sir, knowing the sordid world in which we live, who do you think he must
have patronised? He must have patronisd those whom he knew; some
people belonging to his party, some people belonging to his constituency,
some people belonging to the RSS. This is how life works. So, Sir, what
would he tell them? "Don't put the name of my party or anybody connected
with me, there is the Congress Party sitting in the Opposition, name them."
(Interruptions) Sir, there is not one word of evidence. Not ohe in those
voluminous books to suggest that anybody on behalf of the Congress
participated in these confabulations. Even so, Sir, | must say at this stage
that if Mr. Arun Jaitley has some solid evidence that these young people
who accompanied the delegation at that time were involved in confabulations
with the Oil Ministry officials in Iraq, it is perfectly possible that these
young men to be able to curry favour, they used the name, probably, of his
own father or they used the name of the Congress Party, but they will not
use the name of the actual party which was trying to do business, or
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which was helping them in doing business in iraq. Sir, | am convinced on
this evidence that it is an overheated imagination to accuse the Congress
Party of being involved in this corruption. Is it or is it not an overheated act
" of political malice that you must ask for the resignation of Mrs. Sonia
Gandhi? What has she done? Is there even a little of evidence against that
poor weman that she should resign from the post which she is holding?
Even in the case of Mr. Natwar Singh it is argued that the Prime Minister
did something wrong. The Prime Minister has given him a clean chit. Sir,
| do not know whether it is understood what a clean chit means. To ask a
Minister to give up his Department and be a Minister without a portfolio,
whith means without any work, it is 90 per cent dirt. Maybe, some man
without self-respect may see in the remaining ten per cent some evidence
of cleanliness. But | find that there is not a clean chit given. It is worse
than asking a person to resign from office and get out. It is dependent
- upon the dignity and the sense of self-respect of that person to do what he
likes. But, Sir, the Prime Minister cannot possibly be accused either way.
He has not given a clean chit. If he had to give a clean chit, he would retain
him where he was and, Sir, he has also not tried to hold that on this flimsy
evidence the man is guilty. You cannot visit the father with the sins of his
child. Even if Dr. Manmohan Singh came to the conclusion that, perhaps,
his son has something to do with his business, he could not ask the
Minister to resign merely on the ground that there is some suspicion
against the son.

Now, Sir, a couple of differences which | have with my friend Mr. Kapil
Sibal and where | agree with my friend Mr. Arun Jaitley. It is true that
Saddam was not a public servant as defined in the Prevention of Corruption
Act. Itis true that all those Iraqi gentlemen who were acting on behalf of
the Government of Irag, and entered into these unholy delas in contravention
of the U.N. Security Council Resolution were public servants under their
own law, but they are not public servants under our law. Therefore, to that
extent, Mr. Kapil Sibal is right. On the other hang, those persons who
went and sought business and used the name of the Congress were either
guilty of cheating under Section 420 because they pretended to have an
authority or influence which they did not have, and, therefore, they made a
misrepresentation and were guilty of offences under Section 420 of the
indian Penal Code or under Section 8 of the Prevention of Corruption Act.
The Prevention of Corruption Act punishes also private citizens and not
merely public servants. Therefore, Sir, to some extent, Mr. Arun Jaitley is
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4.00 p.m.

right. The offences, if any, are disclosed here, they are offences either
under the Indian Penal Code or under the Prevention of Corruption Act. On
one more point say that Mr. Kapil is wrong. You don't file FIRs when you
are convinced that an offence has been committed. Offence has to be
inquired into when within the meaning of section 154 of the Criminal
Procedure Code there is a reasonable suspicion that an offence has been
committed. So, Sir, today, | don't believe that reasonable suspicion exists
so far as the Congress Party is concerned. | don't believe that it exists
even against Mr. Natwar Singh, but there is some reasonable suspicion
against many Indian citizens who canvassed this business, and, probably,
misuse the name of the Congress Party . And Sir, there is no difficuity in
registering FIRs against them and having the case investigated with proper
powers under section 166 of the Criminal Procedure Code.

Sir, the last point that | wish to make is that the fauilt of the Congress
Party— in the past which turned me into an enemy of the Congress Party
at one time— is the lack of transparency. Sir, that you have got thousands
of documents, please show them to the public. The people are entitled to
know. What is the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act? You have given
them to the DER, but what are they going to do with the documents? Why
keep them away from the public? This is the highest court of justice. This
is the court which inquires into and conducts investigation and inquisitions
into the conduct of everybody. Preduce those documents. | have no doubt
that the honour of the Congress Party and its dignity will be a thousand
per cent enhanced when they show this transparency in their dealings in
Parliament. Produce those documents. Tell the Leader of the Opposition
that you come and look at these documents yourself, and let us understand
what you have to say about them. Take them into confidence, Sir. According
to me it would be a jewel in their crown, and | have no doubt that their
reputation shall stand enhanced. Thank you.

SHRI C. RAMACHANDRAIAH: With due respect to Shri Ram Jethmalani,
today, he was on the judgement side, assessing the performance of the
two legal luminaries in this august House. Sir, everybody has tried to
justify with their own arguments about the contentions they made in the
august House. But, for me, | am fully convinced that there is a prima facie
evidence that is available. And, the Prime Minister was also right in ordering
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for the constitution of a committee, because he would have been convinced
that there was a prima facie evidence. That is what | believe. Sir, it is very
. unfortunate that we opposed sanctions, we opposed invasion of Iraq. it
was a global catastrophe that has been averted by introducing the oil-for-
food scheme, but, very unfortunately, this has become a global controversy,
this has become a source of global corruption, and, naturally, India is no
exception to it. Sir, | can't rubbish it as a fictional documents . But, at the
same time, [ cannot treat it as a Gospel of Truth also. But, | feel that some
prima facie evidence is there, with the documents that are available, with
the funds that have been channelised from sc and so accounts to so and
s0 accounts, from so and so country to so and so account; otherwise,
there is no rationality. The rational conclusion | can make is that there is a
prima facie case. | think, as | said, the Prime Minister should have been
convinced in ordering the constitution of that committee. Sir, why Mr. Natwar
Singh and Congress Party names alone were included, why not of others?
Why are they so inimical to this Party or that individual? And, some opinion
has been gained and some apprehensions have been entertained that a
pro-US lobby......... It is conspiring to remove Shri Natwar Singh from the
Ministry of External Affairs. | read it in the magazine. | read the article. |
don't want to take the name because | may not be permitted to mention
the name. That is why | am rather constraint. But | have seen the report.
The names of the countries which are strong supporters of the United
States are also_mentioned in it. If they are clever culprit, as Shri Ram
Jethmalani had been saying, they should have taken precautions not to
include the countries' names which are supporting the United States. So,
my impression is, ...(Interruptions)...

SHRIMATI BRINDA KARAT (West Bengal): Which country?
...(Interruptions)... Not a single country.

SHRI N. JOTHI: Italy, France. | know it primarily.

SHRI C. RAMACHANDRAIAH: Switzerland, Yes; France, in their
opinion, then, Australia. ...(Interruptions)... |1 don't think | should mention
more than two countries.

SHRI N. JOTHI: ltaly is-there.

SHRI C. RAMACHANDRAIAH: So, what | feel is that this apprehension
also seems to be an untenable error, may not be based on the facts.
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One more question that arises, Sir, is this. The persons, the parties,
which have been entertaining such apprehensions, are of the opinion that
this present dispensation is coming closer to the United States. Because
they have mentioned about two incidents. One is signing of the Indo-
American Defence Agreement and voting on Iraq. When such is the case,
a person can be easily removed from the Cabinet. Where is the necessity
of such vested interest to exert their influence and get it done? So, what
1 am trying to arrive at is, there is some credence to this report, some
credibility is there to this Report. We cannot totally set it aside it and
rubbish it.

Sir, | would like to make one more point. If their apprehensions are
correct, is our Government or the country is so weak that the other nations
can influence us? What is the security of this country? Sir, these are ali
very important questions. Corruption is the order of the day. A great leader
of this country has accepted it. There was no Session in which we had
not discussed about the corruption and scams. We have been doing i,
and we have become so immune to it, so insensitive to it, but this queston
Is related to the national interest, national security. If any country or any
leader outside India can influence this country to formulate its own foreign
policy, where are we today? Are we still non-aligned? So, these are all
facts which have to be discussed at the national level before coming to a
conclusion. ...{Interruptions)... We are, in no way, relevant now. Your friendly
parties are making all these statements. They are writing in the magazines
for information, to take care of it. The Telugu Desam Party is not relevant
to you now. But a day will come, when we will dominate the scene.
..(Interruptions)... Because, itis a number game.

Sir, one more thing. They have chosen to serve a notice to the United
Nations. They have chosen to serve a notice to the United Naitons,which
can't be—1 think, | am a layman, | am not a legal man, | am small farmer
coming from a remote village. Can the United Nations be prosecuted in
these courts? What is the wisdom of the Congress Party in serving a
notice on the United Nations? Sir, | feel the United Nations has got its own
immunity. It is an international body, and.a duly constituted committee
has inquired into it. A Person not iess than a former Chairman of the
American Federal Reserve has drafted the report. So, if at all we are not
interested, we could say, he is not of any consequence, and this and that.
But for outsiders, what is the perception? How can we make the United

295



RAJYA SABHA [29 November, 2005]

Nations accountable for it? It is only their observation. Itis nota prosecution;
they have not served any notice that we are going to be prosecuted. It is
their observation. Of course, unfortunately, that observation has become
an issue here.

Sir, my real concern is—and | had the privilege of discussing it earlier—
political parties have been trying to perpetuate themselves in power or
politics for which they have been receiving funds from so many organizations,
and not only Indian industrialists, but foreign countries and organizations
also. But if such is the case, can we maintain our independence, our
integrity and our sovereignty. And there is no exception in this. There are
a number of allegations against so many parties and it seems there are
no puritans, altruistic parties or personalities. But this has been the main
concern, Sir, right from the time the abolition of donations to political parties
by Madam Indira Gandhi. Of course, to a certain extent, they have been
relaxed now, but everybody is aware that political parties need funds to
run themselves. Now, how to procure those funds? This is an important
question. Sir, this needs to be discussed and appropriate measures need
to be initiated so that the country's integrity and sovereignty are not
compromised at any point of time.

Sir, | do not want to take much time. | conclude by saying that there is
a Prima facie evidence in this case and the Government should be very
sincere. | do not know, to what extent this present committee of inquiry is
effective. Because | am not a legal expert; | am not aware of this section
and that section. Today, | got totally confused...(Interruptions)... | have
heard that when you are unable to convince a person, itis better to confuse
him! | got totally confused!...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You know only about the Income Tax and
Companies Acts: no other law ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI C. RAMACHANDRAIAH: So, whatever may be the body that you
are going to create to inquire about this scam, do make the allegations,
but be effective and do justice. Let the skeletons come out of the cupboards.
Don't feel ashamed, because it at all there are any skeletons, the other
parties also have their own skeletons. You are not extraodinary people.
But, ultimately, take care of the national interest, national security and
sovereignity so that we can raise out heads among the Comity of Nations
with pride. Thank you, Sir.
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MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Anand Sharma, your request for quoting
other evidences is not accepted. So, you have to confine to the subject
only.

SHRIANAND SHARMA (Himachal Pradesh): | shall do that, Sir. Hon.
Deputy Chairman Sir, | rise here to oppose the Motion, which has been
moved by ShriArun Jaitley. Going by the wording of the Motion itself, | was
wondering about the justification of this discussion.

| do admit that in a democracy, Parliament is the highest forum of
discussion and debate. But here, our friends in the Opposition have
disrupted Parliament for days together and then, persisted that there should
be a discussion. The wording of the Motion is "about the inaction'. That, in
itself, is misplaced, unfair and incorrect.

Sir, it miliitates against the facts and realities and also the response of
this Government. The intention of the BJP and other friends in the Opposition
is clear. Their quest is not for ascertaining the truth; nor is it a fight for
political morality or probity. It is, in fact, a partisan political agenda. They
have found in this Violcker Report a convenient tool of destraction because
this party has been bereft of any meaningful political issue or agenda for
quite some time. Ever since their defeat, they have been groping in the
dark or fighting among themselves. We do not know as to who is in or who
is out. It is like a revolving door. They themselves do not know this because
people who are sitting in Nagpur will decide whose fate when. Sir, that is
exactly what the issue here is. ...(Interruptions)... '

SHRI SURENDRALATH: This is not relevant. ...(Interruptions)... Why
is he saying like this? ...(Interruptions)... We refute it. ...(Interrupfions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please confine to the subejct.
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI RUDRA NARAYAN PANY: Who is sitting at Nagpur?
...(Intefruptions)... )

sit SggwTafy . =2, et | et Ay . (HaEm)

it GO M3 T, T8 P A W2 ...(FIEM)

gt sggrafa: di B, @19 Afsw) ... (=aue)

it AT i W, wgtﬁi‘mﬂiﬁml (=aum)... IR § g e
1. (=aum)
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st Irmymafa: ssm A £ oy AT L (smEEE) Wi &, wmm Sfsw
..(TEaA)
SHRI ANAND SHARMA: Please don't interrupt. | will request you to

have the patience. The problem with you is that you are intolerant of criticism
and of hearing the truth. Please sit down. . ..{/nterruptions)...

SHRISURENDRA LATH: You are intolerant. ...(Interruptions)...

2 TGl QI01: WEEH, BH GeoteR T 379 919 T@a ¢ 31 3= st o/ " 8
S WE? ..(mau)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Anand Sharma, please come to the
subject. ...(Interruptions).. Why are you getting provoked? ...(Interruptions) ..

Please speak on the subject. ...(/nterruptions)... 3T ¥af S, 379 T=ae
YT AT | '

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Sir, | must say one thing, before | start focussing
on this debate, that when the Mover of the Motion was speaking for one
hour and eighteen minutes, he was allowed to speak without any
interruption, and | must also say that the Mover of the Motion had made
many references. .. (Interruptions)...

SHRI SURENDRA LATH:*

sit Iumwrafa: 7, A€ 1 39 &f3w Without permission, you cannot get up.
..{Interruptions)... Mr. Sharma, you please come to the subject.
... (interruptions)...

SHRI ANAND SHARMA: | cannot be told by them what to speak on
...{Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: They are not telling. Why are ycu taking
cognisance of what they say? It is not going on record. ¥ T 919
HIfTT | 3119 A Wree gra 812

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Sir, the Volcker Report which is being referred
to was a U.N. Enquiry Committee Report. Based on that is this discussion.
In the discussion, the Indian National Congress was given many moral
sermons by the Mover of the Motion, Mr. Arun Jaitley, who has denied me
the courtesy of being present here because he is absent.

*Not recorded.
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When political charges are levelled, when baseless insinuations are
made, when aspersions are cast on the high office even of the Prime
Minister and the person of the Prime Minister, you expect me to remain
quiet and when | answer, you react. That wili not happen. You cannot
misuse this forum to mislead. You cannot misuse this forum to carry
out a political campaign based cn haif-truth and disinformation to malign
a political party and its teadership. Sir, the Voicker Enquiry Report had
generated interest not only in India but world-wide. Now, Sir, our initial
response of the Congress Party was of disbelief and outrage. We had
said that we have been unfairly named. We had no inkling, no information,
and we said that we would examine all options including the legal option
if it was available. But we said that we would seek a full-length
comprehensive disclosure from the United Nations, from the Volcker
Committee, on what basis, on what evidence, this naming was done.
Sir, | must put on record that the Congress President, despite many
misleading and baseless references which were made, expressed a feeling
of hurt and anger and made it amply clear from day one that the truth
would be ascertained and if there was an iota of truth in any insinuation
or any allegation against any individual, action would be taken. What
could be a better response? Sir, the Prime Minister, to whom very
uncharitable references were made, also made it clear from day one,
when the issue of the Foreign Minister statement came up, he said,
"There is nothing to disprove it". And, he stands by that. But, it is the
same Prime Minister who also said that no effort would be spared to get
at the bottom of it and the truth shall be found out. Now, Arun Jaitleyji,
while moving the Motion, was selective in quoting. It was very convenient
for him to make a distorted presentation through those selected quotes.
Therefore, it is important to set the record straight. Sir, this Report has
named a large number of people, entities, political leaders, political
organisations, not only in India, but also all over the worid, in the United
Kingdom, in Russia, in France, in Indonesia, in South Africa, and | can
go on,; it is a long list of people who are serving even today in various
Governments in important positions in other countries. Sir, what has
been the reaction? First, many countries or many such entities involved
did question the approach, the methodology. Here we have an inquiry
instituted by the Government. But, at the same time, we must not overlook
some of the facts or some of the objections which others have raised
world over about the method of investigation of the Committee. Also,
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there was no sourcing of information provided in Tables one and three to
back the listing what they are saying of the non-contractual beneficiaries
which includes according to them the indian National Congress and
Shri Natwar Singh. So, when there is no sourcing of information provided
as to why the naming has been done, certain questions are definitely
asked. Sir, there is another issue, The elementary rule of fairplay was
abandoned by not giving a notice to the Indian National Congress and
the non-contracutal beneficiaries. Sir, any person with basic knowledge

,of law would say, and that is the law in this country too, that when no
notice is given that report would be void. That is an essential pre-requisite.
The Indian National Congress is a pre-eminent political party of this country.
It has fought for the freedom of this country. It has led free India, provided
efficient Governments after Governments. The Indian National Congress
has its own history. It was not difficult for a notice to be sent for us to be

_informed. We have an address; we have a presence; we have an
existence. Now here, what is the opposition's approach? Action. What
action do they want? What is the agenda? Action is here. Let the inquiry
start. An independent inquiry authority has been set up. But, they want
to pre-judge what they actually are pleading for? Our friends in the -
Opposition are pleading for-damn before an inquiry, hang before an inquiry,
award punishment. This is like turning the law upside down. It is against
the principles of natural justice what was being argued here. Sir, | can
understand the political purpose to name and their perverse sense of joy
when any such unfair reference to the party like the Indian National Congres
comes. But, Sir, there is another issue which has come in the course of
the debate. It is that the material as such has been unverified. That is
what Mr. Kapil Sibal was saying. The material has been brought by the
Government, so that only after it is verified by the Inquiry Authority, by
the concerned agencies, one can draw any inference, adverse or
otherwise.

Also, Sir, one thing which has been mentioned here is that the records
as such are not complete; many of the records after the invasion were
partially damaged, burnt; they have been recreated. And it would be the
job of the inquiry Committee to find out as to how they have been recreated,
which were the agenices, which was the authority test make available all
the concerned documents to the Voicker Committee.
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Sir, here | may add one thing as | was referring earlier to the point that
large number of entities worldwide have been name. What has been the
reaction in other countries? From outright rejection to terming specific
insinuations as forgeries. My friend, Shri Sitaram Yechury, earlier had
referred tothe British MP Galloway and said that he not only challenged it
but actually threatened to sue them. And there was a retraction, especially
against the tabloid which had prominently published the charges against
him. The Russian Foreign Minister has rejected it. The African National
Congress of south Africa was named, the head of the organisation is the
President of the country. But Sir, what has been the reaction in other
countries? There the oppostion has not resorted to bedlam, disruption or
demanding resignations. India is an exception on two counts. First, how
our friends have acted or reacted. Secondly, how the Government has
acted. India is the only country, which has acted; India is the only country
which has set up an independent Inquiry Committee headed by a former
Chief Justice of India; India is the only country which has identified. and
named, an empowered envoy, who is none other than a distinguished
diplomat who served the United Nations as Under-Secretary-General. He
went along with other officials, including the officials of the Directorate of
Enforcement, and brought back the documents what they are now
demanding should be made public. Yes, the documents would come out,
butitis for the Inquiry Authority first to see; it is for them to examine these
documents. Sir, | will say that when we are debating any issue, when we
say that the pristing glory of the Parliament has to be restored, then what
the Government has done should have been at least acknowledged rather
than levelling charges which are motivated and baseless.

Sir, | am constrained to say that because what was said was not fair,
especially the insinuations and some of the aspersions against our leaders
and the Head of the Government. (Time-beli) Sir, | will take a few minutes.
As | was saying that our response here has been firm and quick, there is
progress which is there before the country. But, Sir, the mover of the
motion had said that it is weak, this enquiry will not reveal much, you will
come up against the wall, it is more of a whitewash or a cover-up. It
sounded strange coming from the former Law Minister of the previous
Government. And it compels me though references have been made to
make a comparison with Tehelka where people were caught on camera
and no case was registered, and today they are demanding FIRs to be
registered on unverified information and without evidence. So, they are
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trying to take a moral high ground and preach political values to a political
party which has always adhered to values and principles in this country.
Sir, not only no case was registered, the enquiry there took an opposite
direction. The journalist of Tehelka portal who exposed their political ieaders
and cothers was persecuted and booked under false cases and imprisaned.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please conclude.

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Sir, if you read the affidavits which were filed
before the Commission on Inquiry, it will show how the then Government
was stonewalling. And today, they stand up and they try to say what
should be a fair enquiry! Sir, | must also put one thing on record here. At
that time, allegations were made against political leaders, against the
officials and the Armed Forces officers. There were double standards
followed. The Armed Forces officers who were named in the same Tehelka
revelations, they were court-martialled and the political leaders were
protected. They were also talking about the Foreign Minister, Shri Natwar
Singh, being only divested. Let me remind them, the then Prime Minister,
Shri Atal Behari Vajpayeeji took the resignation of the then Defence Minister,
Shri George Fernandes, stating very clearly that he will return to the
Government only if the innocence is established by the Commission of
Inquiry. But the Commission of Inquiry went in the wrong direction and the
Minister returned to the same post. And they are talking here about values
and about probity! '

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please conclude. You have already taken
much more time.

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Sir, 1 will. Well, the mover of the motion took
twice the time.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Not that way.

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Just give me a few more minutes, Sir. Sir, one
more thing is..........

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: There are 11 more Members to speak.

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Sir, | will say that | just have three points to
make. | will quickly make them. Please permit me. Sir, much was also
said about 'since 1947' and about the 'legacy'. | must say that the Congress
. Party does not need any sermon on nationalism and patriotism from the
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other side. We have a proven record of leading the freedom movement; our
leaders have made sacrifices before the freedom struggle and after the
freedom struggle. Our leaders have been martyred for the cause of the
nation. Those who were opposed to the national movement, those who
opposed the freedom struggle, they talk of the l[egacy. Then, there is also
the legacy of those who opposed Gandhi, who opposed the Civil
Disobedience Movement and who were apologists for the colonial masters
which is proven by the records of the British Home Office...(/nterruptions)...

it ITANTY(E: 39 W F T4 T, AW Food W AR ., (FaUR)

SHRI ANAND SHARMA: | didn't say that...(Interruptions).. Much has
been said on that, Sir. Okay, | will come back.

PROF. P.J. KURIAN: He did not mention. Why should they get
up...{Interruptions)...

& Iquvrefa: wis, 3mg afsu | Please conclude.

- SHRIANAND SHARMA: Piease, Sir. When samme things are said from

the other side, we are expected to hear quietly and we don't have the right
even to plead our own case and to tell what we stand for. Sir, here there
was another issue raised of foreign funding.

MR. DEFUTY CHAIRMAN: No, no...(Inferruptions)...

SHRIANAND SHARMA,; It is relevant. No, Sir, it was raised here today.
Please, Sir...(Interruptions)...

MR.DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Chair has not permitted to quote anything
on foreign funding because that is not the issue.

SHRIANAND SHARMA: | am not quoting. It was said. Either you have
that expunged from the record...(Interruptions)... No, Sir. It was said in
greater detail that this has become the source of funding for my Party, and
that this is the new form of FDI. Why should | notbe permitted to respond
to that? | fail to understand that.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You respond to the queries raised on the
subject.

SHRIANAND SHARMA: So far as my Party is concerned, the Congress
Party, we have, from the day one asked for the truth to come out. This
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Government is making: all those efforts. But when it comes to foreign
funding, we stand against that. But there have been published reports of
foreign funding, which have been received by organizations, by political
parties. In fact, the Finance Minister is sitting here, and | have no hesitation,
nor you should have any objection that we would like to know whether an
organization, called the*...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is another matter...(Interruptions)...
SHRIANAND SHARMA: | am demanding an inquiry...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Anand Sharma, please
conclude...(Interruptions)...

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Can | not demand an inquiry?...(Interruptions)...
MR. DEPUTY CHAIRAMN: You speak on the subject...(interruptions)...

SHRIANAND SHARMA: | am demanding an inquiry from the Govemment.
As a member of this House, | have a right to know why should it be? You
have aright to say anything to us!...(/nferruptions)...

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Sir, he has made a very serious aliegation
against the BJP...(interruptions)...

st gow wRg™ (o= w2w) : WY, 9% wayd €191 Aif¥y 1. (S9au)

st wARTEY wifen: Y, 7 @ | a8 9 wfew L (sa|aum).

SHRIANAND SHARMA: | have not made a serious gllegation. These
reports have been published. | have got the reports.. (/nterruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Anand Sharma, listen to me. You have
got the reports, you have made you point. Their objection is, without notice,
you are raising this issue...(Interruptions)... Please conclude. | have given
sufficient time to you. Please conclude...(Interruptions)...

SHRIYASHWANT SINHA: Sir, this remark has to go...(/nterruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: [ will look into it...(/nterruptions)... Mr. Anand

Sharma, if you are alleging anything, their simple objection is that you
have to give a notice...(/nterruptions). .

*Expunged as ordered by the Chair.
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SHRI ANAND SHARMA: Sir, 1 am demanding an imguiry from the
Govermment. Can't | do thatt®

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: BeMeMngmaﬁme you have to
give nolice.

SHRI ANAND SHARMA: They are demankding registration of an FIR.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You should have taiken cbiection to that it
tihat point of time... (interruptions).... | will examine that.

SHR! YASHWANT SINHA: Please expunge hat rermark.

SHRIMATI SUSHMA SWARA.J- Sir, this remark being imelevant to the
debate, kindly expunge il. B, Y WHIE TS B THEGS FI QAT |

SHRI ANAND SHARMA: How do you say that it is inmellevant? Sir, |
was imellievant to the debate, if you think so, then what was said by the
movesr of the Molion, alll the references or insinuations Mmade, 2spersions

cast which were not reievant to the debate, shouild 250 be expunged. it
_ cammot be one way.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Nﬂmmubemmm 1 have said
thaik | vkl lock imto i

SHRI ANAND SHARMA : Niow, Sirr, wiith these words . (inferruplions) ...
¥ 1 am repeatedly interrupted. . (intermuptions)....

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Shamm, I have given you sufficient time.
You shouild appreciate that

SHRI ANAND SHARMA: Siir, please be fair to me. . (infermupiions). ..

SHRI RUDRA NARAYAN PANY: Are you challenging the Chair?. ..
{(inteqruptions)...

SHRI ANAND SHARMA: That role we have left to you peopie and the
coumtry has seen it...(inferrugpiions)... To concude, | will say one thing.

s SR i v S Tt T e B R W W S S
T i (xR

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: When are you guoiing o conclude?
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SHRI ANAND SHARMA: If the opposition want me not to conclude, |
will sit down. Every time, | am being interrupted. How can | conclude? The
moment | start speaking, | am being interrupted,

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Araind Sharnia, you are making a good
speech, you have very good nolris.

SHRI ANAND SHARMA: The moment | say that | conclude, the
interruptions start. Then whatdo | do?

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You please conclude. Now they will not
interrupt you. You please conclude. (/Interruptions)...

SHRI NILOTPAL BASU: You don't say that you are concluding. You
just conclude. (Interruptions)...

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Tehrefore, through mv interverition | have brought
forth the reasons why tiriv Moiion, snould be rejected by this House and
tr.ose behind this shcuid be exposed for their hypocrisy and double
standard. Thank you.

SHRIMAT! SUSHMA SWARAJ: Sir, | am on a point of order. T, AT
g2 3Th AL g & T 19 959 @ FW-FIQ I J9H o IR H < 9 e
Bfw railrr 2

MR.DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: They should be removed.

Sl o @ W, A a1 9 | fE S oft dem e w1 B, |97
HE HIes H ¢ |

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: | have expunged them. You are right.

SHA AT TS : TR F1E ARE* gl 31 * S ... (;Faur)...

it Iqmymafa: J3 TS o e 1 o 39 W) 98y 79 e | 3T T W HE
Feq e gt

SHRIANAND SHARMA: They were saying that there was no action on
the part of the Government. (Interruptions)...

SHRINILOTPAL BASU: | have one request that there are parties which
have consumed more time than the time allotted to them. So, if there is
any request from such parties, it should not be entertained. (/nterruptions)...

*Expunged as ordered by the Chair,
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SHRI N. JOTHI: No. | am objecting to this request because | have to
speak. (Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is his suggestion. (Interruptions)...
Mr. Jothi, that is his suggestion. (/Interruptions)...

SHRIN. JOTHI: | have to speak. (Interruptions)...

SHRINILOTPAL BASU: | did't mention the name of any party. Mr. Jothi,
| didn’t have you in mind. (Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: | have not given my ruling. (Interruptions)...
SHRIN. JOTHI: | want to speak. )

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: | had reminded your leader that you party
had 11 minutes, your party had two speakes and he should spare some
time for him also. (/nterruptions)...

SHRI N. JOTHI: All the time was consumed by that side. What can |
do? (Interruptions)...

St gEm TS T, F 5 St F1 9 w1 e S 1w ST o
faeel w@ ¥ wdifs Tar age @ 8 T € | FHE ot g v faggf vt sl d
Y Ty Tt fagl Y|

#t Tt e HWew (o) « wraar seyafa "aiey, AT st steur et i
A TF R o5 H S 9 HE o, I 9 w1 EsA 8 wn € S wee st s
Hive fasaet St ofi A st 19 Seuar S # SR 3R & g 39 wi¢ Ut |
T T T A W T S WY | TR, Al @ SR Y o o=t € Wl dieed
F Y 1 & | T 1S 7% B @1 ¥ 130 A e wfen § ofk mw Sh et
2, 9% STt ofik dgea Ug |9 Dl 1 o #1 Tor = gyl ¥ it diemt
i ot == @ ¥ o o fava &1 QR A g ¥ ol s
TR 8, I O & | ST G o4 YAy @, 2 Ao Jewt St 3 wen s AR
SN 3% 3 FRat | =78 wra Wl @ o uis o o= 5O H T 9, ganal Tl
off, @ yrd T 9, FifeT HE T €Y 7 S1Ee B S H e arpat i,
SR B fFa A 31 TE i A e 3 s @ orgaR W
69 fafera e Y o gom, sa# 18 fafoam Sler s/ften @ e, 7o T/, 3qeHt
e et & | AfRT 3T A S TS S a9, A e B feg, I @ e
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TR AN R, AT Er P MA v sd g dwriw iR R
FaiEamITT i ool wims m Soons ISR
AR sy @i @ s wa 8w 139 Sl oy e,
IR GO B T &Y 6 Sl S T SR e o e e e S
o w1 v, e st o, @ e ) g el A
RO T | W R R T AT SRS T @ I € TS
A RE WO /38 3m 8 g, 9= e 1 R TR S R ¥ =
TR P W4 30 ¥ T s e I, W @ e T 9w s
AT A SR S S GO ST SR TR A 1 QW Y R,
R A T 48w s sifvcra §, 5o wa S0 S R el e oY
T, i svmindia 7o afa wra vy @ waw $ 50| SR W SR e i
Tl T4l 77 3, B R R R e & am e v @
2 S S TR T TN o ST TR SR W e W,
e v/ ol TR TRl W@ I AR W R TR L, T AR
Lk b

Rz, e e &, e v @ e % e S o TR HCSR
1w e i o da ow € 3l e T e 99 e T AR
AR 1 R M A D vl = T AR A v o a s Rdd
T v vy, i v R P 0E e S W wRe = R
T, o R ) T e O Wi o < v e sl e weriies 3ol
¢ et > e O Soa § T I #
it daaw, faaw wos T wd & st € sl v @ sfasie
MR hmsemIndsulifF wuRfmImMudwd o
Jow ¥ IR D AN TS T I G YA S O S e 1
28 v & W I ww b vl Siffere 2 Sk # e e ) S
w3 W v g oA sl e faw e € T ) . @ deea A
A I i w1 Fredier e 1 o ol R T e g o 9, @
Jrere ¥ <R werE A, W S i, I 28 0, 2004 T v o W s
‘& srean & R wm o &, < wistor ) oraw S, I e a w
i AT WA TR A A8 %) T % R e, o 8 e v
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I T & it v foe o v w8 &, A fm R T tixwia o
= e vt @, 7 TlE W el s Rl mam v e s wl
et S MAswlslwwnicEmEsdwnws
T & (FAer)

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Sk, since he has referred 1o me, | would ke
o reply © t. # TR & o YET e I Rl aw i it aa
wER S A g, Wil se e ) olive ol srurs, Sk e wom
ARt AR TERI L IR TS AR
WRE I e xWE D anat? v mre s
iRl wsa i wAa Wt Wi veril Banidt @ aed
D WA IR A D VPR T §2 (SEeR)..

i vk @ vers: A wad s maER R RN (sewR)

ik woia g s o t s X v am ik R sl W %L A
g o aliy Tepmpifr v dwinswmifs i wan,
v e TR A we s e 2 ()

SHRIMA? I0J BHATTACHARYA (West Bengal): Sic, he has read it fom
the paper.

Il!.lfPU'lY CHAIRMAN: Siuluhﬂlﬁm hewaniod to Clanly
it view . e

3 o7 il wwa o N we) S awl o w s weinw su sl 4 v
I Y.y Few e S L (SR .

b= rerwle: S gora e t, suld ax iy
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it Tl AR (IT YY) : ITF9AA 7T, <7 area # 9gd Heca ol fowg
R =9l & W &, S Tar T @ 6 wrey s geg # 3w | 9 w9l gewed
+t ¥ 1 HERE, §gE UE €9 @ 3[0F § 39 & 95 IS S | 9 I
FrafaE) qun safedt #1 i srEfua el & w9 § wfuq dfera =1 faew
y&E # foan T 8, AfR wew Wea B 1 39 FH-wh i wdig et diea #
AR FH-FH Q 9T A diea R €, 39 F:1E qerers faate yema @
et iyt # @ fdt & 9 oft 78 & o 3 € 38 wiga R € 1 s 6 faam
a1 ol IR YA FIA TMfeT 1, I8 WY A9 7 ¥ | /G T F FE qed g
6 & | = Aea Wi e & ) S IR T A e ¥ | dey e W ey
ot 78t R, Tt & 13 & vwma = 9 o 1 e el 1 arg s € ik s
@t &1 mdiey, T A ot ¥ wrER R qurs St Y 3w 391 9te € F waw
R STHTR | € ER T ot Fea fig St &1 fa2w dared avs & faan 1520 $9a
e derera & araw = faan, sfew oy gfafa ft 3 @ @ g g & f S
i o 9%y & A gER SifaEl Y Sae F O afeg o | 3 e e
T EAoI 9 L A W TEaa A 8, 98 A0 va ° fd® ¥ ol wendta 1wy, O
A 7e a " € 6 Fedes €1 59 987 w1 vy Faie w0 i Aw S |t | gfaw
T TR S A B T o ot @ 1 W 9w o v R i ' g wfen
Tew Wiufy ol &1 59 $E & A s G g ¥ 59wt s |l s sreur Srewt
S A oft Wit fa & fr Iy aresw $arer @ # 3R 3 damerd @ site 3@ ae
F YT T T T R QI8 Wt 3y R o SR R e At safaa
v F e A 3§ wad off sem w9 s wifew 9 g% fed f aeifor s @
dag B, 91 e o waraeret €1 7@ S 3 wirar § W R Wy <t
A FT €, AR W HT AAE WREARYE & T 3R v faed it 92l wamn
TP |

SHRI PYARIMOHAN MOHAPATRA (Orissa): Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir,
I am with friends in the House who were, at the relevant time, with. the
people of Iraq in their sufferings, an Iraq which was tortured by sancticns,
exploited by committees and was, finally, under pressure from so many
countries to give small concessions in this Oil for Food Programme. | am
with allfriends who saw Iraq as an opportunity to assist it on humanitariar.
grounds, and not to exploit it -- at a time when it was selling its oil at a
price lesser than the international price which was pretty low at that time,
tetween 16 to 19 dollars per barre! -- deliberately so that they would get
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5.00p.m.

less money. And, | am with Iraq when the poor Iraqi Government was
trying to take a surcharge, not as a bribe, as many are putting it, but to run
its Government machine, its army, and its essential services.

After saying this. | would also comrr.ent that our public sector and other
companies have rendered a yeoman's service to Iraq over long years and
decaces. But what has happened? Is it the same or similar companies --
and today contractual, non-contractual beneficiaries have been named in
the Volcker Report; whether it is true or not, will be found out only on
enquiry -- that have exploited the situation to get some money out of it, to
get some money out of a starving, suffering and tortured country? That
is important.

The mover of the motion, Mr. Arun Jaitely, has given entire details, from,

a o z of this Report, particularly relating to two non-contractual beneficia-
ries, namely, the Indian National Congress and Mr. Natwar Singh. And, |
can add hardly anything to the facts in issue. He has also analysed th«
issues very critically and in great detail, and his learned friend on the oth«.
side, Mr. Kapil Sibal, has tried to demolish that analysis by clever court-
room tactics. | am, indeed, concerned. We are not a courtroom to see
what evidence is primary, what evidence is secondary, where the docu-
ments are hidden, whether niceties or technicalities of the law are satis-
fied, and all that. If it were so, you would not have divested Mr. Natwar
Singh of his portfolio. Here, we have to go with a broad understanding of
the 1ssues and not get into hair- splitting legal arguments. As my hon.
friend, Mr. Siddiqui, observed if there was a suspicion of a black spot, go
for agni pariksha, and go the whole hog. That is the call of political moral-
ity, which Mr. Sibal referred to. it is unfortunate that Shri Jethmalani who is
such a senior leader tried to separate the sin of the son from the respon-
sibility of the father. He forgot that in the sixties, when an inquiry was
conducted against * the sin of * in the Nandan Cinema episode had cost *
“4his job. And please remember, Mr. Jagat Singh had introduced himseif as
the President of the National Students Union of india, the student wing of
the Congress Party, at the Indian Ambassador's party at Baghdad. Mr.
Sibal was annoyed that allegations were made against a party, like Con-
gress Party, which has stood the test of time. Yes, the Congress is

120 years old.

SHRI RAJU PARMAR: Sir, the hon. Member is quoting soma names.
*Expunged as ordered by the Chair.
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SHRY PYARAIOHAN MOHADETRA, | ann not casiing aspersions agaimnst
a5 oy

R DEPUTY CHAIRMAN. He has not quoted any names.

SHRI PYARBSOHAN MOMHAPATRA: The Congress Party s 120 years
ol s cartaimiy an oid panty. {Iterruptions)

SrHRE RAJU PARMAR He sad aoout the NSUI President and ail that.
(htesrupbors) e sanc . S

MR DEPLTY CHARKAN 1 he nas mentiomed amy names, thak willl be
rerved fror. e recort

SHRE PYARMACHAN MOHADATRA: Pardoer., Sir.

AR DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If names of persons who ame not present imn
the Howse are taien. tivat will e removed. (inferrupbions)

S SYARMICHAN MOHAPATRA: No. ne. Is its age affecting its
competance” Loak a3t these figures. Now, assueming, but mot admitiing, as
o armed rend saind, et the figures are trwe, the Congress Party was
FHiocazeg fuur ralisom narmeis of i, Omy 1.001 mllion hamets of ol was
el & s hardiy 22 per cant Does a century-oid panty, winich has faced
Ailegians of 2 multiude of scamms dumng its rule of 45-plius years, aval of
such a golden opportumity for @ scam anly o the extient of 25 per cenlt?
A timat, toe, wihilie bemg owt of power? Unibelievable. it would be sheerr
meorpetence for such an oid and mnatyne party. Maybe, somebody in the
Corcress Party, mot o your knowledge. has hijatiked the altocalion, and i
Sitvouid e im your imberess to fimd ihe culiprit, by yous own in-house mguiry,
v lnediner amy oither mguiry brimgs out amylivng ellse or nok. (Time-bell) Six,
I vl take @ mmimute | Whatever he the inguiry on s issue that you are
gairg 1o nold, we warit  to be an ai-pervasive inquiry intio the comduct of
everyane. The Govermment showlid have ne reservaiions an this score_
shiouid aiso inciude the foresgm-fumding of the political processes,, wihich
Mr Yechumy mentiomed Y is 2 fzct of lile. Pressure groups camnok be
wisied awey. Every coumtny willl ke care of its own intierests, and crealie
pressures. Poitical monraity, is mot satisfied by geting rid of the porfiolio of
Mr. Natwar Singh. Two parpes. lef us say, the Congress Party amd
Mr. Natwar Simgin are named. i you domt believe i, dont befieve itin case
of eitthes. Dont get ndl of Mr. Nehwar Singih's porifioliio, amd sit back and say,
"We are diear arg whit=" Equity demands that aciion shoulid be takemn
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agamst both, f & all, or, noce Polhca! mioraiity wousd aiiso demand JLat
poWHCH! parbes ust have the guts o scknowiedge that they are geting,
such hunds ransparently Two thar accounts. Ctherwrse, we wil be crealing
a mounian) of leamed but hypocndical words fo gushiy he mdefensible
Thanmk you

SHRI RS GAVAI (Maharashmral Mr Deputy Chaemarm, Sur | willl be
very bhoef §adll not go deep o the: relevant podions of the Report. At the:
cutsel | share mmy remerniyrance afen b was & the State | egsliature m
Maharashtra reganding the Bofors ssue. winch was umaarmed, urmvararted
and unnecessary. But, because of uitencs paweal motio, tive O posiuon.
teed 0 make 2 number of alegatons =Cars! respected Raynvpy. Whet
meppemd™?

1 hedeve ! sowd somethng om w3t e Tpposkon searched. | had sam,
they searched notheng mone ham scavi-mg the hlack cat m the dark
room. The exercise dome by tham was a furie ome. How s it possihie o
fimd outt 2 Hiack cat m the dark o That was mry abservathon when
aegations were leveled aganst Rayn Gandinn So, | am rermuncied of that.
The fate of afl dws wis He the same  Thay wif be repenting. They amany be
oI wiith a poiHcat Moo,

Sie, | have mmy oan irmdathons Geneially. ihe vaicker's probhe appears
o rest o the evadiences of e data and earver IMveshogaiom.s nd mot 2
reshone OF course, & s menbaned earver S, ¢ dare ko say that a probe
by the Volcuer s based moi om an ndependent mguiry ot & s rallher 2
rasec one. Earfer, the hom  spealker has memiomned absenvalioms vty
somee refieremoes. { 2iso have one, the chservation of By Lavroy, a2 Russ:an
oozl He merdomed the!l om 2 murnther of aogas.oms wital the documment
shows 1S mghty dutnous, forged, comamed f=ie Sgrotcss The allegatioms
apeea im Tzte-tN wihdch was refermed 10 by e hom. Alenntber, SiheiAnum
Fhe relexvamt pages,, 0 exphoi the omoty had heen reflerred o eante

Sim, § amn ooy o mesntion, ot the Mcve: of tihe: kbotom: amd! the: sugpmaon ey
of the Mothom iave mever tned o find out the comdiusom of the wihoie
repont. the evwlemce coniaimed im e wivole repant and She Deneboanes
are Mok digsny, mesTiomed: im the report. That! ks, 2 im amisguty, e seardimg
a ik catt m a dark oo
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Sir, the report is full of anomalies, full of contradictions, contradicting
with each other. As a matter of fact, in spite of having relevant evidence
and documents, naturally and generally an inquiry can be initiated. But we
will appreciate the spirit of the Government that it has appointed a
Committee. Not only that, | generally saw the mood of Madam Sonia .
Gandhiji who got never irritated but she got angry at a public forum and
said, "l am not here to save or spare anybody, whosoever he may be, if he
is guilty.” What | mearn to say is that the intention of the Government and
the intention of Madam Sonia Gandhi is pious. There is no scope to have
any doubt about the integrity of Madam Sonia Gandhi and the Prime
Minister, Dr. Manmohan Singh. As | have told earlier, these 630 pages
have anomalies, contradictions and there is repetition of pages as if
exhibiting a picture and making contradictory statements. | have a very
good example of this deceptive document. Of course, it is not my intention,
but | would like to refer to the book 'Worshipping False God' written by
Mr. Arun Shourie. The whole book contains 600 pages and 100 pages are
repeated like this. He brought a concocted story defaming Baba Saheb
Bhim Rao Ambedkar, the Chief architect of our Constitution.
...(Interruptions)... | raised this issue earlier also. This book is also fuli of
contradictions. ... (/nterruptions)... You try to prove that. .. (Interruptions)...

SHRIARUN SHOURIE (Uttar Pradesh): Sir, does it have any relevance
here? ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Then you will be disturbing Mr. Gavai,
...(Interruptions)...

SHRt P. CHIDAMBARAM: This is only to catch his attention
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI R.S. GAVAI: | have no intention . (Interruptions)... He is a good
friend of mine ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If you quote him, then he has also a right to
reply ...(Interruptions)...

SHR!R.S. GAVAI: My purpose is solved .. (Interruptions)... Worshipping
Faise God also ...(Interruptions)... In fact, they are worshipping the false
god and we are worshipping the real god. .. (Interruptiors)... Anyhow, | do
not want to deal with this subjeci now.  (interruptions)... | will conclude
my speech by saying that it is very difficult for a man like me to believe
this so-calied report, which is full of inconsistencies, anomalies and
irrelevance. Thank you.
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it Wit FTa (Ferg) : STRUNfd 7Sy, fuset s 5 9 R &9 39 Wyl
ey d foimr & @ 31 wEiey, 30 g w9 ¥ U 96 i Wt ol @ o dieat
frdrd =1 wearg Ty ot =nfe) S 6 vy & e A AT et aw @ ¥ #°
Fugal & fF qu weA g8 = ® 3R g ua fea F oft ® s gw dee fod =Y
AR §A BT oifew | WeEed, wETYH oifE fEarEd oI i A @ W e
TEHR Ft raa o 78 @t R fe a5 g=a ) 9 o et )

IS (We e Sto i) fHard= g

TBICE, & Q dea fae o } a9/ F3 controversies ¥H3 a4l € ik g
ara ot wr AT € ST R st o Tt ga <t € A 3 QU weArasw o
IR FE ot T wina € @ 39 faone savas sraE B =fen 5o v
THER F AW H1 RN TR ] | STRNWIEY HAST, 3T Hi wed § TF iR 9y
/A I FT 371 &, Foma an & o on siememr i St 3 v # T wae 3w
R HYE wifsret ot 2 Tandt ¥ 129 38 I A Y ITFR T8 w1 ga € wifE afz g
T # T A e R &1 998 9 TR e @ g fem s @
198 TR FA F FIW A @ ¥ e 1 wua ar gen a1 31 5 S gen a1, 39
o1 St A fatiy faan an o o= 2t A fady fva o, 30 3 39! 3 held® A
& forg, 3 310 u F oA & fag '’ sifge w wE W’ & ged A s
TR F F HIAW ) &, ITH THSATH HA H HIHAG F1 oY | I TR A ot
I 1 wfere FY S A T FE SN Faa fosn 1t e e A oft fman, @
a8 g 3T I8 & T dern & fagw w5 9ifd aeds 3 v fF 33 anes o
ft ey v feru g, A o gfamm 4 @ e 9, T affem & faaa of
farrat 9, § w5 9| 78 3 &1 o meeqel Su R, 9 fadw w5 @ 9w /am
T 3@ Tu-g-w Heet FaR ) fod § frn @ ww wga & geegef ik
foraier qeifyamd & 3 o wei & ogafs & wefafreee 1§ ¥ e ¢ YfaSfuas
g €, fie sorwieer atfesm, 39 v off 39 e favan o an ) 3=t
T A9 e & 1R I8 I 91 foh 3701 farret wisg a1 ofh 30 B ) @3
Aot FA I @ fma 1 39 YR S 1 w9 i 35l dew FRA w R
favaa-itam }, Sow! S T 8, 30 W TE UF-3-YEe 31 A ¥ 1 safe T e
4t HTH IS € TS ITH! [0 AT R AaeEE ¥

T TR A 57 B U =g € Hegt Aot A, 98 & et 3 fes
T (wmg HtHa)... 3R o fafew ik snifia meeife & gra o |t s T
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% o 3w * Ates SR BT W 3 IR Y e £ we sl v
oo SR W W & e v T = troea W 78 e & 21 wes R o SR
ey s oo 3l w0 T g v 9o

It WE G ITRE e, e % eaa we i i wl vER I IR W
Fhw % I W W R e % SR S SR T T SR e TR 9
B W= wE 7 § v e e S S T few o, e
TR TR R TR TR % 0 SR W G € IS R A o e ) vy 3R
IR = SIS S T WS Al W 56 TR Sl wh T T &
T B W T SR o . @ SR N T IS I ® ¥ Fl
arplizn TR %1 Tardad < T W iR a9 w5 wEer) g I & e T wes
& R T HE 8 &

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P J. KURIAN): Please conclude.
Tene allotted to your paity S over.

i e AT VRS, T T 9 S ST SO R < i < &, 3
Tl T Y S % S T &, WS S Y B, T W i
wiew | T £, Bl ) T FE S 9w @ T € o ol e W
T 3 Siffare 1 B =g e € e S ey O s S Rl s s facia wl
T & wfcw 3% Tom W PO AR FHIH N TR DY IDRW R Ty
Famiell afiem wos ) Wy %1 wifew % € 5wl v W S | e e
W W Ui oF o W U B, P 38 W TE INE S SRS SR S
e e & T sy S S v e e £ @ o el o il qa et
T R &, S TF T B W T LT R oW & IS & 20T e
T € S Tefoa sw ek W T T T W o 1 som e s
¢ Shw € 30 ot W o Sr W SRt % G T il a
AR ST 3@ N FEH S T, Sa T R S ) SR )

SHRIN. JOTHI: Sir, | Shank you very rmuch for the epporiunity given 1o
e

THE VICE-CHAIRIZAN (PROF. P J. KURIAN): You have anly five
mimubtes.. 1 hope halt nohody wilk aerTupt you:

SHRI N. JOTHI: Sirr, M. Kapi Sihal has said that there is no evidence
auailiahe Nor, Mr. Volicker could be equated with a2 Grand Jury. That is
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tws fvdmg 1 & haeing the Report with me  The Report anks upon a
parhicutar Chapter, Chapter-ili, Sub-Clause (@), wiich speaks about the
source of evwdence What s the scurte of evadente? Much of the sounte
of expdience Fas conme fromn the coremparameoys documentation and data
prowdied try the vanous irag comtractmg Mrsines, nciudmng imanciaill led-
gars, mternal comespomdence and daftabase records  Otimer eyndience is um
the form of hank records, depasits as miomeabion provided by the swuppit-
ars particpaled in the trarsachons, thew agems and the shippmg commpa:-
mes This is the avalabye evidence  The specfic sowme of mtormatom s
et LS 1S the position. Now, they dom wamt 10 go o the el place, mor
ane sjerested o layng ther hands om the real doouments  That s the
reason wiy they ane mot havng a ful-liectged Commussicm mor amy Termms
of Rederence have Deen given to 4 Tihe setong up of 2 Commissian 1s
eyewash There s o Jffhculty m understanding that Sectom 4 of the
Commussion of Engumes Act, 1852 slustraties the powers of the Commis-
son The powers of the Commissiom ame ol court powers  Crvill cowrt
powers are appicatie as m CPC It is appicaibie omly wihr the houmnd-
amies of india. It willl not go beyomd Inda  Wihereas, f you towid regster
an FIR, as advocaled by Mr Ramn Jethmmaiam you cam mvoke powers
under Sectiom 1668A or the Cr PC  so thalt 2 crimminal cowrt cam issue letier
rogaiory. Thes they comvemnenty avonded  (nlermuptons)  Tms is the
reasem why they do not want 1o regster an FIR - it need mott be: regstened
persons”. Even that s 3iso permissitzlie under o They cam mvestgate
They can register an FIR and seek for lefter rogatory They camnnot do it
They are not nteresied because they knew it very weell tat the UNO was
fiked by Pandit Jowahaniall Nehru because at the tme of Chmese aggres-
Sion we went o the UNQ to safeguamnd our temmiones We ane mot discuss-
ng about the UNO . Tihe culltsre has now come 30 disrespect the UNO
because fhws neport s pombng aganst themn So. they do mot want to
respect thes Report This « the posihon (dnderuptions) S, it s quite
unbegrable | (interruptons) | They ane mot m a posmen i ez amyting
Tihey only bear the peopie who.  (intemruptans)

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF PJ KURIANY You addhess ma Cnar

tombeyruptions) . Dont e (ntemeorons)

SHRIN. JOTHIE. How cam ! addness ithe Char wihen themre are so manmy
marruptoms?  (mermuptions)
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Please don't interrupt.
...{Interruptions)... You proceed please. You have only five minutes.
..(Interruptions)...

SHRI N. JOTHI: Sir, under the circumstances, even in constiuting iie
Commission of Inquiry, they have not acted honestly. They have not given
any terms of reference Under such circumstances, what can Justice R.S.
Pathak do? He cannot do anvthing. As Mr. Volcker has not done anything,
since he has no powers. Justice Pathak also has no powers. They want
only that powerless commission because they only want to get a clean
chit that everything is fine, everything is okay, and show to the world that
they are very good people. But people, in this Chamber, are not so as you
think. They are much larger in tninking. And, we are here to tell the people
that these people are not good people, and they are not interested to
know what is what. ...(Interruptions)... There are only interested to know:
what is what. ..(/nterruptions)... There are onlv contractors like
Dr. Subbarami Reddy. ...{/nterruptions)... Yes, contractors' party.
...{Interruptions)... | am telling you. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI K B. KRISHNA MURTHY (Karnataka): No, no. It should be removed
from the record. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI N. JOTHI: Sir, there is a gentleman in this House, whom | know,
but he does not know me. And, he is Mr. A K. Antony. | respect him
because once, one a simple matter, he toock moral resporisibility and
resigned at the age of 39. He is a great man. ...(Interruptions)... Yes, |
appreciate him. But, honestly speaking, it is his greatness. There are one
or two such people. That is why the Congress Party is surviving.
...{Interruptions)... That is why it is surviving. ...(Interruptions). ..

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. PJ. KURIAN): Please. ...(Interruptions)...
Please. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: | am on a point of information, Sir.
..(Interruptions)... The hon. Member was saying...(/nterruptions)... In 2004,
in the elections, the people of Tamil Nadu had decided...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Mr. Jothi, please
conclude. Your five minutes are over. ...(/nterruptions)... You can take one
or two minutes more. ...(Interruptions)...

- .38



[29 November, 2005] RAJYA SABHA

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: Sir, he will give a list of great men.
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI N. JOTHI: Your hame will not be there. ...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Now, conclude please,
Mr. Jothi. ...(Interruptions)... Your time is over, you can take one or two
minutes more. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI N. JOTHI: Sir, they can have a laugh here. They even succeed
in...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): No, no. You come to
your point. ...(Interruptions)... Don't react to them. ...(Interruptions)... You
come to your point ...(Interruptions)...

SHRIN. JOTHLI: Sir, | am just going to conclude. They may have a laugh
here. They may even succeed in opposing this motion. But the last laugh
belongs to public and belongs to us. This is what we want to tell you.
...(Interruptions)... Sir, | see what kind of people are defending this motion.
Who are they? Who is, uitimately, going to defend thisgnotion? if that is
the level of the Congress Party, | pity them, | pity them,1 pity them.

SHRIASHWANI KUMAR {Punjab): Thank you Mr. Vice-Chairman, Sir,
for giving me this opportunity to place my views for consideration by this
august House in the matter of great public importance. Sir, | seek to displace
the burden of the motion moved by Mr. Arun Jaitley by addressing three
integral elements in the debate. The first and the foremost on which
Mr. Jaitley mounted the motion was the argument of political morality and
probity in public life. The second element is the constitutional morality
and, Sir, may | start by telling my good friend, Mr. Jaitley, that if there was
one element in the detate on which he was not on firm ground, it was the
element of political morality. Sir, | have the honour of representing a party,
that is, a party of the freedom movement, that has the longest history of
service and sacrifice in pre-independent and post-independent India. | am
proud to be a member of the Party and responding in that capacity. A party
whose leadership before independence and after independence have set
the highest standards of public morality and probity in public life. | do not
want to talk of the innumerable scams that have vitiated forever the track
record of the NDA. A reference has been made to many of those and since
my time is limited, | do not want to repaat the allegations and the illustrations
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of infiractions of political morality by the Opposition. Sir, hene is 2 Govem-
ment that withim 21 days succeeded i mdating a senes of measures
ammed aft inquiring the charges against icselif and against a senior, distin-
guisihed Memier of the Catimet. | vk tie record of such probity is umnpar-
alieled im the poiticall discourse or history of independent india. Sir, the
Prime Miinister's first statement was that tire comciusions or observatons
in the Volcker Committtee are unverified, wihich they remain till date. His
second response was to nominaie a specish envoy 1o coliect the maternz!
thaxt could, perhanps, become a justification for the conclusions in fhe re-
port. Aind i thind action was 1o hzve the R S Pathak Committes headed
by a mran of great eminer.oe mot oniy @ inda, but imternationallly so that
rustice is not only done but s dise seen o be dore. S, s action and
comduct that speaks for itself. The falsity of the charge in the Maotion is wnit
lzme on its face and the motian seeks to allege that there is faiilure om the
pan of the Govermment to take action an tihe report. if all these steps are
mot concrete and positve symibo's of action, | ask myself the question:
Wnat eise could have been done m such a shart perod? So muck i, for
paoiitical moraity and prowity m puibiic ife.

S, the second elemment om wihich there has been profound discussions
im this House is the element of constitutionality, of constitutional maorality
about the foundations i tihe report. Sir, it is now an admitted fact that mno
notice was gren to any of the aleged beneficanes m the deall. Sir, im owr
wnsprudence, and youw know it better tiham anyome elise thatt amy fimdimg i
breach of the first pnmopies of natural justice, that is, notice to 2 party to
Jdefend itself s mot only legall, i s nom est, it s 2 mulity im e, Tis s 2
non-megotiatie prncipie of junsprudence (Intermupbions)....

SHR! NI OTRPAL BASWU Sir (i rulions) ..

SIHRIASHYWANI KUMAR i amm met yelding . dintermuptions). .

SHIRI NILOTPAL BASU Sir il have to make a point ... (Intermuptions)...
Al e hegimmimg of te delbate. we cecide on a time sChediuie, Sir, we

THIRIASHWANE KUMAR  Sir, | have & might to say. My party has givem
iy mamme. ... (imtemnmupiions)....

SHIRI NILOTPAL BASLE: Sir, I tiimk,, it is wmnizir. .. (Interupbons) ...
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Mr. Nilotpal Basu, listen
to me...(Interruptions)...

Okay, please sit down...(Interruptions)... '
SHRINILOTPAL BASU: There should be some limit...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Mr. Nilotpal Basu, please
listen to me...(Interruptions)... Please sit down...(Interruptions)... Okay,
okay, please resume your seat ...(Interruptions)... That is
all...(Interruptions)... | will take care of that...(Interruptions)... Don’t
worry...(Interruptions)... That is all...(Interruptions)... Okay now please
conclude Mr. Ashwani Kumar.

SHRIASHWANI KUMAR: | was addressing to the...(Interrupfions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Please conclude Mr.
Ashwani Kumar.

SHRIASHWANI KUMAR: ...from the constitutionality of it. And, | said
that any conclusion ...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Now please conciude.

SHRI ASHWANI KUMAR: Sir, | would have concluded had he not
interrupted me... (Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Your time. is
over...{Interruptions}... Your time is over...(Interruptions)...

SHRIASHWANI KUMAR: Please give me some time. | have something
to say...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Please conclude.

SHRIASWANI KUMAR: So, Sir, my respectful submission is that on
the other aspect of the unconstitutionality of the findings also the Opposition
Motion has not legs to stand on. ...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Please conclude.

SHRIASHWANI KUMAR: Sir, the need for an investigation which this
Government has in its wisdom ordered is justified not by what we in this
country alone féel. And | have to quote an eminent journalist by the name
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of Claudia Rosett, writing in the weekly Standard about the report, and she
said and we have the greatest respect for Mr. Voicker and the
UN....(interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN}. Please quote and
conclude.

SHRIASHWANI KUMAR: "The report is hefty but definitive it is not."
itis a patchwork of dropped leads and watered down judgments, leading
in some cases to unwarranted and even bizarre conclusions. Arrives at
'Oddly limp conclusions, and is vitiated by 'reffexive secrecy.’
...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Please Okay, that is
enough...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ASHWANI KUMAR: No, Sir, please give one minute to
conclude...(interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): No, no. The time is
over...(Interruptions)...

SHRIASHWANI KUMAR: Nothing more could have been said about
the...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Your time is
over...(Interruptions)... You had only five minutes ... (Inferruptions)... You
have spent more than that...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ASHWANI KUMAR: Sir, | will not yield, One last world and the
last world is that in 2002 when the then Petroleum Minister was informed
about the surcharge payments, it was not only his duty but his responsibility
to ensure that action that is now sought by the Opposition benches ought
to have been taken then, and, therefore Sir, those who live in glass houses
need not pelt stones.

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): OKay...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ASHWAN! KUMAR: In the end, | have to conclude by
sayings...(Interruptions)...

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (PROF. P.J. KURIAN): Please, itis my job, not
your job.
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SHRIASHWANI KUMAR: If your case is demolished, don't deny me
the last world, and the last world is:
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SHRIMANOJ BHATTACHARYA (West Bengal): Sir, | am indeed grateful
to you for providing me a chance at last, And Sir, | am indeed quite benefited
today after hearing my erudite colleagues in this House, particularly, the
legal luminaries, starting from my friend Shri Arun Jaitlety to my friend Shri
Kapil Sibal, Shri Ram Jethmalani and others. | can't name everybody. So,
the names which | am not taking, kindly do not take me otherwise that |
have not taken your name. | am taking all the names of legal
luminaries...(Interruptions)... Thank you very much...(Interruptions)...
Piease. my time is very limited. ... (Interruptions)... Sir, personaily, | have
felt that, perhaps, we have indulged in some self-deception insofar as our
knowledge about the present event is concerned, Sir, my friend Mr. Jothi
was referring to the days of Pt. Jawahar Lal Nehru when the matter of
Sino-Indian border skirmishes was taken to the UN. We have high respect
and recognition for the UN. But, today, the UN, as many of the friends of
ours would understand, has been subordinated to a foreign office of the
United States of America. And, this UN has appointed a committee, in the
name of Paul Volcker, who has been a very high dignitary in the US
Administration. Paul A Volcker, a former chairman of the US Federal
Reserve, headed the Committee, which also included South Africa’s white
judge, justice Richard Goldstone and Switzerland's Mark Pieth, Chairman
of the Working Group on Bribery in International Transactions at the
Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development. The Committee
found that Saddam's regime had devised a scheme to fox the UN pilfer
money for itself from the Oil for Food Programme. Sir, the very intention of
the Committee was to put biemishes on Saddam. Hussein or the Iraqi
Administration, the regime change what they wanted. And Sir, what they
desired some two year's ago in 2003 - what is the condition there in
America? Why has it necessitated formation of such a Committee? | would
like to bring to the notice of this House that the necessity of the formation
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of such a Volcker Committee was primarily to justify its actions or inactions
on lraq, which has pulled down the image of President Bust in America
itself. That necessitated the appointment of the Volcker Committee, and |
personally do not find it prudent to discuss the Volcker Committee report.
Even though | should compliment the present Government that is has
instituted an Inquiry Commission and they have also advised the Special
Envoy in the UN, Mr. Virendra Dayal, to assist the Inquiry Commission
which is headed by Justice R.S. Pathak.

[MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN in the Chair.]

Sir, | just, in brief, would like to say what necessitated the institution or
constitution of such a committee. Sir, there are some who believe that the
US had kicked the Vietnam syndrome after the Gulf War in 1991. But as
British historian Naill Ferguson notes in a book "Colossus: The Rise and
Fall of the American Empire”, the American electorate has become more
sensitive to war casualties since then. Itis not only this that the American
soldiers have killed thousands and thousands, millions of Iraqi people,
innocent Iraqi people, children, women. It is not like this. In the fray, the
American soldiers also had to suffer causalities and that has led to a
strong debate in the America itself. Today, the support for Irag War among
the American people has continued to fall. A primary factor behind the
decline in public support for the war is the rising number of American
casualities, which now include 2,100 killed and some 16,000 wounded.
About two-thirds of Americans are opposed to President Bush's handling
of the war in Iraq, 60 per cent feel it was a mistake to go to war in the first
place, 52 per cent would like the troops to be brought back home in the
next twelve months and, more, tellingly, 50 per cent think the US won't win
the war. Of the last mentioned group, not all assert that the US cannot
militarliy win the war but all agree that the US no longer has the will to win
it, because it is an impossible task.

And what is more challenging is the invincibility of America in the unipolar
world. The United States of America has been professing the unipolarity in
this world, and in the name of estabilshing unipolarity, they are flexing the
muscles against every nation and their history of perpetuating assaulits,
atrocious attacks on many independent nations are replete in the history
of the civilisation of ours. Sir, | am not interested in handling the brief of
-Saddam Hussein, but my heart goes with the common people of Iraq, with
the poor people of Iraq who are being killed every day. Every day, 7?very
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now and then, the people are being killed and the public opinion about the
aggression of America, the most gruesome aggression of America is also
against Bush. So, the Bush Administration, the Bush, Dick Chenney and
Rumsfield Administration, this trio has felf the necessity of constituting
some commission by which they can deflect the attention of the people
and can justify the actions in America itself. That is the reason why the
Volcker Committee has been constituted. ...(Time-bell)... So, Sir, |
personally feel that that this sort of a Committee that has named some
persons, even though they have not only named K. Natwar Singh or the
Congress Party alone, but they have also named some corporate houses,
some pharma companies like Cipla, Ajanta Pharma, even Reliance
industries, some public sector enterprises. ...(Time-bell)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Bhattacharya, please conciude.

SHRI MANOJ BHATTACHARYA: Sir, | am just concluding. | am just
concluding. | find that every time | get victimised. | also look at the clock.
Sir, now these private companies, particularly, the Reliance Industries,
have been implicated. Tata is also implicated. Many other companies, like
the Wockhardt Company, have been implicated. Now, this is a peculiar
design and | do not believe in the conspiracy theory because it is usual
design of the American imperialism, and it is the way in which the American
Administration functions. So, Sir, this has to be taken in this light. Sir, the
last thing |.would like to say is this. It has already been raised in the
House. It is related to the Foreign Affairs Departmént of the erstwhile-
Government headed by Atal Bihari Vajpayee. | am not going to talk about
Mr. Ram Naik's complicity. on this. issue. Many of my colleagues have
raised it.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please, conclude.

SHRI MANOJ BHATTACHARYA: Kindly allow me, Sir; | just want fo
make a mention about a very interesting letter written by Mr. V.V. Tyagi,
the then Ambassador of Iraq.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: No, that has already been ...(Interruptions)...

SHRIMANOJ BHATTACHARYA: Sir, | have just one suggestion to make.
Many people have made suggestions that the Inquiry Committee should
handle this too. This letter of 28th January by Mr. V.V. Tyagi and the
information that has been passed over to the House by Mr.Yashwant Sinha
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should also be covered under the inquiry. The letters of correspondence
made during that time should also be taken up for inquiry, aithough |,
personally once again declare on behalf of my party, the Revolutionary
Socialist Party, that | do not believe in the Volcker Committee Report,
because the Volcker Committee has been appointed at the insistence of
the American administration to save the faces of Bush, Dick Cheney and
Rumsfield. Thank you, Sir.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Sharad Joshi, you have five minutes.

SHRI SHARAD ANANTRAO JOSHI (Maharashtra): Mr. Deputy Chairman
Sir,  am one of the fifteen movers of the Motion and | am possibly the last
member to speak on this subject. | had signed the Motion with the hope
that my party and | would be able to put before the House our position on
what we call the 'Saddamgate of UPA'. The position is very similar to
Watergate. When the first news appeared about Watergate, the first reaction
of President Nixon was -- | would not be drawn into any controversy about
athird-rate burglary.

Starting from giving a clean chit, step by step, playing the damage
containment action, the ruling party is moving in the right direction. | do
not know why, they took an opposite stand in the beginning. One can
understand Nixon taking a vicious position, but the Congress Party, as so
many others mentioned, has a long and glorious tradition. It shouid not
have fallen a victim to this kind of tactic. But as they say,
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How did the great Ravana not know that kidnapping other man's wife is
wrong? How did Rama ignore that golden deers don't exist? How did
Yudhistira play with the dice? It happened because even great men, when
disaster and fall approaches, suddenly start thinking in an absurd manner.

| would say that my party stands for establishing truth in this case. | am
defining 'Truth finding' in & very clear way. Shri Sitaram Yechury mentioned
that the Foreign Minister of the United States did not think highly about

326



29 November, 2005] RAJYA SABHA

the Volcker Report. | don't care. Then, even Shri Kapil Sibal mentioned
that the Report does not prove anything. | would ask 'Even if the Report
came to the conclusion that Mr. Natwar Singh and the Congress Party
were guilty, would you really, inmediately, put them in jail? | would be
opposed to that. | would stand to defend them because these people have
to be found guilty by a legal procedure, an inquiry procedure in India, and
not by any other party. Simply because some other party says that they
are guilty, | would not accept it. In this case, for example, | would say that
there has been talk only about Mr. Natwar Singh's Culpobilits and the
Congress Party has not been mentioned.

| would like to say that there is much more to be done on the front of the
Congress Party's responsibility. Nobody has tried to locate the smoking
gun with anybody eise. Now, on the sort of issues that need to be examined,
| would like to point out that there is a letter, signed on behaif of the
Congress Party, addressed to Saddam Hussein, which forms a part of the
record of the Volcker Committee, and | hope that Dayal gets a copy of
that letter. Secondly, there is a mention in the Voicker Committee Report
about a Letter of Credit which was issued by a particular company, Vittol
Limited, which has an office in Mumbai. The Letter of Credit could not have
been issued unless the other party was consulted and we know which
party was consulted on that. We have concrete proof about that. Thirdly,
what happened to the money that was given to the Congress Party? There
is a clear evidence that firstly, it was deposited in an account in the Bank
of America, Cayman Island, and from there it came to India by a participatory
note details of which cannot be disclosed because of a modification made
by Mr. P. Chidambaram, even by the SEB!. Now, if we permitted the SEBI
to open that secrecy and let us know who is the beneficiary of that
participatory note, then | think most of the facts would be clear and all
these facts point out.”

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Remove this from the proceedigns. | have
removed it.

SHRIM.P. ABDUSSAMAD SAMADANI (Kerala): Thank you, Mr. Deputy
Chairman, Sir, for permitting me to speak a few words in this discussion
representing my party. Sir, many of our learned and hon. Members have
pointed out that this is a very useful and effective debate. | am not

*Not recorded.
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contradicting them and their views. But | have a doubt whether we should
discuss this kind of a matter that is based on certain subjects which have
no authenticity. | feel, Sir, the entire crux of the matter is related with
authenticity. The Parliament, the highest body of the country, has a great
value. When we take something into discussion depending on certain
books, certain reports or certain archieves, that, | feel, degrades the
standard and status of this august body. Sir, even in a country like America
many people feel that the entire oil-for-food scandal was politically
manipulated. Even in America, many people have that feeling and
throughout the world the feeling is very large. Sir, this is intended to tar
nations, parties and individuals, and such fingers are being pointed out
from abroad. | cannot understand why should we heed or why should we
listen to this kind of allegation coming from outside. | feel, Sir, that nobody
in this country can point a finger of allegation of corruption against the
leadership of Madam Sonia Gandhi who became ready to refuse the highest
position when that was presented to her, and the country has complete
faithin the leadership of hon. Prime Minister, Shri Manmohan Singhii, his
purity, his clarity of personality, his simplicity and his honesty. Sir, what
else the Prime Minister should do? That the opposition, based on the
political regularity, political morality and ethics, has got a responsibility to
explain to this country. Kofi Annan continues in his job though there is
serious allegations against his son in this Report. He continues with his
job, and many other political personalities in other countries continue with
their jobs. The only political personality who has lost his job in the
background of this report is Natwar Singh and that itself shows the attitude
of the Congress Party and the Government when it takes in account this
kind of an issue. Sir, why is this hue and cry in India along? France rejected
it; Russia rejected it; China rejected it; New Zealand rejected it and South
Africa rejected it. | would like to quote the Russian Foreign Minister, Mr.
Sergey Lavrov, who said that many names of senior Russian officers referred
in this Report are fabricated. That is the statement made by the Russian
Foreign Minister. So, Sir, it could have been a great marvellous national
scene if all the political parties of the country joining together and putting
faith in the leadership of the Prime Minister and the Government and standing
as a rock against this kind of an allegation coming from outside. National
pride means to seek, to assure some kind of a national unity before this
kind of allegations. Sir, coming to the authenticity of these papers, there
is a very serious view presented by some of the experts that there is all
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chance for these papers to be forged documents. Mr. Hazimul Ameen,
- who is working for a London based Arabic daily newspapers called Hyatt,
| want to quote him, said, "Document experts in Baghdad talk about a
large number of forgeries circulating in Baghdad". And, Sir, after this US
blockage, the entire Baghdad was in fire. How can these papers be saved
without any kind of destruction, and where from these papers were
collected? This is an intelligent man's doubt which has to be satisfied
when we make such kind of allegations. (Time-bell). Sir, letter heads of
the Ministers were stolen. Mr. Sajid Ahmad Ali, who is another journalist,
said he was hired to forge contracts, implicating certain persons. This
kind of things happened in that country. Sir, our hon. friends sitting in the
Opposition are actually arguing for conviction before trial. That has no
justification in the legal affairs. There is not a single word about Shri Natwar
Singh properly in the Report. Shri Natwar Singh's name along with that of
the Congress figures only in an annexure to the Voicker's Report, in a
table recording figures, notin the text of the Report. Nobody can even say
that Shri Natwar Singh even made any cofrespondence with the iraqi
Government or Masefield. Sir, Mr. Volcker himself had claimed that all
those named in the Report has been issued an opportunity to respond to
the allegations against them. But, Sir, Shri Natwar Singh and Shri Bhim
Singh have on record stated that they knew of the allegations only through
media. Not a single piece of evidence has come out to support the view
that his son used the opportunity to handle funds for the Congress party.
And, Sir, no offence against indian or international law has been established
to have taken place. Again, Sir, trying to make a case on the basis of
presumptions, when we looked at the senior UN officials, they themselves
...(Interruptions).

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Samadani, please conclude.

*SHRI M.P. ABDUSSAMAD SAMADANI: | am concluding, Sir. | am
concluding. Senior UN officials have stated that the Volcker Report should
not be viewed as a charge sheet. This is the statement made by the UN
officials. So, Sir, while concluding, | would like to draw the attention of the
august House to the vulnerable international condition in politics that exists
now a days. The sensitive condition, the condition of strife, animosity,
many things are going on at international level, many conspiracies are
there. Why should we be a party to this kind of a conspiracy and to
sacrifice a person, a leader, like Shri Natwar Singh for baseless allegations?
That will be against the spirit of the country, against the spirit of our
1] Transliteration in Urdu Script.

329



RAJYA SABHA [29 November, 2005]

6.00 p.m.

democracy, against our national pride. Sir, | would like to conclude by
putting all faith in the leadership of our hon. Prime Minister Manmohan
Singhji quoting Allama Igbal
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I Higwhd, deep faith 3174?1 ‘?@u, continuous work, WEsTa et ¥ s7Ter, .
the love that conquers the entire world. ' fSere- - fS<arFt 8, in the battle
field of life, ¥ & Ot =1 wASY, these are the weapcens of men. And, | feel, our
Prime Minister has enough weapons of love, affection simplicity to fight all
the opposition.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Shunmugasundaram, last, you have
got only three minutes.

SHRI R. SHUNMUGASUNDARAM (Tamil Nadu): Sir, | am very happy
to participate in this discussion which relates to purity in public life. Sir, |
am really ...(Interr upfrons)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please, don'traise any Tamil Nadu controversy.

SHRI R. SHUNMUGASUNDARAM: No, Sir. Sir, | am very fortunate to
listen to so many speakers. They gave so much of details about this
particular case. We are very happy what my friend, the previous speaker,
referred about Soniaji. That lady, one of the greatest women in this country,
was elected by the Congress Parliamentary Party to be its leader. She
went to the Rashtrapati Bhawan with the letter of support of the entire
party in her hand and refused to accept the office. It was one of the greatest
sacrifices. She stood as an example for the entire public life of this country.
...(Interruptions)... On the contrary, we see some other ladies who are
rushing to Raj Bhavans even after three convictions—three convictions in
corruption cases. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Shunmugasundaram, | told you
...(Interruptions)... Please, conclude. ...(/nterruptions)... Please, conclude.
(Interruptions)...
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SHRIN. JOTHI: What about the Sarkaria Commission?

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please, sit down. (Interruptions) Mr. Jothi,
please, sit down. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI R. SHUNMUGASUNDARAM: Sir, | would only like this august
House to discuss it and set a standard for public life. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please, speak on the subject.
..(Interruptions)....

SHRI R. SHUNMUGASUNDARAM: Sir, | am not talking about
corruption, and corrupt ladies; | am only talking about setting standards in
public life. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Shunmugasundaram, please, speak
on the Motion... (Interruptions)... Please, conclude. (Interruptions)

SHRIN. JOTHLI: Sir, heis...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Jothi, please sit down. ... (Interruptions)...
Please, sit down. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI N. JOTHI: Sir, he is unnecessarily raising this issue.
...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: He has not taken any name; otherwise |
would have expunged it. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRi R. SHUNMUGASUNDARAM: Sir, | am only .. (Interruptions)...
MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please, speak on the subject...(Interruptions)

SHRI R. SHUNMUGASUNDARAM: Sir, | am only suggesting that let
this House set a standard that those persons ...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Nothing will go on record. Whatever
Mr. Shunmugasundaram says will go on record. Nothing else will go on
record. ...(Interruptions...

SHRI R. SHUNMUGASUNDARAM: Sir, | am not referring to anyone.
...(Interruptions)...
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MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: | cautioned you from raising Tamil Nadu's
issue here. You only speak on the Volcker Committee Report. But you
are. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI R. SHUNMUGASUNDARAM: Sir, ultimately, Volcker or no-
Volcker, we want to set standards in public life. Let us all agree that at
least a person who is facing trial in corruption cases and who.
...(Interruptions)... (Time-bell)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please, conclude. Now, the hon. Minister
will reply. ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI! P. CHIDAMBARAM: Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI N. JOTHI: Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, | have a point of order.
...(Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: What is your point of order?...
(Interruptions)...

SHRI N. JOTHI: Let me tell you what is my point of order.
...{Interruptions)...

My point of order...(Interruptions)... You listen to me. ...(/nterruptions)...
Why don't you listen to me? ...(Interruptions)... My point of order is
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI V. NARAYANASAMY: Tell the Rule.
SHRI N. JOTHI: Yes, | am telling, Sir. ...(/nterruptions)... ]
MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Narayanasamy, please, let me listen to him.

SHRIN. JOTHI: Sir, my point of order is that we are now discussing the
Volcker Committee Report to the extent that Mr. Natwar Singh is under
the shadow of doubt on this issue. There are some findings against him
and he should not continue as a Minister. We AIADMK Party people, a
few days ago, represented...(Interruptions)... to the hon. Prime Minister
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI VAYALAR RAVI: Sir, | have a point of order. .. (Interruptions)...

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: What is your point of order?
...(Interruptions)... Mr. Jothi, no point of order. ...(Interruptions)... The hon.
Minister...(Interruptions) No, there is no point of order ...(Interruptions)...
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There is no point of order. ...(Interruptions)... Mr. Jothi, no point of order.
(Interruptions) Hon. Minister. ...(Interruptions)... Whatever Mr. Jothi is saying
will not go on record. ...(Interruptions)... There is no point of order.

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, neariy 18-19 hon.
Members have spoken on the debate initiated by my good friend, Shri
Arun Jaitley. It's been many months since Arun and | had stood up either
on opposite sides or on the same side. It's always a pleasure to hear him.
When he has a very strong case, he is very brief. But when he has a poor
case, he needs 70 minutes. Sir, | don't wish to get into a legal debate.
Most of the legal issues have been splendidly answered by my good friend,
Shri Kapil Sibal, the Minister of State for Science and Technology. The
point is even on the Volcker Report, we heard two very persuasive legal
arguments. Two lawyers of eminence, Shri Jaitley and Shri Sibal, did not
agree whether this constitutes a report which can be acted upon or a
report which has to be further investigated. In fact, they did not agree
whether what is in the report is evidence or conclusions. | could be partisan
and say | agree with Shri Kapil Sibal which | do. But please look at it
objectively. Please look at it objectively from the objective chair that you
sit on. Here is a document which is clearly not a judgment. If the judge
had written this report, would he not have said in the annexures, the list of
witnesses, the list of exhibits, the list of documents, etc.? Nothing is
there in the report. These are what we call 'conclusions' and no one is
questioning the liberty of the Volcker Committee to reach ‘conclusions’.
They reached the conclusions. These conclusions may be right or may be
wrong. These conclusions have been reached in a particular manner which
| will demonstrate. That may accord with our sense of propriety and fairness;
or that may offend our sense of propriety and fairness. Let me give you
one example. Would my friend, Mr. Jaitley, support the conclusions if | am
able to show that no notice was given to any of the people named in that
conclusion? He says the Justice Pathak Inquiry Authority is an eyewash
because Section 8B power is not given to Justice Pathak. | will deal with
that later. Let us take the principle of Section 8B. Section 8B of the
Commissions of Inquiry Act says, if at any stage of inquiry the commission
(a) considers it necessary to inquire into the conduct of any person or
(b) is of opinion that the reputation of any person is likely to be prejudicially
affected by the Inquiry, the Commissicn shall give to that person areasonable
opportunity of being heard in the inquiry and to produce evidence in his
defence.
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(MR. CHAIRMAN in the Chair)

Accordingly to Mr. Jaitely, which | don't agree, since this power is not
given to the Justice Pathak Inquiry Authority, the Justice Pathak Inquiry
Authority is an attempt to whitewash or close the matter. What is contained
in Section 8B is a universal principle of law. It is not peculiar to the
Commissions of Inquiry Act. It is not unique to Indian jurisprudence. No
man shall be condemned before he is heard. Do we agree on that? Did
Volcker.. (Interruptions)...

SHRIARUN JAITELY: Then, why did you not give Justice Pathak that
power?

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: | will answer. | told you | will answer that
Arun. | said | will answer that when | come to Justice Pathak. | am now
taking a point to illustrate the flaw in Volcker at this stage. We all agree
that no man should be condemned before he is heard. Did the Volcker
Committee give notice to Mr. Natwar Singh? The answer is no. Did the
Committee give notice to the Congress Party? The answer is no.
Mr. Volcker's Committee itself says, we gave notice only to the contracting
parties, and the contracting parties in the oil cases were 139, and the
footnote says, by inadvertence, we did not give notice to 12 of them. So,
what is this report which can be acted upon immediately, which reaches a
conclusion, maybe, a right conclusion, may be, a wrong conclusion,
without giving notice to the persons who it proposes to name? That is why
we say, this report deserves that much respect, but it is not a document
which can be acted upon immediately. Sir, iet us not set too much store
by this report. | am not rubbishing it. If we had been rubbishing it, we would
not have done all that we have done in the last 20 days, and we have not
taken 200 days to do it. We have not taken 4 years to forestall an inquiry.
\We have acted in the space of 20 days, and | will tell you where it is
presently. Let us try to understand what this OFFP was, Oil for Food
Programme? Mr. Jaitley did bring out most of the facts. But | think, he left
out some other facts. No motives should be attributed. How has it worked
this way? Iraq was allowed to sell oil under the UN-supervised programme.
The price of oil was fixed by a UN Committee or a Un-Appointed Committee.
Iraq was allowed to choose the purchaser. As Mr. Sibal said, for four years,
this programme ran, as it should have run. In September 2000, the Iraq
Government decided that it needed money, it needed money for milk, it
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needed money for pharmaceuticals, it needed money for wheat, it needed
money for books, it needed money for children and its people. So, they
decided that here is a market where the price of oil is higher than the UN-
fixed price. Can we make a little more money in the market, yet give to the
UN the UN-fixed price? Therefore, are we trading in the market? It is not for
us‘to stand up here and say whether that is right or wrong. That was a
decision of the Government of iraq. When they found that the market was
willing to take Iraqi oil for a higher price, they chose the contracting party,
and in the two cases before us, it was Masefield, the contracting party
was Masefield. Up to that, Mr. Jaitely is right. But what does Masefield
do? Masefield is a trader, like in many other cases, the contracting party
was a trader. In this case, to the best of what we can gather from the
report, | am not going beyond the report, Masefield appears to have sold it
to Vittol which was an oil company. Vittol paid the market price. Masefield
paid to the UN the UN-quoted price. There was a difference. That difference,
the whole or part—I do not know yet—went into Iraq-controlled Jordanian
Bank account. This is what happened. The question is, Masefield made
its profit by selling it to Vittol. The UN got its price because the UN got its
fixed price. The difference, the whole or part, wentinto a Jordanian account.
If the whole had gone into a Jordanian account, there is nothing more in
this case. If a part of the difference went into a Jordanian account, the
question arises, where did the remainder go? Mr. Jaitely was wrong when
he talked about the illegality attached to the surcharge. The surcharge
part was not the illegal part. Let us look at the facts in this case. The
facts, in this case, wilt show that in the case of contract M9/54, the Iraqi
Government levied a surcharge of 4,98,973 dollars and Masefield paid,
more or less, the same amount, that is, 4,98,518 dollars. There is no
ilegality attached to that. That is a payment which went to the Iraqi-
controlled Jordanian account. In the other case, the Saddam administration
levied a surcharge of 2,50,224 dollars and Masefield paid 2,50.022 dollars.
That is all what the Volcker Committee says. It says that a surcharge was
levied by the Saddam administration and the contracting party paid that
surcharge. The Volcker Committee does not say anything about any other
amount. This surcharge, as we can find from Table-5, was indeed paid by
two named entities called Hamdan and Andaleeb. Masefield caused or
routed the payment through Hamdan and Andaleeb. Therefore, there is a
fair presumption. If the names of Hamdan and Andaleeb rightly occurred
there, no notice appears to have seen given to Hamdan. We don't know
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about it. No notice appears to have been given to Andaleeb. We don't
know about it yet. They may have done it gratuitously. That is difficult to
believe. They may have done for another payment. But that is not there in
the Volcker Committee Report. | hope | am making myself clear. What is
levied as a surchage was indeed paid. The question is: Was there anything
more than a surcharge? Did it go into anyone's pocket? Where is that
money? How much is it? Who paid whom? Who got what? Where did it
go? These are questions to which the Volcker Committee has no answers.
Why? Because the Volcker Committee was not interested in those
questions. The Volcker Committee was only interested in finding out
whether the Saddam Government got a surcharge and the Volicker
Committee found that the Saddam Government got a surcharge. But
there are, at least, many Members, including some from that side, who
will stand up and say that the Saddam Government was entitled to get a
surchage. Who are we to judge the Saddam Government? Their children
were starving. Their people were dying. They levied a surcharge. They got
a surcharge. They might be right or wrong. Who are we to judge that?
What we are concerned with is that if anyone got any amount other than
the surcharge. Now, | ask myself, most respectfully, a question. is there
anything in the 600 odd pages which shows that the Volcker Committee
looked into any amount other than the surcharge or who paid that, who
received that, where did it go and where did it end now. My respectful
answer is that there is nothing in the Volcker Committee Report because
the Volcker Committee was not concerned with that part at all. We are
concerned with that part and because we are concerned with that part,
whether that part, if established, and all other available facts are estabiished,
‘will link any of the non-contractual beneficiaries; we have to investigate
that matter. But | can't say anything more than what | have said why we
are having an investigation.

Now, Mr. Sibal raised many questions. If you presume that the Congress
Party received money, if you presume that Mr. Natawar Singh received
money, if you presume that one might have got a voucher, if that is the
starting point of the debate, the debate is over. That should be the finishing
line of the debate. You must start with facts. All my lawyer friends in this
House know that we need facts or evidence and then reasoning to reach a
conclusion. The famous Supreme Court Judgement says that reasoning
is what links facts to a conclusion. The Volcker Committee Report contains
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conclusions. The Volcker Committee may have or may not have reference
to facts. We don't know them. But we must have those facts before we
can reason logically whether those facts, those evidence, those documents
lead to the conclusions of the Volcker Committee. Since we don't have
those fagts, since we don't have that evidence, since we don't have those
documents, since they are not listed in the Volcker Committee Report,
since there is no annexure of exhibits, since there is no annexure of oral
evidence taken, we are now engaged in finding out what the primary evidence
is, which, on a process of reasoning, will lead to the conclusion. When we
talk about primary evidence and secondary evidence; we are not talking
legal gobbledygook. We are talking common sense. The primary evidence
is the document. Primary evidence is somebody's oral evidence: that |
have seen this; | have heard this; | was present there. We do not have that
evidence so far.

Now Sir, the history of these barrels and numbers is very interesting
history. It is not as though it suddenly came up only in the Volcker
Committee report. In fact, as early as 25th January, 2004, A/Mada
published the list. | think Shri Sitaram Yechury referred to that. On 29th
January, 2004, MEMRI, which Mr. Sibal had cited, published what it
thought or which it gathered, as a list. Now the names mentioned in
those lists are different. The quantities mentioned in those lists are
different. In one list, the quantity mentioned is one million barrels. In
another list the quantity mentioned is 5.5 million barrels. In another list,
the quantity mentioned is 4 million barrels. Then Volcker mentions 1.936
million and 1.1000 miilion. Which is correct and which is wrong? In the
meanwhile, it appears that the Indian Ambassador did write a letter to
the Government of India on the 28th January, 2004. The evidence shows
that the letter was in the knowledge of, at least, the Foreign Secretary.
The letter was also in the knowiedge of the then Principal Secretary to
the Prime Minister. | cannot say anything beyond that. If a letter of
January, 2004 was in the knowledge of the Foreign Secretary and also in
the knowledge of the Principal Secretary to the Prime Minister, what
prevented the Government from taking action on that letter? Therefore,
even the then Government appears to have.......

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Mr. Minister, would you yield for a minute?
Sir, the question of the letter has been raised in this House.
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SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Somebody raised it.
SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Somebody else raising it is one matter.
SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: You said, "FM will clarify it".

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Just a minute. Sir, as a Minister of the
Government, who is replying to the debate on this very important issue,
his raising this matter is something very serious. (/nterruptions).

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Sir, | am sorry to say that...(Interruptions).
SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Sir, he has referred to the letter.

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Sir, the record will show that when this issue
was raised by a Member of the RJD, | was out of the House for a few
minutes. Mr. Yashwant Sinha said, "He has no access to official records
now. It is for the Government of the day to say whether any such letter was
received and indicate what action, if any, was taken." This is what the
record will show. Therefore, | am responding.

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Therefore, | am making this point that a
letter was received. Now a Minister of the Government who has access to
the record, is making an assertion in this House that such a letter, indeed,
was received by the Foreign Secretary. He is also making an assertion
that the Principal Secretary to the Prime Minister, at that point of time,
who is not present in this House, was privy to the letter. Therefore, it is
incumbent on the hon. Minister to place a copy of the letter on the Table of
the House. He must place a copy of the letter on the Table of the House.
He cannot refer to a document without placing it on the Table of the House.
He has access to the document. Why is he referring to it tangentially?
(Interruptions). Sir, | will tell you as to what has happened. What has
happened is that there has been a selective leakage of that letter to certain
people and this is a deliberate ploy and very unfortunate tactics which this
Government has adopted...(Interruptions).. It is a selective leakage of that
letter. Why don't you come clean? Place it on the Tabie of the House. This
is my demand.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Sir, the existence of that letter cannot be a deliberate
poly. Either the letter exists or it does not exist.

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY: Sir, here is a copy of that
letter.(/nterruptions).
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SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Sir, this a selective leakage. How has he
got access to that letter? How has the Minister not got ...(Interruptions).

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY: Sir, | have taken a fax mail from the
Navbharat Times. It was printed in the Navbharat Times.

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: So, somebody has made it available to the
Navbharat Times. How did the media get access to the Government
document?...(Interruptions)...Sir, the point | am making is...(Interruptions).

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Our concern is that you also had an access...

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Now, this House cannot be taken into
confidence with regard to the documents, thousand pages of that, which
have been brought out by Mr. Virendra Dayal! But, selectively, they will
leak a portion of those documents and say, "We are clean." | demand,
under the Rules, that that letter be laid on the Table of the House, and let
the Minister kindly prove to this House that the then Principal Secretary to
the Prime Minister was privy to this. And, what is this that they are saying?
They are saying that there were reports in the Pakistani newspapers, in
the Iraqi newspapers, which was under occupation, and they say that we
did not act on it. And, is that the reason why you would not act on Volcker?

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Sir, | was being extremely fair, | thought,
when | said that according to the records, it appears that the letter travelied
atleast up to the Foreign Secretary and at least up to the Principal Secretary
to the Prime Minister. 1 was very careful to say that it did not travel beyond
as far as | am able to find out. | was being extremely careful when | said
that this had travelled up to the Foreign Secretary and up to the Principal
Secretary to the Prime Minister. We have no difficulty; a copy of the letter
which travelled up to the Foreign Secretary and which travelled up to the
Principal Secretary to the Prime Minister will be handed over to the
Chairman ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI DIPANKAR MUMHERJEE: Does it exist?
SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: How can | say when | had no access?

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Sir, | did not mention this in the other House
yesterday. | was forced to mention this here because | was told, in the few
minutes | was not here, that Mr. Yashwant Sinha said that | should respond
to this statement made by the hon. Member from the RJD. If you had not
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said that, | would not have responded. You invited this response, and | am
giving you the response...

SHRI YASHWANT SINHA: Lay the letter on the Table of the House.
SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: | will; we will give the letter ... (Interruptions)...

SHRI DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: It is not a question of access. It is the
existence of the letter that he is questioning.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now, you go ahead.

SHRI! P. CHIDAMBARAM: So, we investigating, and | have told you
why we are investigating the matter. Ali | can say is that in January, 2004,
the Government of the day, at least at the official level—let me put it this
way, at least at the official level, in January, 2004,—they did not take
these allegations as deserving of an immediate inquiry. That is all | would
say. Today we have got a report, and therefore, we are investigating it.

Now, Sir, Mr. Jaitley says, facts are established. | say, with all humility,
that facts have to be established. Only conclusions are available; facts
have not been established. Mr. Jaitley says that the Volcker Report is
evidence. | say, "No, the Volcker Report is a Report containing conclusions.
We must first seek the evidence and then ask ourselves whether the
evidence supports the conclusions." Mr. Jaitley says—and he has shifted
from yesterday's position—yesterday, the entire burden of the agreement
was based on this question: "Why did we not appoint a Commission of
Inquiry? Why did we appoint an Inquiry Authority? Why did we not appoint
a Commission of Inquiry under Section 3 of the Act and why did we appoint
an Inquiry Authority under Section 11 of the Act? After | answered, the
Leader of the Opposition said,—that is there on the record; | am quoting it,
itis thee in the newspapers—"if you had told us all these before, it would
not have been necessary for us to bring this Motion." Sir, itis my misfortune
that | had convinced the first generation of BJP leaders; | have to now
convince the second generation of BJP leaders. Today, the only issue is,
since we have made it so clear, there is no difference in law between a
Commission of inquiry under Section 3 and an Inquiry Authority under
Section 11, empowered under the second part of Section 11, because
under the third part of Section 11, "It shall be deemed to be a Commission

-of Inquiry appointed under Section 3 of the Act."

Now, the entire focus has shifted. And Mr. Jaitley says, “We reject
both. We reject the Commission of inquiry under Section 3. We reject an
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Inquiry Authority under Section 11. Go aheadand file an FIR". So, that is
a vast improvement from the case that was argued yesterday, the case
that is being argued today. Congratulations on BJP's movement forward!
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: That has been our case from day one.
...(Interruptions)... | said that was an eye-wash. ...(Interruptions)...That
has been our case from day one.

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Not yesterday. Go through the records. Not
_yesterday. | was present right through. Not yesterday.

Now, Sir, "File an FIR!". | would refer to Shri Jethmalani— and how can
one not refer to Mr. Jethmalani-- and he told us in what circumstances an
FIR could be filed. We all know that under Section 154, you can file an
information report, if there is reasonable suspicion of a cognisable offence,
or, a non-cognisable offence having been committed. So, first, there must
be an offence that may have been committed, and a reasonable suspicion
of an offence that has been committed. An offence, as defined under Section
2, is, "An act or omission made punishable by any law". That is why
Mr. Sibal asked a very simple question, "Please tell me which law, which
offence, and we will look into it." Mr. Volcker does not say that any law
has been violated. Mr. Volcker does not say that any offence has been
committed. | cannot take the Voicker Report, rush to a Police Station and
say, "File an FIR". Mr. Volcker has not told us which law and which offence.
We have to now establish, at least, prima facie, which law is attracted,
what is the act, what is the omission which is punishable under that law.
Once that is established; then, Sir, on behalf of the Goverment, let me
make this statement that if an Inquiry Authority finds that a law has been
violated, which is punishable, indeed an FIR will be filed and every other
action will be taken against those people. Let there be no doubt on that
score. We have no hesitation in saying that, if in the course of an
investigation, either by the investigating authority, namely, the Enforcement
Directorate for the present, or , the Inquiry Authority headed by former
Chief Justice Pathak, itis found that any person or any entity has committed
an act or an omission punishable under an Indian law, indeed, Sir, an FIR
will be filed.

Sir, Mr. Jaitiey says,"File an FIR and issue a Letter Rogatory to
Switzerland". This is deja vu, he is trying to relive his Bofors' past. For
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what can a Letter Rogatory be filed? If | go to CBI, the CBl cannotissue a
Letter Rogatory. CBI still has to go to a court of Law to get a Letter Rogatory
issued. So can the Enforcement Directorate. So can the Enforcement
Directorate, if it finds in the course of an investigation that an offence has
been committed. The Enforcement Directorate can pass on that information
to an appropriate Police authority to seek a Letter Rogatory. So can Chief
Justice Pathak; he can recommend to the Government to apply to a court
to seek a Letter Rogatory. ... (Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please take your seats. ...(Interruptions)... Please
take your seats. Nothing will go on record. ...(Interruptions)... Please take
your seats. ...(Interruptions)... Let him finish his speech. ...(Interruptions)...
Please take your seats.

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: No. | am not yielding, Sir. | have clearly said
that the Enforcement Directorate or Chief Justice Pathak can recommend,
or, can direct the Government, or, can ask the Government, "Here is what
we have found. It appears to be an offence under the law. Please, now, go
through the appropriate Police authority and seek a Letter Rogatory.”
That is precisely what | said. The records can be checked.

Therefore, giving it to CBI, and not giving it to the Enforcement Director,
does not mean that automatically a Letter Rogatory will follow. He will
have to investigate the matter. And that is precisely what we are doing.
And, that is precisely what we are doing. We are investigating that matter.
Sir, let me conclude very quickly. No other country has made efforts to
gather the evidence as promptly as we have done, and no other country
has succeeded in obtaining material documents and evidence running
into hundreds of pages in such a short space of time as we have done. In
fact, when we appointed Special Envoy Dayal and said that we would
depute him to the United Nations, | remember some very caustic comments
were made by some members of the political establishment, which said
that what can Mr. Dayal do? What can Mr. Dayal do which Mr. Nirupam
Sen cannot do? Who will give Mr. Dayal papers? In fact, we surprised
everybody by bringing back material papers in ten days. It showed that
the course that we have taken is the right course. Sir, | ask myself, is
there any other instance in this country of an inquiry where material
documents have been gathered in a space of ten days? Mr. Dayal's
appointment or the mandate to him was issued to him in writing on 7* of
November. He left for the United Nations on 17 of November. He came
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back here on the 24" of November with documents. He was accompanied
by the Enforcement Directorate. | ask again, is there any other country
which has named so high a person as a former Chief Justice of India and
a former judge of the International Court of Justice to hold an inquiry? Is
there any ether country, and can you find any other example where an
investigating authority has in a space of about two weeks interrogated a
number of persons, searched a number of premises and is proceeding
with an inquiry at a fast pace? We have a three-pronged approach. One,
through Special Envoy Dayal, gathered the material. Secondly, under the
terms of reference, and there are terms of reference, it was gazetted in the
Gazette of India on the 11" of November. The terms of reference requires
Justice Pathak to examine that very material documents, and the third
prong is, the Enforcement Directorate is trying to find out whether there is
a violation of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, which is the law
which is prima facie attracted at this stage. This three-pronged approach
may lead us to other laws. It may lead us to the Foreign Contribution
Regulation Act violation; it may lead us to the Indian Penal Code violation;
it may lead us to the Prevention of Corruption Act violation.

Let me tell you, Sir, on behalf of the Government we are not going to
hold back. Whichever viclation appears in the course of investigation, we
will pursue that to its logical end, and take action against anyone who
may have committed any act of omission which is punishable under Indian
law. Let there be no doubt about that. | assure the House that this
investigation will go to its logical end.

Sir, the last question is really a question for the Prime Minister to answer.
Why is Mr. Natwar Singh a Minister without portfolio? Our position from
the day one has been, these are unverified references. Mr. Sibal has read
out portions of various documents which show there was no cross-
examination; no document was tested by Voicker. | won't go into all that.
Let me simply point out a few things. A learned article on the entire Volcker
Committee. "There are also major concerns over the Volcker Committee's
lack of transparency. The UN-appointed investigation has operated in
astonishing secrecy with virtually no outside scrutiny for an inquiry designed
to unearth hidden corruption and malpractice on a huge scale. It is
strikingly opaque. Such is the level of its secrecy that its website does not
even contain a mailing address." Now, two senior investigators of the
Volcker Committee resigned questioning the credibility of the Volcker
Committee. We have got the names of those investigators who resigned.
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Therefore, we have to approach this with a great caution, and that is
precisely what we are doing. These are unverified references. As of today,
they are unverified. They are being verified with reference to the documents
we have obtained. Until the unverified references become verified references,
substantive references, or, prima facie proven references, you cannot
condemn a person or an entity. We are in the process of verifying and
substantiating these references. Only one person can pronounce on that,
and that is the Chief Justice Pathak.

The last question is why was Chief Justice Pathak not given section
8(B) powers? Please look at section 8(B). Section 8 is the originai section
of the Act. That gave a Commission of Inquiry either under section (3) or
under section (11) read with section (8) powers to frame its own procedure.
Section 8(B) is a latter day introduction which, in fact, does not give the
full-flexibility to a Commisssion of Inquiry; it restricts the Commission of
Inquiry. In fact, to call section 8(B) a power is a misnomer. Section 8(B) is
a restriction on the power of a Commission of Inquiry under section 8.
Section 8 is the power, section 8(B), by an amendment, is a restriction on
that power, the manner in which the power should be exercised. Section
8(B) does no more. It simply introduces in the statute, a well-accepted
principle of natural justice.

When | asked Justice Pathak, "Do you want to be appointed under
section 3, or do you want to be under section 11?" He said "l want to be
appointed under section." My learned friend will immediately understand
the difference between an advisarial inquiry and an inquisitorial inquiry.
So, Chief Justice Pathak said, "Appoint me under section 11, and give me
the following powers." So, we gave him all the powers. He did not want
section 8(B), and, on the contrary, he wanted a categorical statement in
the terms of reference that he will be free to frame his own rules of procedure
including places of sitting. So, we have given him exactly that.

Let Mr. Jaitley meet Mr. Pathak, and if Chief Justice Pathak tells me
tomorrow, "Give me powers under section 8(B)." We wili gladly give him
powers under section 8(B). You know him as well as | do. Therefore,
section 8(B) is not a power. Section 8(B) is a restriction on the power. And
to even suggest that Chief Justice Pathak will not follow the principles of
nature justice does no justice to the Chief Justice of india.
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| am sure, Chief Justice Pathak knows what the law is, knows what
procedures to follow and he will follow a fair procedure. Once Chief Justice
Pathak pronounces on the material evidence that there is an act of omission
punishable under Indian law, the law will take its own course and we will
punish that person or entity.

Atthe moment, Sir, we are on the right course; our course has brought
us so far, in a matter of 20 days of this inquiry. This investigation has
proceeded further than any other investigation in living memory. Therefore,
Sir, | submit that there is no occasion for this Motion; this Motion should
be rejected and we should be allowed to proceed with an inquiry which the
Government and the Prime Minister have decided as the right course to
follow.

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Mr. Chairman, Sir, we have had a day-long debate
on the Motion which you were pleased enough to permit me to move
before this House. And for and against the Motion, a very large number of
hon. Members of this House had an cppertunity tc express their views.
We also had the benefit of listening to some of the eminent speakers from
the Government. Both are very distinguished parliamentarians, very
distinguished iawyers, and, indeed, these are the people for whom | have
great regard. Let me, at the end of this debate say, during the last one
month, | started by having a lurking suspicion that this Government was
neither honest nor bona fide in its endeavour to unearth the truth. The
political manner in which comments were being made, the cover up, through
these inquiries by incomplete and erroneous procedure, which has been
suggested and even justified today, certainly did lead this lurking suspicion
tc become a disappointment. | would have expected an honourable and
honest Government which was truly bona fide in the matters of trying to
investigate the truth to really stand up and say, "There is a preliminary
material which has come by way of the Volcker Committee Report. This
material indeed in very disturbing. | expected, at least, the Members of the
Congress Party to use the phrases, which their own President used only
a few days ago. Today when we find that when they are in the Government,
the element of concern that they should have with regard to the disclosures
made in the Volcker Report is completely missing. | find my two very
eminent friends, - though they said, 'we are not trying to rubbish the report'
- but there has been a conscious effort not to say that 'we wiil treat this as
a preliminary material with serious concern and then put the investigation
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on the right track to find the truth.' But the entire effort has been, 'let us try
and pick holes in the report and if possible rubbish the report. If | succeed
in rubbishing the report, the allegation against the Government, that you
are not being honest in the matter of investigation, it still will fall apart. My
friend, Mr. Sibal said, 'well a testimony was given and on the basis of that
testimony at best what has been expressed is an opinion of Mr. Volicker. It
is an opinion which is not based on any material.' | think, it would have
been more reasonable to say, what Mr. Chidambaram indeed did, that
these findings could be on the basis of certain material, a material which
Mr. Virendra Dayal and Director of Enforcement have gone to Mr. Volcker
and said 'please give it to us’, but to say that this is nothing more than a
private opinion is not correct. What does the report itself says at page 534
'Source of Evidence' and | am quoting from that. It says, 'as discussed at
length in the report on programme manipulation, the Committee's findings
as they relate to the imposition and collection of illegal kickbacks, these
are based on collections and analysis of an extensive body of evidence.
Much of the evidence comes from contemporaneous documents and data
provided by various lraqi contracting Ministries, including financial ledgers,
internal correspondence and data based on records. The other evidence is
in the form of bank records and deposits as well as information provided
by suppliers that participated in the transactions, their agents and
companies.” Now to say that this entire evidence is hearsay evidence
which somebody went and orally deposed before that Committee
...(Interruptions)...

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Nobody has said that ... (Interruptions)...

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Therefore it is merely an opinion ...(Interruptions)...
Well, if you did not say and that now you realise either you should not
have said that or you have not said that, then it is certainly much more
than ...(Interruptions)...

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: | want that very evidence now.
...(Interruptions)... We need to get those very documents. ...{Interruptions)...

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: To say that itis merely an opinion, Sir, what are
the other arguments those are being raised in order to rubbish it. An article
has been written somewhere criticising the Report. In a free media world,
people may criticise, people may comment on the authenticity of the
Report, but this House in its discussion and the Government in its attitude
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is certainly not going to be influenced by this. You are very concerned with
the fact that no notice was given to the Congress Party or Mr. Natwar
Singh. Volcker has specified the procedure to the contracting parties to
whom notices were given. What is the stage at which we are today? We
are not at a stage where some chargesheet has been filled and trial is
being conducted against Mr. Natwar Singh and the Congress Party. We
are at a stage where in this country not even on the basis of the material
and information available, a First Information Report is being lodged. We
are at a stage where we have to decide and the Government has to decide
whether there is a reason to believe or to suspect that a commission of an
offence has taken place on the basis of this material. And the Government
says, 'l won't register and FIR'. Let me tell my friend Mr. Chidambaram
that the core issue in relation to the dispute whether you legally follow the
correct course or not, | have no doubt about the eminence and fairness of
Justice Pathak. You do not require a Judge of the International Court of
Justice at Hague... You don't require a former Chief Justice to merely start
investigating the affairs of Hamdan company. You require a Committee, an
agency or a body which has the legal jurisdiction to start investigating who
were the recipients, if at all, of these illegal payments. Let me Sir, just
remind my learned friends as to what is the material with which Mr.
Chidambaram tried to present, which is available on the basis of these
documents. You have a reference where there are contracting parties which
have benefited from the contract and you have a material where non-
contracting parties are mentioned on these coupons. You have the name
of a company which has traded in oil which it was entitled to pick up. It
has passed it on as a commercial transaction to another company. So
the oil has been picked up. You have evidence and there is material in this
report, we need not pronounce it, that the levy of surcharge was illegal.
But you have material to say that on both the contracts where a non-
contracting party was the Congress Party or Mr. Natwar Singh, illegal
surcharges have been levied. You have further material in terms of even
bank account details, that exactly the same amount of illegal surcharge
levied and paid has been paid by Masfield,‘as Mr. Chidambaram rightly
says through the instrumentality of Masfie/d, and Mr. Sehgal. You have
now evidence which is appearing, and, | am sure, the Enforcement
Directorate which is under his Department has further cross-checked the
reports and there are some answers which | expected, at least, four of my
friends from the Congress Party spoke. Some of you owed an explanation
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to the country. How did this business delegation accompany your political
delegation? How are these people meeting Qil Ministry officials? This is
further evidence available if your Government tries to honestly investigate.
These are contessions which these people have made in the world of
teievision, on television itself. Why have they repeatedly gone again to
Baghdad? The crux of the issue, as | mentioned was, nearly two-fold
investigations which are required, that moneys passed on from Masfield
to Sehgal and Hamdan for repayment back to Jordan. This could not have
happened without their being an underlying transaction. It is nobody's
case that | must jump to a presumption today itself. This calls for an
investigation and a valid investigation in law. 1t must only be such an
investigation which has the legal capability of unearthing those documents
and reaching at the truth. Between Masfield and Hamdan the two questions
which need to be answered is: what happened, if at all, in terms of passing
commercial benefits either to the two named non-contracting beneficiaries
or to some front companies on their behalf. Has this taken place? The
second question, which would arise, is the evidence of these non-
contracting beneficiaries. Did they receive any acknowledgement or the
coupons itself which they were further entitled to trade for the reasons of
profit? These are the two key areas. Now, you may speak in terms of the
eminence of Justice Pathak. You may speak of the ability of the Enforcement
Directorate. Let me now just deal with both. Mr. Chidambaram says, ‘why
have we given the inquiry only to the Enfrocement Directorate? The
Enforcement Directorate itself can issue a letter rogatory.

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: It can approach a court if it feels.

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: i think, Mr. Chidambaram did mention that when
we speak in terms of letter rogatories, the ghost of Bofors comes back.
But then it comes back on various sides. If you recollect, till December
1989, you Government was in power. And, till 1989 December, your
Government did not care to have an FIR registered. You did send some
letters of request. But, every time you send the letter of request the Swiss
Government came back with areply, 'We have a treaty...' — and the treaty
which was entered into prior to that —'...and the treaty required the following
conditions. The treaty required the princiles of dual criminality. There must
be an offence which is an offence in both the jurisdictions. The treaty
requires a case under investigaion and a proper letter rogatory.’ If
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Mr. Chidambaram's memory does not fail, in October, 1989, you wanted a
letter of request to be sent precisely for currency and tax violations
...(Interruptions)... You wanted a letter of request to be sent in relation to
currency and tax violation laws! the Swiss Government precisely said 'No.'
And that is why in the morning | said that unless you go on the correct
legal course and ask the right questions, you are going to draw a blank as
indeed you did til: Cecember, 1989.

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: That is why finally you drew a blank on
Bofors...(Interruptions). ..

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: We can discuss that separately ...(/nterruptions)...
SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: That is why you drew a blank.

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: | will deal with your approach
separately...(Interruptions)... The FEMA, which is the only case they are
investigating, has no powers of /etter rogatory in the Act itself.
Mr. Chidambaram now wants us to accept that under FEMA a request will
be sent to some other agency which will then move the court for /etter
rogatory. Sir, FEMA, as Mr. Sibal rightly said, speaks in terms of
adjudications, penalties and does not speak about other penal offences.
The language of Section 166, besides the Indo-Swiss Treaty, requires
duel criminality. The FEMA does not fall under dual criminality. 1t requires,
under Section 166A, a case under investigation. Unless a case is under
investigation i.e. FIR has been lodged, letter rogatory cannot be issued
under Section 166A. Who wil! issue letter rogatory? The court on an
application made by an investigating officer ...(Interruptions)... You are
doing exactly the opposite. Sir, you cannot camouflage this cover up
exercise...(Interruptions)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Even now you give us a piece of evidence. We will
do it...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Therefore, the FEMA investigating officer, the
moment, he goes to a special judge, no Indian court, without a case under
investigation, without an FIR or without power under the Act, is going to
allow him to issue letter rogatory. Under FEMA there is no power. And, |
think, the proof of the pudding will be in eating where a few months from
now if they try and issue letter rogatory under FEMA using Section 166A
and some other investigating officer, it will be a procedure completely
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unknown to law. It will be a procedure completely unknown to law. And,
therefore, in the absence of that power, you want us now to believe that
Justice Pathak has the Power. But, he will request any investigating agency
which is not investigating the case, to go to special judge. You reasonably
expect the special judge...

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: It is very unfair to Justice Pathak. Please
read the Terms of Reference. Please read the last Term of Reference.
Justice pathak can make any recommendation or suggestion to the
Government of India recommendation or suggestion to the Government of
India following his findings in the earlier Terms of Reference. | think, you
are unnecessarily and unwittingly raising this and it is unfair to the Chief
Justice of india.

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: | don't think the personality of a former Chief
Justice of India is the question in issue. The question in issue is: Is Justice
Pathak, in his capacity as a Section 11 Committee or even as a Section 3
Commission entitled to issue letter rogatory? The answer is big
'No'...(Interruptions)...

SHRI! P. CHIDAMBARAM: Justice Pathak can recommend to the
Government that in view of his findings the Government should file an FIR
and apply for letter rogatory...(interruptions)...

it gemafa: amg sfeg, dAfse ) .. (=EuH)...

SHRI N. JOTHI!: If he cannot do it now, when will he do it? After five
years! (Interruptions)

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: |, now, deal with Mr. Chidambaram’s main
argument. Chief Justice Pathak will ask some other investigating officer,
not investigating the case, no FiR registered, no duat criminality principle,
to ask Switzerland to give us information. The answer is going to be a
clear 'no’. The answer is going to be a clear 'no'! This is exactly what the
Government between 1987 and December 1989 had tried; and, this is’
exactly what this Government is trying to do now. Mr. Sibal, in the momjng,
wanted to put a question. | ask which are the cases that are made out. If
a political party, prima facie, on the basis of this material is alleged to be
an entity, receiving money....(Inferruptions)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please take your seat. ...(Interruptions). First go to
your seat. ...(/nterruptions)
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7.00pP.m.

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, this is precisely what a Government, which
lacks bona fide...(Interruptions) |, as a Government...(Interruptions)
Mr. Sibal...(Interruptions)

sit g At 9T &1 |9iaq Qs .. (FEsE)...

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Mr. Sibal's response is, |, as a Government, will
make not make an honest effort to bring the evidence; you, as an Opposition,
bring the evidence....(Interruptions) But that is the tactic what
you...(Interruptions). This is exactly what you have been doing.
...(Interruptions)... | am sorry, this is exactly what the Government has
been saying. ...(/nterruptions) In the morning, you said, "Mr. Jaitley,
...(Interruptions)

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Mr. Jaitley, it is not fair. You made an allegation
saying that there is enough evidence. | ask you where the evidence is,
...(Interruptions)

SHRIN. JOTHI: Here itis. What more you want?...(Interruptions)

SHRI P. CHIDAMBARAM: Sir, either the evidence is there, or, we have
to gather evidence. According to us, the evidence is not there in the Report.
We have to gather the evidence. ...(Interruptions) Mr. Jaitley says that
evidence is there. ...(Interruptions) We are gathering the evidence.

...(Interruptions) If evudence is there, please tell us which i is the evidence.
...(Interruptions)

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Sir, Mr. Chidambaram will realise that, in this
game, non of us was born yesterday. So, we know what the truth is. The
truth really would be that there is one set of material on which Mr. Volcker
has made his recommendations. That set of material, on the basis of
which Volcker makes his recommendations, may be possible through
diplomatic channel, through Mr. Virendra Dayal or otherwise, to request
the United Nations to give us the documents. Perhaps, some of those
documents we have brought. That is one set of documents. But that
document would only sustain what is mentioned in the Report. The next
step, which you don't want to honestly investigate, is when Masfield or
vitol did the oil transaction—you were right in your analysis when you said
some part of the money whent back to Jordan to go back to Irag—~what
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happened to the balance money? This is where the core of the conflict
lies. In order to investigate what happened to the balance money, you
must unveil the secrecy of the Swiss banking laws. To unveil the secrecy
of Swiss banking laws, you must have a case under investigation; you
must have letter rogatory. Their argument is, unless they get the material,
they will not lodge an FIR, they will not send a letter rogatory. The entire
bone of contention, ‘now is...(Interruptions). You will get the Volcker
documents, | have no doubt. But the second limb of the argument is,
where did the money go from Masfield? Who all shared the money? What
did the non-contracting beneficiaries get? Now, in order to investigate
Volcker is not going to help you. To unveil the Swiss banking secrecy
laws, which is really required, you must go through the legally correct
methodology. You can't grope in the dark. You can't foliow legally flawed
methodology, and then, say you have not been able to get answer. The
answer for which is that you must register an FIR, you must send a letter
rogatory. And, your argument is that you will register an FIR and send a
letter rogatory, till you first get an evidence. You will not get any evidence
uless you go by the correct methodology. ...(/nterruptions). Sir, | said in
the opening that what is the tactic the Government is following. Their first
tactic is, rubbish the report. And | am sorry to say that my two distinguished
friends and senior Ministers in this Government, instead of being responsible
spokesman of a responsible Government to say "this is preliminary material,
we will honestly try to investigate the rest,” the principle exercise they
have done today is, let me rubbish whatever evidence is on record. ltis a
case, we least expected the Government's spokesmen to act as defence
lawyers for the non-contracting beneficiaries. And that is what we have
found spokesmen of this Government to.

Sir, Mr. Sibal should be content with the fact that | am not an enthusiastic

prosecutor; | have no intention of being one, nor | am on a slippery wicket -

on which the prosecutor is likely to slip. But please remember, your party
has a glorious history. Your party has a glorious history; don't create a
situation where when historians rewrite your party's history, instead of
referring to the Gandhian era and the Nehruvian era, they start referring to
your party with the history chapters of the Mitrokhin era, the Volcker era,
the Martin Alberto era, and the Quotrochi era. If this is the route that you
chose to follow ...(Interruptions). If this is the route you chose to follow,
the alternate history of your party...(Interruptions)...the alternate history of
your party will be written with these....(/nterruptions)...
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st |vTefa: Sfau Sfsw. (saum).. . Siee! SIfaT .. (qaum). ..

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Did you register the case against your Party
President? ...(Interruptions)..You have double standards...(Interruptions)

At TS TER: 379 I I W AW F @ (AL A @
LL(aYT ).

st gyt Sfag, Afay,... 3% &, dis 2, S SgY, =1ga € 741 Let him finish
...(Interruptions)... Let him finish ...(Interruptions) ¥Ta &3 wTFQ
..(=gaum)... dfaq,.. (sqaum).. Sfee dAfeg ... (=aum)...

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: At least the Bangaru era is over, the Modi era is
going to be over, the Advani era would over in
December,...(Interruptions)... The Advani era will be over in December and
letus hope there is an Arun Jaitley era to come...(Inferruptions)...Of course,
Ms. Uma Bharati era is also over...(Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: Leave the subject for the historians...(Intemruptions)...
Hfee... (qauM)... '

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Sir, as | saig in the morning, don't think we are
on a slippery ground. | said in the morning,...(Interruptions)...| said in the
morning that you are dealing with something very greasy. But, also
remember, it is not only greasy or oily; itis also highly inflarmmable. If itis
highly inflammable, then, itis going to lead to a situation where your party
and its image is going to burn its own fingers. It is going to burn your own
image. Therefore, If you want to...(/Interruptions)...If you want
to...(Interruptions)... -

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: Don't look at the Press, let us talk about the Volcker
Report....(Interruptions) '

it TRl qIfey: PRI e L (FENT)...
it TS AR : G 9 HT A FHAC,.. (AGH)...

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: If you want to save your party's
image...(Interruptions) If you want to save your image...(Interruptions) don't
deal with this inflammable material which is highly risky. Don't get into
diversions. Mr. Ram Naik very honourably said, ‘he went there' You find a
great offence in the fact that he went there, and, therefore, he went to
promote the business, you say, of Indian companies. But nobody has
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said that Mr. Ram Naik was a non-contractual beneficiary of the
coupon...(Interruptions)

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: We will investigate that also...(/nterruptions)

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: A letter from the Ambassador came towards the
end of January that A/-Mada has reported this. Sir, not only a letter came,
| have an e-mail which a friend of mine sent to me on February 1,2004. He
brought in an article from ‘The Independent’ and said please read this, this
may be of interest to you. This was something from 'The independent' in
England. Kindly see the argument. Even though the Foreign Secretary got
it, the Principal Secretary got it, your Government did not act on a news
report; so, we will not even act on a UN Committee Report...(Interruptions).
Is there any substance in an argument of this kind?...(Interruptions)...Sir,
| must confess,...(Interruptions)

SHRI KAPIL SIBAL: You need another half-an-hour...(Interruptions)
SHRIANAND SHARMA: Sir, can Mr. Jaitley identify...(/nterruptions)

MR. CHAIRMAN: He is finishing now...(Inferruptions)...He is finishing
now. .....(Interruptions).. Please take you seats...(Interruptions)... No,

no...(Interruptions)... fT,..(AIUTT)... 43 ARL,..(qEH)... Let him
finish...(Interruptions)...

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Sir, just one clarification. ..(/nterruptions)
MR. CHAIRMAN: There is no need of clarification...(/nterruptions)

SHRI ANAND SHARMA: Sir, it will help the debate...(/nterruptions)...
Will Mr. Arun Jaitley...(/nterruptions)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let him finish...(/nterruptions)...Let him
finish...(Interruptions)... 3fau...(Sqa¥mM)....

SHRIANAND SHARMA: He is yielding, Sir...(Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: 3fa, .. (s5a4m)...

SHRIANAND SHARMA: Will Mr. Jaitiey please enlighten this House—
since he has done so much of research--is there one country which has
set up such an authority, any country which has acted on the Volicker
Report, whether even the UN General Assembly has discussed over
documents...(/nterruptions)...
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SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Sir, | am not aware ...(Interruptions)...of any
country where the ruling Party has been accused...(/nterruptions).. And,
instead of hanging its head in shame...(Interruptions)... it continues to
hold it high...(Interruptions)...! am not aware...(Interruptions)...| am not
aware of any country where its principal spokesman on the Foreign Policy,
its Foreign Minister, was alleged to be named as a beneficiary, and he
continues to be a Minister of the Union Cabinet...{Interruptions)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please finish.

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, just one or two small facts before | conclude.
What| said with approach of the Government, we had a lurking suspicion,
we had a sense of disappointment, and after their response, we have a
deeper sense of disappointment. But, | am somewhat puzzled at the stand
my friends in the Left Party have taken. | have no grievance with my friends
in the Left Parties when they stand up and say that they stand for certain
anti-imperialist thoughts, as far as the world situation is concerned. Itis
a legitimate political stand; they are entitled to take. They are entitled to
attack the United States, the system within, the United Nations, the Voicker
Committee, on basis of ideology which is very dear to them. My conflict
with you today is not your stand on anti-imperialism, my conflict with you
is that when anti-imperialist stance was converted by some into an office
of profit, you did not stand upto oppose it....(/nterruptions)...

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY:Sir, it is not correct...(Interruptions)...
SHRIARUN JAITLEY: When the Left Parties...(Interruptions)

SHRI NILOTPAL BASU: Sir, since he has directly referred to us, we are
entitled to reply to him. We will stand on the question of fighting corruption
provided he can produce some credible evidence which he has not. He is
only talking about presumptions. ...(Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: Okay. @ shifsg |

~ SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, the Left Parties always try to get a moral
high ground on some issues where their anti-graft stand is
concerned...(Inferruptions)
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o -
MR. CHAIRMAN @ ®)fs t . (Interruptions)

SHRI NILOTPAL#BASU: .We had asked for the
inquiry...(Interruptions)¥®urs was the first Party to...(Interruptions)

SHRIARUN JAITLEY: But today | find their desire to state their stand in
terms of anti-imperialism, so, their anti-graft attitude is giving
way...(Interruptions).. This is going to seriously effect upon and
~ {Interruptions) .

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY. Mr. Arun, just yield for a minute please.
SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Let those eras of Volcker.. (Interruptions)...

SHRI SITARAM YECHURY Please. (Interrugtions) Unfortunately,
Mr. Chairman, Sir, for a major part of my intervention, Mr Jaitley was not
inside the House. | don't know if he was listening {o it outside. If you were
here, you will please recollect that of all the political parties in this country,
it was the CPKM) which was the first to ask for an inquiry into this
issue...(Interruptions). .And, please remember this, not even you, not even
the BJP, it was the CPI(M) So, don't confuse the issue here. Set the
record straight. .{/nterruptions). ..

SHRIARUN JAITLEY Sir, | wouid have.. (Interruptions). 1 would have
...{Interruptions)...

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Jaitley, please now conclude...(Interruptions)...
SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, | would have...(Interruptions)

SHR! DIPANKAR MUKHERJEE: 1t is not there in the Volcker's
report...(Interruptions)....

SHRI NILOTPAL BASU: You are more American than the Americans,
and you are saying that...(/nterruptions)... when we are not anti-
graph. ..(Interruptions)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Jaitley, now you should finish...(Interruptions)...

SHRI ARUN JAITLEY: Sir, let me just end with two
sentences ...{Interruptions). .

o MR. CHAIRMAN: You should conclude your speech now.
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SHRIARUN JAITLEY: Sir, let me just end with two sentences. My first
sehtence is, along with us, when on the same procedural problems, the
Government tried a cover-up on 1989, the Left Parties along with us resigned
en masse from the Lok Sabha. We are indeed disappointed with your anti-
graph stand today.

~ Secondly, Sir, if the Government goes on a course on which it has
taken today, | have not the least doubt, you allow a person prima facie
named to continue in the Council of Ministers, you allow an incorrect
course of investigation to go on, you go on a course where you are likely
to get the "blank" as an answer, then, | am afraid, the standards of credibility,
standards of probity in public life...(/nterruptions)...in 1ndia are going to
seriously suffer...(Interruptions). 1, therefore, urge this House to vote upon
this Motion and accept this Motion....(Interruptions). .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now, the debate on this Moticn ig over. | shall now
put the Motion moved by ShriArun Jaitley to vote. The question is:

"That this House strongly condemns the aiieged involvement of some
Indian entities and individuals as non-Zontractual beneficiaries of the United
Nations' Oil-for-Food-Programme in Iraq, as reported in the Report of the
United Nations' Independent Inquiry Committee (Volcker Committee)."

The motion was negatived.
MESSAGE FROM LOK SABHA
The National Tax Tribunal Bill, 2005

SECRETARY-GENERAL: Sir, | have to report to the House the following
message received from the Lok Sabha, signed by the Secretary-General
of the Lok Sabha:

"Ip accordance with the provisions of rule 96 of the Rules of Procedure
and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha, | am directed to enclose the
National Tax Tribunal Bill, 2005, as passed by Lok Sabha at its sitting
held on the 29th November, 2005."

Sir, | lav a copy of the Bill o the Table.
At gurafa: 989 &) FdaE e Wid: 11 59 9F @ e wufie w1 S

The House then adjourned at eighteen minutes past seven of the
clock till eleven of the clock on Wednesday, the 30th
November, 2005
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